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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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It is both my pleasure and my honor to share with you the 2014 Annual Report of Byblos 
Bank. Once again I do so with considerable satisfaction, for during a fourth consecutive 
year of challenging local, regional, and international circumstances, our business model 
KDV�UH�VWDWHG�LWV�DELOLW\�WR�ŵQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�DPLG�DOO�PDQQHU�RI�GLIŵFXOW\�Ŏ�VRFLDO��SROLWLFDO��
and economic.

Despite these unhelpful conditions, the Bank posted solid numbers by all headline 
PHDVXUHV��WRWDO�DVVHWV��ORDQV��GHSRVLWV�DQG�SURŵWV�ZHUH�DOO�XS�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�IURP������

This performance was backed, too, by the sound asset quality that has made Byblos 
Bank what it is today: a rock of stability for customers, employees, and shareholders 
alike. Tending assiduously to our capital base has long been a hallmark of the Bank’s 
success, ensuring as it does our ability to withstand pressures and/or seize opportunities, 
UHWDLQ�WKH�FRQŵGHQFH�RI�DOO�VWDNHKROGHUV��DQG�OD\�WKH�JURXQGZRUN�IRU�VLPLODU�OHYHOV�RI�
performance in the future. 

7KLV�DSSURDFK�PHDQV�WKDW�ZKHQ�LW�FRPHV�WR�VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV�DJDLQVW�
credit losses, we tend to allocate more than is strictly necessary to guard against the 
unforeseen. The Bank’s results were also bolstered by strong credit quality, with both 
our ratio of non-performing loans to net loans and our NPL coverage ratio standing at 
very comfortable levels as of year-end. Byblos Bank also continued its long tradition of 
meeting or even exceeding the most demanding international standards, and of doing 
so ahead of time. 

In addition to their direct role in strengthening multiple aspects of our operations, 
WKHVH�DQG�RWKHU�PHDVXUHV�DUH�ZK\�%\EORV�%DQN�HQMR\V�WKH�WUXVW�DQG�FRQŵGHQFH�RI�LWV�
customers, strategic partners, and other stakeholders. Chief among these partners are 
the International Finance Corporation, private sector arm of the World Bank Group; 
the Agence Française de Développement (AFD), the French government’s overseas 
development agency; and the Société de Promotion et Participation pour la Coopération 
Economique (PROPARCO), the AFD’s investment subsidiary. The presence of such 
highly regarded partner institutions among our shareholders is an unmistakable vote of 
FRQŵGHQFH�LQ�WKH�%DQN�

Byblos Bank’s reputation for solidity is the product of good habits, and in 2014 , we 
continued to bolster the mechanisms by which we remain in compliance with global 
banking standards, international sanctions against governments in countries where we 
GR�EXVLQHVV��DQG�SURJUDPV�WR�FRPEDW�PRQH\�ODXQGHULQJ�DQG�WKH�ŵQDQFLQJ�RI�WHUURULVP��
Regulatory and sanctions environments have become more complex and therefore more 
expensive in recent years, but Byblos Bank’s reputation may be its most valuable asset, 
and strong corporate governance is the best way to protect and even enhance it. This is 
not to mention the obvious moral responsibility, so our vigilance will only increase in the 
coming years.

A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Stakeholders,
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There are no secrets as to how Byblos Bank has achieved such 
results in the face of adverse conditions. It starts with prudent 
management, adherence to international best practice, and a 
commitment to promoting growth by supporting the private 
sector wherever we operate. Our success also owes much to 
unmatched experience and expertise, proven controls and 
systems to guide and monitor all aspects of our operations, 
and the adoption of safe and secure technologies that help us 
reach more customers than ever before. It stems, too, from a 
QHYHU�HQGLQJ�TXHVW�WR�GHYHORS�DQG�UHŵQH�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV��
particularly in the retail segment.  

,Q�WKH�ŵQDO�DQDO\VLV��KRZHYHU��HYHQ�WKHVH�SULQFLSOHV��WRROV��DQG�
processes are of little use unless they are backed by superbly 
trained and dedicated professionals. We have precisely such 
people at Byblos Bank, and that is no accident either. The 
Bank goes to considerable lengths to recruit and retain high-
achievers, using the latest techniques to help expand their skill-
sets and build their careers so that they can provide even better 
banking to our customers.

The short-term outlook indicates more headwinds, but 
there are opportunities, especially if Lebanon’s political 
HVWDEOLVKPHQW�FDQ�ŵQDOO\�VHSDUDWH�SDUWLVDQ�GLVSXWHV�IURP�
national interests. The failure to implement long-overdue 
UHIRUPV��DQG�WR�LPSURYH�SXEOLF�ŵQDQFHV��RQO\�PDNHV�LW�PRUH�
GLIŵFXOW�IRU�DQ\RQH�WR�JRYHUQ�Ŏ�DQG�IRU�PDQ\�/HEDQHVH�WR�HDUQ�
WKHLU�OLYHOLKRRGV�Ŏ�VR�WKLV�VKRXOG�EH�D�SRZHUIXO�PRWLYDWRU�LI�WKH�
politicians have their priorities in order. 

In particular, there is great need for public-private partnerships 
(PPPs) that would accomplish numerous goals while alleviating 
the burden on the state. Improving Lebanon’s power supply, 

roads, and other transport links would remove impediments 
to the small- and medium-sized enterprises that provide so 
PDQ\�MREV��PDNLQJ�WKHP�Ŏ�DQG�WKH�HFRQRP\�DV�D�ZKROH�Ŏ�PRUH�
competitive on several fronts. The banking industry stands ready 
to contribute, but the public sector needs to make itself a viable 
partner, starting with the passage in Parliament of  the draft law 
on PPPs.      

For Byblos Bank’s part, we look forward to the coming years 
DV�D�WLPH�WR�IXUWKHU�UHŵQH�RXU�V\VWHPV�DQG�SUDFWLFHV��WR�SODQ�
for vigorous expansion when conditions improve, and to help 
members of the communities we serve to live fuller, happier, and 
more productive lives. We will do so not just as a forward-looking 
bank that supports productive ventures, but also as a good 
corporate citizen devoted to the humanization of capital.

We are in position to make such plans because of the men and 
ZRPHQ�ZKR�PDNH�%\EORV�%DQN�ZKDW�LW�LV�Ŏ�WKH�VDPH�SHRSOH�ZKR�
have achieved so much in the past year by overcoming adversity 
to post surprisingly good results across the board. Please join 
me in congratulating them for another job well done.

Sincerely,

François S. Bassil
Chairman and General Manager

A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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THE LEBANESE ECONOMY IN 2014

ECONOMIC ACTIVITY
 
Economic activity in Lebanon improved slightly in 2014 
due to relatively better security conditions, a generally less 
confrontational political environment, and a modest rise in 
disposable incomes, which led to a pick-up in consumer 
FRQŵGHQFH��SDUWLFXODUO\�LQ�WKH�IRXUWK�TXDUWHU�RI�WKH�\HDU��
However, economic activity remained subdued and below 
potential in 2014 due to the prevailing high level of political 
polarization, the presidential vacuum, and paralyzed decision 
making within public institutions, in addition to chronic security 
breaches and the ongoing direct and indirect spillovers from 
WKH�6\ULDQ�FRQŶLFW��$OVR��WKH�ODFN�RI�DQ\�FUHGLEOH�DWWHPSW�DW�
implementing reforms, the weak rule of law, and the rising 
burden of the public sector on the private sector took their tolls 
on economic activity. 

7KH�/HEDQHVH�HFRQRP\�EHQHŵWHG�IURP�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQNőV�
USD 800 million stimulus package for 2014, which supported 
activity in several key sectors. In addition, several factors 
supported private consumption throughout the year. The 
LQŶRZ�RI�UHPLWWDQFHV�IURP�WKH�'LDVSRUD��HVWLPDWHG�DW�D�
record high of USD 9 billion in 2014, equivalent to 18% of 
GDP, sustained household spending on day-to-day needs. 
Also, the pass-through to local consumers of the 50% 
drop in global oil prices in the second half of the year, the 
Telecommunications Ministry’s decision in July to reduce 
WDULIIV�E\������DQG�VXEGXHG�LQŶDWLRQ�UDLVHG�WKH�GLVSRVDEOH�
income of households. 

Still, the economy performed at a sub-par level in 2014, with 
FRQVXPSWLRQ��WUDGH��WRXULVP��FDSLWDO�ŶRZV�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�
indicators all pointing to continuing anemic economic activity. 
$V�D�UHVXOW��ERWK�FRQVXPHU�FRQŵGHQFH�DQG�LQYHVWRU�VHQWLPHQW�
remained at low levels throughout the year despite modest 
improvements. The economy expanded by 1.2% in real terms 
\HDU�RQ�\HDU�LQ�WKH�ŵUVW�TXDUWHU�RI�WKH�\HDU��JUHZ�E\������LQ�WKH�
second quarter, accelerated by 1.9% in the third quarter, and 
picked up by 2% in the fourth quarter. As such, real GDP grew by 
1.7% in 2014 compared to 1.4% in 2013. 
 

REAL SECTORS
 
The Central Bank’s Coincident Indicator, a proxy for overall 
economic activity in Lebanon, averaged 273.2 in 2014 compared 
WR�������LQ�������DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI������\HDU�RQ�\HDU��ZKLFK�UHŶHFWV�
modest economic growth in real terms. 

Consumer sentiment recovered during 2014 from a record-low 
OHYHO�LQ�������7KH�%\EORV�%DQN�$8%�&RQVXPHU�&RQŵGHQFH�,QGH[�
DYHUDJHG������LQ�������UHŶHFWLQJ�D�ULVH�RI�������IRU�WKH�\HDU�
DQG�FRQVWLWXWLQJ�WKH�ŵUVW�DQQXDO�ULVH�VLQFH�������,Q�FRPSDULVRQ��

the Index posted declines of 10.7% in 2013 and 37.1% in 2012. 
The increase in consumer sentiment in 2014 is due in part to 
low-base effects and does not denote a reversal of trends, as 
the Index started from a record low in 2013, while the 2014 
results still constitute a drop of 65% from the peak year of 2009. 
Indeed, the full-year results constituted the Index’s third-lowest 
level since its inception, and they remained consistent with the 
ongoing trend of low consumer sentiment in the country that 
KDV�SUHYDLOHG�VLQFH�WKH�ŵUVW�TXDUWHU�RI������
 
7KH�PDLQ�IDFWRUV�WKDW�KDG�D�SRVLWLYH�HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�FRQŵGHQFH�
of Lebanese households during the year were the formation 
of a new Cabinet in mid-February after more than 10 months 
of political deadlock; the relative improvement in security 
conditions; the rise in the purchasing power of households 
due to external and domestic factors; the announcement of 
dialogues among rival political parties; and the launch of a food 
safety campaign by the Ministry of Public Health.    

In contrast, the main factors that had a negative impact on 
consumer sentiment in 2014 were the failure of the Lebanese 
Parliament to elect a President by the 25 May constitutional 
deadline; the ensuing presidential vacuum and resulting 
institutional paralysis; the persisting high level of political 
uncertainties in the country; the ongoing direct and indirect 
VSLOORYHUV�IURP�WKH�6\ULDQ�FRQŶLFW��VHFXULW\�EUHDFKHV�LQ�YDULRXV�
parts of the country; and the abduction of military and security 
personnel by terrorist groups. 

The Byblos Bank/AUB Present Situation Index was consistently 
higher than the Byblos Bank/AUB Expectations Index during 
2014, which shows that consumers were relatively more 
pessimistic about the future than about present circumstances. 
Overall, political uncertainties and security-related issues 
dominated consumers’ concerns during the year. But other 
persisting issues such as the inability of authorities to satisfy 
citizens’ basic needs, decaying public services, the weak rule of 
law, job insecurity, and economic stagnation resonated strongly 
among consumers. 

REAL ESTATE SECTOR
 
The real estate market, which contributes nearly 14% of 
economic output in the country, continued to be affected by 
the prevailing uncertainties and economic slowdown, despite 
anecdotal data that suggest a slight improvement in the 
sector’s activity. 

Byblos Bank’s real estate indices point to a generalized 
slowdown in activity in the sector. The Byblos Bank Real Estate 
'HPDQG�,QGH[��ZKLFK�UHŶHFWV�/HEDQHVH�UHVLGHQWVő�SODQV�WR�
buy or build a home over the near term, regressed by 30% 
in 2014 to its lowest level on record. But the Central Bank’s 
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THE LEBANESE ECONOMY IN 2014

stimulus package and a multitude of ongoing subsidy programs 
for housing loans prevented demand from sliding further, as 
outstanding mortgages increased by USD 1.34 billion during 
the year to reach USD 9.9 billion at the end of 2014.  Also, 
WKH�%\EORV�%DQN�5HDO�(VWDWH�6XSSO\�,QGH[��ZKLFK�UHŶHFWV�
Lebanese residents’ plans to sell real estate over the near term, 
regressed by 25% in 2014, posting its lowest level since the 
Index’s inception. In parallel, the average value of real estate 
transactions was USD 126,387 in 2014, down by 1.4% from USD 
128,201 in 2013. 

TOURISM SECTOR
 
The tourism sector, a main driver of economic activity in the 
country, recovered slightly in 2014, but continued to suffer 
from domestic security breaches and regional turmoil. The 
number of incoming tourists to Lebanon totaled 1.35 million in 
2014, an increase of 6.3% from about 1.27 million in 2013, but 
constituting a decline of 37% from the peak of 2.13 million in 
2010. The increase in 2014 was mainly due to low-base effects, 
Iraqi nationals escaping deteriorating security conditions in their 
country, and an improvement of security conditions in the fourth 
quarter of the year. 

Arab tourists accounted for 34% of total visitors in 2014, 
followed by those from European countries (33%), the Americas 
(16.6%), Asia (8.4%), Africa (4.1%), and Oceania (3.8%). The 
number of visitors from Arab countries increased by 14.6% in 
2014, followed by those from Oceania (+12.7%), the Americas 
(+7.2%), and Europe (+3.2%); the number of tourists from 
African countries decreased by 14.2% year-on-year, while  the 
ŵJXUH�IRU�$VLDQ�FRXQWULHV�IHOO�E\�������2Q�D�FRXQWU\�EDVLV��YLVLWRUV�
from Iraq accounted for 14% of the total in 2014, followed by 
those from France (8.9%), the United States (8.4%), Canada 
(5.8%), Jordan (5.4%) and Egypt (5.1%). Also, the number of 
tourists from Iraq rose by 33%, followed by visitors from the 
UAE (+14.2%), Saudi Arabia (+11.8%), Germany (+11.2%), Italy 
(+11.1%), and the United States (+10.2%); the number of visitors 
from Turkey declined by 32.3% year-on-year, followed by those 
from Venezuela (-23.5%) and Jordan (-5.4%). 

Also, the average occupancy rate at hotels in Beirut was 52% in 
2014, unchanged from 2013 and constituting the fourth lowest 
rate among Arab markets. The average rate per room at Beirut 
hotels was USD 165 in 2014, ranking the capital’s hotels as the 
third least expensive in the region. The average rate per room 
at Beirut hotels decreased by 2.7% year-on-year, the second 
steepest decrease among all markets in the region. Further, 
revenues per available room reached USD 86 in Beirut in 2014, 
falling by 2.8% year-on-year, the second steepest decrease 
among Arab markets. Overall, the travel and tourism’s sector’s 
total contribution to GDP in Lebanon rose by 6.9% in real terms 
in 2014, following declines of 6% in 2013, 3.7% in 2012 and of 
15.1% in 2011.

EXTERNAL SECTOR
 
7KH�EDODQFH�RI�SD\PHQWV�SRVWHG�D�GHŵFLW�RI�86'�����ELOOLRQ�
LQ�������FRQVWLWXWLQJ�WKH�IRXUWK�FRQVHFXWLYH�DQQXDO�GHŵFLW��
7KH�FXPXODWLYH�GHŵFLW�LQ������ZDV�FDXVHG�E\�D�GHŵFLW�RI�86'�
����ELOOLRQ�LQ�WKH�QHW�IRUHLJQ�DVVHWV�RI�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions, and was partly offset by a surplus of USD 3.8 billion 
LQ�WKRVH�RI�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN��7KH�SHUVLVWHQW�GHŵFLW�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�
RI�SD\PHQWV�UHŶHFWV�VORZLQJ�FDSLWDO�LQŶRZV�DQG�LQFUHDVLQJ�
H[WHUQDO�ŵQDQFLQJ�QHHGV��

7KH�FXUUHQW�DFFRXQW�GHŵFLW�QDUURZHG�IURP�����RI�*'3�LQ������
to 22% of GDP in 2014. Imports declined due to subdued 
domestic demand, lower commodity prices, and a stronger US 
Dollar that reduced the import bills from the Eurozone and other 
countries whose currencies weakened against the dollar. The 
VHUYLFH�EDODQFH�LPSURYHG��GULYHQ�E\�ŵQDQFLDO�VHUYLFHV�DQG�E\�
VSHQGLQJ�IURP�D�VLJQLŵFDQW�QXPEHU�RI�XQUHJLVWHUHG�UHIXJHHV��
mainly Syrians and Iraqis who are treated as non-residents. 

7KH�WUDGH�GHŵFLW�UHDFKHG�86'������ELOOLRQ�LQ�������D�GHFUHDVH�
of 0.6% year-on-year, as the value of imports decreased by 
3.5% to USD 20.5 billion, and the value of exports fell by 15.8% 
to USD 3.3 billion. Imports of oil and mineral fuels fell by 4.4% 
year-on-year to USD 4.9 billion, while non-hydrocarbon imports 
regressed by 3.2% to USD 15.6 billion. Also, the volume of 
imports reached 15.5 million tons in 2014, constituting a drop of 
2.6% from 2013, while exports posted a 19.5% decrease to 2.2 
million tons in the covered period. 

FISCAL SITUATION
 
/HEDQRQőV�SXEOLF�ŵQDQFH�LPEDODQFHV�SHUVLVWHG�LQ������GHVSLWH�
WKH�QDUURZLQJ�RI�WKH�ŵVFDO�GHŵFLW�E\�����SHUFHQWDJH�SRLQWV�RI�
GDP. Budget and Treasury expenditures increased by 2.3% to 
USD 14 billion in 2014, while total revenues rose by 15.5% to 
86'������ELOOLRQ��ZKLFK�QDUURZHG�WKH�ŵVFDO�GHŵFLW�E\�������WR�
86'�����ELOOLRQ�LQ�������7KH�GHŵFLW�ZDV�HTXLYDOHQW�WR�����RI�
total budget and Treasury expenditures compared to 31% of 
RYHUDOO�VSHQGLQJ�LQ�������$V�VXFK��WKH�GHŵFLW�QDUURZHG�IURP�
9.3% of GDP in 2013 to 6.5% of GDP in 2014, driven by one-time 
factors rather than by policy actions.

Tax revenues grew by 2.7% to USD 6.9 billion, or 14.5% 
of GDP, in 2014, due to a slight improvement in tax 
administration, given that receipts from the value-added tax 
UHPDLQHG�ŶDW�\HDU�RQ�\HDU�RQ�WKH�EDFN�RI�VXEGXHG�HFRQRPLF�
activity, and that customs revenues fell by 5.4% to USD 1.4 
billion. However, non-tax budgetary receipts rose by USD 720 
million, or 33.2%, to USD 2.9 billion, or 6% of GDP, due to 
the collection of arrears from previous years, which consisted 
of receipts from the Telecommunications Ministry that had 
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THE LEBANESE ECONOMY IN 2014

been withheld by previous ministers. Indeed, the ministry 
transferred USD 853 million in telecom arrears and USD 
1.16 billion in realized telecom surplus in 2014. In addition, 
Treasury receipts grew from 1.1% of GDP in 2013 to 2.3% 
of GDP in 2014, given that the Finance Ministry collected 
telecom revenues on behalf of municipalities.        

Further, current expenditures accounted for more than 90% 
of aggregate public spending, and consisted mainly of wages 
and salaries, debt servicing, and subsidies to the money-losing 
Electricité du Liban. Debt servicing increased by 10% year-on-
year to USD 4.4 billion, or 9.3% of GDP, accounting for 31.4% 
of total expenditures and for 35.7% of budgetary spending. It 
absorbed 40.3% of overall revenues and 44.8% of budgetary 
UHFHLSWV��7KH�ULVH�LQ�GHEW�VHUYLFLQJ�FRVWV�LQ������UHŶHFWV�
WKH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�FRVW�RI�ŵQDQFLQJ�WKH�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�GHEW�
denominated in Lebanese Pounds. Also, Treasury transfers to 
Electricité du Liban rose by 3.3% to USD 2.1 billion, equivalent to 
4.4% of GDP. Excluding debt servicing, public spending fell by 
0.9% to USD 9.6 billion in 2014.

7KH�SULPDU\�ŵVFDO�EDODQFH�ZDV�HTXLYDOHQW�WR������RI�*'3�LQ�
�����FRPSDUHG�WR�D�GHŵFLW�HTXDO�WR������RI�*'3�LQ�������
FRQVWLWXWLQJ�WKH�ŵUVW�VXFK�VXUSOXV�VLQFH�������:KHQ�H[FOXGLQJ�
telecom arrears, public revenues rose by 6.4% to USD 10 billion, 
ZKLOH�WKH�ŵVFDO�GHŵFLW�QDUURZHG�E\����WR�86'�����ELOOLRQ�LQ�������
which is equivalent to 28.1% of expenditures. Excluding telecom 
DUUHDUV��WKH�ŵVFDO�GHŵFLW�UHDFKHG������RI�*'3��ZKLOH�WKH�SULPDU\�
surplus narrowed to 1% of GDP. 

In parallel, Lebanon’s public debt dynamics deteriorated slightly 
in 2014, as the debt level increased from 139.9% of GDP in 
2013 to 140.1% of GDP in 2014, constituting the ratio’s third 
consecutive annual increase. The gross public debt reached USD 
�����ELOOLRQ�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�������UHŶHFWLQJ�DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI������
from end-2013 and compared to increases of 10% in 2013 and 
7.5% in 2012. In nominal terms, the gross public debt grew by 
USD 3.1 billion in 2014 relative to increases of USD 5.8 billion 
in 2013 and USD 4 billion in 2012. Domestic debt increased by 
9.7% to USD 41 billion, while debt in foreign currency decreased 
by 2% to USD 25.6 billion at the end of the year. Foreign 
currency-denominated debt represented 38.5% of gross public 
debt at the end of 2014, relative to 41.1% at the end of 2013. 

Commercial banks accounted for 51% of the local public debt 
at the end of 2014 compared to 53.1% a year earlier. They were 
followed by the Central Bank with 32.2%, up from 30.5% at 
HQG�������ZKLOH�SXEOLF�DJHQFLHV��ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�WKH�
public accounted for 16.9% of local debt compared to 16.4% at 
the end of 2013. Eurobond holders, foreign private sector loans 
and special T-bills in foreign currencies accounted for 90.8% of 
the external debt, followed by foreign governments with 4.8%; 
multilateral institutions with 4.2%; and Paris II loans with 0.3%. 
The net public debt, which excludes public sector deposits at the 
&HQWUDO�%DQN�DQG�DW�FRPPHUFLDO�EDQNV�IURP�RYHUDOO�GHEW�ŵJXUHV��

increased by 7.7% to USD 57.3 billion at end-2014. Also, the 
gross market debt accounted for about 65% of total public debt. 
Gross market debt is the total public debt less the portfolios of 
the Central Bank, the National Social Security Fund, bilateral and 
multilateral loans, as well as Paris II- and Paris III-related debt.

CAPITAL MARKETS
 
EQUITIES
The Beirut stock market continued to suffer from low liquidity 
DQG�D�ODFN�RI�LQWHUHVW�IURP�SULYDWHO\�KHOG�ŵUPV�LQ�OLVWLQJ�WKHLU�
shares. But it was the ninth best performer among 20 markets 
in the Arab world, with the Banque du Liban Stock Market Index 
rising by 3.8% compared to a 3.2% rise for Arab markets overall. 
Further, its market capitalization was equivalent to 23.6% of GDP, 
third lowest among 13 markets in the region, and accounted for 
about 1% of the aggregate market capitalization of Arab equity 
markets. Total trading volume on the Beirut Stock Exchange 
reached 96.8 million shares in 2014, constituting an increase of 
88.3% from 2013, while aggregate turnover amounted to USD 
661.4 million, up 76.3% from a turnover of USD 375.2 million in 
the preceding year. Market capitalization increased by 6.4% from 
end-2013 to USD 11.2 billion, of which 80.1% was in banking 
stocks and 16.7% in real estate stocks. The market liquidity ratio 
was 5.9% compared to 3.6% in 2013. 

Bank stocks accounted for 92.3% of aggregate trading volume 
in 2014, followed by real estate stocks with 7.5%. In terms of the 
value of shares traded, banking stocks accounted for 82.6% of 
the aggregate value, followed by real estate stocks with 13.7%. 
The average daily traded volume for 2014 was 396,682 shares 
IRU�DQ�DYHUDJH�GDLO\�YDOXH�RI�86'�����PLOOLRQ��7KH�ŵJXUHV�UHŶHFW�
increases of 84.4% in volume and 72.7% in value year-on-year.

FIXED INCOME 
Lebanon’s external debt posted a return of 8.8% in 2014, 
constituting the 16th highest return among 41 markets in the 
Central, Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Africa (CEEMEA) 
region, as well as the 39th highest return among the 73 
emerging markets included in Merrill Lynch’s External Debt EM 
Sovereign Index. Lebanon outperformed the overall emerging 
markets return of 7.8% in 2014, and posted the 10th highest 
returns among 23 countries in the Middle East and Africa region. 

In April 2014 the Lebanese Republic executed a voluntary debt 
exchange offer of Eurobonds maturing in 2014 for new and 
longer-dated notes, while also issuing additional notes for the 
reopening and increasing of an already-existing issue for cash. 
The exchange offer and additional notes resulted in aggregate 
new issues of USD 1.4 billion. Foreign investors represented 
about 25% of total subscribers on both tranches. 

$OVR��WKH�/HEDQHVH�3DUOLDPHQW�UDWLŵHG�D�ODZ�RQ���1RYHPEHU�
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2014 that allows the government to issue up to USD 2.5 
billion in foreign currency debt. The Parliament had to raise 
the ceiling on foreign currency borrowing in order for the 
government to borrow externally after it reached its limit, and 
to reduce the government’s reliance on the Central Bank for 
LWV�ŵQDQFLQJ�QHHGV�

RISK METRICS
 
6SUHDGV�RQ�ŵYH�\HDU�FUHGLW�GHIDXOW�VZDSV��&'6V��IRU�/HEDQRQ�
ended 2014 at 397 basis points, almost unchanged from 395bps 
DW�WKH�HQG�RI�������%XW�WKH�VSUHDGV�ŶXFWXDWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��
DV�WKH\�QDUURZHG�E\����ESV�LQ�WKH�ŵUVW�TXDUWHU�DQG�E\�����ESV�
in the second quarter, and widened by 15.2bps in the third 
TXDUWHU�DQG�E\�����ESV�LQ�WKH�IRXUWK�TXDUWHU��/HEDQRQőV�ŵYH�
year CDS spreads were the eighth widest among 73 developed 
and emerging countries at the end of 2014. Moreover, Lebanon 
HQGHG������ZLWK�D�ŵYH�\HDU�FXPXODWLYH�SUREDELOLW\�RI�GHIDXOW�
(CPD) of 25.3%, nearly unchanged from 25.15% at the end of 
2013. Lebanon’s CPD at end-2014 indicated that Lebanese debt 
was the ninth riskiest in the world.

Rating agencies took actions following mounting political risks, 
EXW�WKH\�UHPDLQ�FRQŵGHQW�LQ�WKH�UHVLOLHQF\�RI�WKH�EDQNLQJ�VHFWRU��
On 16 December 2014, Moody’s Investors Service downgraded 
Lebanon’s government bond ratings to ‘B2’ from ‘B1’ and kept 
the outlook at ‘negative’. Moody’s attributed the downgrade to a 
rise in Lebanon’s public debt level and to the effects of spillovers 
IURP�WKH�6\ULDQ�FRQŶLFW�RQ�SROLWLFDO�VWDELOLW\��RQ�HFRQRPLF�DFWLYLW\�
DQG�RQ�SXEOLF�ŵQDQFHV��,W�VWDWHG�WKDW�LW�ZRXOG�UHYLVH�WKH�RXWORRN�
to ‘stable’ if the debt metrics stopped their deterioration, and if 
WKH�ULVNV�RI�SROLWLFDO�VSLOORYHUV�IURP�WKH�6\ULDQ�FRQŶLFW�UHFHGHG�

2Q����'HFHPEHU�������)LWFK�5DWLQJV�DIŵUPHG�/HEDQRQőV�ORQJ�
term foreign and local currency Issuer Default Ratings (IDR) and 
VKRUW�WHUP�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�,'5�DW�Ő%ő��,W�DOVR�DIŵUPHG�DW�Ő%ő�WKH�
issue ratings on Lebanon’s senior unsecured foreign and local 
currency bonds, and maintained the outlook on the long-term 
,'5V�DW�ŐQHJDWLYHő��)XUWKHU��LW�DIŵUPHG�WKH�&RXQWU\�&HLOLQJ�DW�Ő%ő��
7KH�DJHQF\�VDLG�WKDW�/HEDQRQőV�UDWLQJV�UHŶHFW�WKH�KLJK�DQG�ULVLQJ�
public debt level, elevated political and geopolitical risks, as 
well as a credible exchange rate policy, a well-managed banking 
system, and high levels of human development and GDP per 
capita. The agency added that it could revise the outlook to 
ŐVWDEOHő�LI�FRQŵGHQFH�LQ�WKH�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�RI�WKH�GRPHVWLF�SROLWLFDO�
situation improved, overall security risks associated with the Syrian 
FRQŶLFW�GHFUHDVHG��RU�HFRQRPLF�SHUIRUPDQFH�DPHOLRUDWHG�

On 11 April 2014, Standard & Poor’s revised the outlook on 
Lebanon’s long-term sovereign credit ratings to ‘stable’ from 
ŐQHJDWLYHő�DQG�DIŵUPHG�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�IRUHLJQ�DQG�ORFDO�FXUUHQF\�
sovereign credit ratings at ‘B-’ and the short-term foreign and 

local currency sovereign credit ratings at ‘B’. It also maintained 
the country’s transfer and convertibility assessment at ‘B+’, senior 
unsecured debt rating at ‘B-’, and short-term debt at ‘B’. The 
agency attributed the change in outlook to the sustained deposit 
LQŶRZV�LQWR�WKH�/HEDQHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�V\VWHP�WKDW�ZRXOG�DOORZ�WKH�
JRYHUQPHQW�WR�PHHW�LWV�ŵQDQFLQJ�QHHGV�LQ������GHVSLWH�WKH�
GLIŵFXOW�LQWHUQDO�DQG�H[WHUQDO�SROLWLFDO�HQYLURQPHQWV�

MONETARY SITUATION
 
The Central Bank’s gross foreign currency reserves reached USD 
32.4 billion at the end of 2014, constituting an increase of USD 
0.7 billion, or 2.2%, from USD 31.7 billion a year earlier. They 
were equivalent to about 66.5% of money supply (M2) and to 
about 11 months’ worth of imports, well above the four-month 
reference and a high level by emerging market standards. As in 
SUHYLRXV�\HDUV��ODUJH�FDSLWDO�LQŶRZV��PRVWO\�EDQN�UHODWHG��KDYH�
PRUH�WKDQ�ŵQDQFHG�WKH�FXUUHQW�DFFRXQW�GHŵFLW��OHDGLQJ�WR�IXUWKHU�
DFFXPXODWLRQ�RI�RIŵFLDO�UHVHUYHV��)XUWKHU��WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQNőV�
overall assets in foreign currency increased by USD 2.6 billion in 
2014 to reach USD 37.9 billion at the end of the year. The value 
of the Central Bank’s gold reserves reached USD 10.95 billion 
at the end of 2014, constituting a decrease of 1.4% from end-
2013. The Central Bank’s combined assets in gold and foreign 
currencies at the end of the year were equivalent to about 
102.8% of GDP.

INFLATION
 
7KH�LQŶDWLRQ�UDWH�DYHUDJHG������LQ������FRPSDUHG�WR������LQ�
2013, according to the Central Administration of Statistics. The 
GHFHOHUDWLRQ�RI�LQŶDWLRQ�ZDV�GXH�WR�WKH�����GHFOLQH�LQ�WDULIIV�
on mobile phone and internet services, and to the decline 
in transportation costs from the drop in global oil prices. But 
even when excluding telecommunication and transportation, 
WKH�DQQXDO�LQŶDWLRQ�UDWH�ZDV�VWLOO�������LQ�������7KLV�UHŶHFWV�
ZHDN�GRPHVWLF�GHPDQG��ZKLFK�FRQWDLQHG�ORFDO�LQŶDWLRQ��DV�
well as the strengthening of the US Dollar, which reduced 
LPSRUWHG�LQŶDWLRQ�

BANKING SECTOR
 
The banking sector continued to face a challenging operating 
environment in 2014 due to several converging factors, 
including the slow economic activity in Lebanon, domestic 
political uncertainties, the Syrian crisis and its direct spillovers 
in Lebanon, tight margins, fewer lending opportunities 
domestically and abroad, historic-low global interest rates, and 
the still-elevated borrowing needs of the Lebanese government. 
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Commercial bank assets reached USD 175.7 billion at the end 
of 2014, constituting an increase of 6.6% from end-2013 and 
relative to increases of 8.5% in 2013 and 8% in 2012. The sector’s 
aggregate assets were equivalent to 370% of GDP, one of the 
KLJKHVW�VXFK�UDWLRV�LQ�WKH�ZRUOG��ZKLFK�UHŶHFWV�WKH�FRQWLQXLQJ�
ability of the banking sector to meet the borrowing needs of 
both the private and public sectors, as well as to maintain high 
levels of liquidity and capitalization. Deposits of the private 
QRQ�ŵQDQFLDO�VHFWRU�WRWDOHG�86'�������ELOOLRQ��DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI�
USD 8.2 billion or 6% from end-2013, relative to an increase 
of USD 11.2 billion or 9% in 2013. Private sector deposits were 
equivalent to 304% of GDP, one of the highest such ratios in the 
world. Deposits in Lebanese Pounds reached USD 49.5 billion, 
up 7.4% from end-2013 and compared to an increase of 4.9% 
in 2013, while deposits in foreign currencies totaled USD 94.9 
billion, rising by 5.4% from end-2013 and relative to an increase 
of 11.2% in 2013. Non-resident foreign currency deposits totaled 
USD 26.4 billion at end-2014, an increase of 5.3% from end-
2013 relative to a rise of 20.9% in 2013. The dollarization rate of 
deposits reached 65.7% at end-2014, down from 66.1% a year 
earlier. The average deposit rate in Lebanese Pounds reached 
5.52% in 2014, ranging from a low rate of 5.47%  to a high of 
5.58%. The same rate in US Dollars averaged 3.03% in 2014, 
with a monthly low rate of 2.95% and a high of 3.13%, compared 
to 2.92% in 2013. In parallel, deposits of non-resident banks 
reached USD 5.8 billion, rising 16.4% from end-2013. Broad 
money supply (M3) grew by 5.9% in 2014, down from a growth 
rate of 6.9% posted in 2013. 

Loans to the private sector totaled USD 50.9 billion at the end 
of 2014, an increase of USD 3.5 billion, or 7.4%, from end-2013, 
relative to a rise of USD 3.9 billion, or 9%, in 2013. Lending to the 
resident private sector grew 9.3% from end-2013 to reach USD 
45.36 billion, while credit to the non-resident private sector fell 
5.9% to USD 5.53 billion. As such, credit to the resident private 
sector was equivalent to 95.5% of GDP in 2014. The dollarization 
rate in private sector lending reached 75.6% at end-2014, down 
from 76.5% a year earlier. The average lending rate in Lebanese 
Pounds was 7.27% in 2014, ranging from a low rate of 6.96% and 
a high of 7.49%, and compared to 7.35% in 2013. The same rate 
in US Dollars averaged 6.95% in 2014, with a monthly low rate of 
6.82% and a high of 7.04%, and compared to an average rate of 
6.96% in the preceding year. Claims on the public sector stood 
at USD 37.4 billion, down 0.9% year-on-year and accounting for 
about 37% of the banking sector’s total claims. Rating agencies 
continued to restrain banks’ ratings to the sovereign ceiling, 
citing the banks’ elevated exposure to the sovereign as their 
most important risk factor. 

The banks’ capital base stood at USD 15.73 billion at the end of 
2014, up by 10.8% from a year earlier, with core capital rising 
by 11.9% to USD 14.6 billion. The ratio of private sector loans to 

deposits in foreign currencies stood at 40.5% at end-2014, well 
below the Central Bank’s limit of 70%, and compared to 40.3% 
a year earlier. In parallel, the same ratio in Lebanese Pounds was 
25.1%, up from 24.1% at end-2013. The ratio of total private 
sector loans to deposits was 35.2% at end-2014, up from 34.8% 
a year earlier. 

The aggregate net income of the top 14 banks operating in 
Lebanon was USD 1.87 billion in 2014, up by 9.1% from 2013. 
Also, the top banks’ return on average assets was 1.01% and 
their return on average equity reached 11.55% in 2014. Further, 
the banks’ cost-to-income ratio was nearly unchanged year-on-
year at 50% in 2014.

Unless there is a major breakthrough in the domestic political 
situation, the operating environment for Lebanese banks is 
likely to remain challenging over the short-to-medium term due 
to political instability, weak economic growth, and the slower 
performance of various economic sectors that are important to 
the banks’ asset quality. However, the sector will remain solid, 
KLJKO\�OLTXLG�DQG�DEOH�WR�PHHW�WKH�ŵQDQFLQJ�QHHGV�RI�WKH�SULYDWH�
and public sectors as long as deposits continue to increase.

THE GLOBAL AND REGIONAL ECONOMIES 
IN 2014
 
Following several years of subdued growth, the global economy 
is still struggling to gain momentum as many high-income 
FRXQWULHV�FRQWLQXH�WR�WDFNOH�OHJDFLHV�RI�WKH�JOREDO�ŵQDQFLDO�FULVLV��
and as emerging economies are less dynamic than they were in 
the past. The global economy grew by 3.4% in 2014, unchanged 
from 2013, as a modest recovery in the Eurozone and a pick-up 
in India helped offset slowdowns in China and Japan. Economic 
growth in advanced economies improved to a modest 1.8% last 
year from 1.4% in 2013, partly driven by lower oil prices and 
accommodative monetary policy stances. In addition, growth 
in emerging market economies slowed in 2014, due in part to 
lower commodity prices and exports, weak external demand, 
domestic policy tightening, political uncertainties, and supply-
side constraints. Emerging economies grew by an estimated 
4.6% in 2014 relative to a growth rate of 5% in 2013. In parallel, 
WKH�86�'ROODU�,QGH[�DSSUHFLDWHG�E\�������LQ�������UHŶHFWLQJ�WKH�
strengthening of the US Dollar against a basket of currencies. 
The stronger dollar had a positive impact on the global economy 
in 2014, as it effectively transferred demand from the US 
economy to economies around the word.    

The economies of both the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) 
DQG�6XE�6DKDUDQ�$IULFD��66$��UHJLRQV�DUH�RI�SDUWLFXODU�VLJQLŵFDQFH�
to the Lebanese economy due the latter’s strong trade and 
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ŵQDQFLDO�OLQNV�WR�*XOI�$UDE�PDUNHWV�LQ�SDUWLFXODU��DV�ZHOO�DV�WR�LWV�
dependence on the Diaspora and to the activity of Lebanese 
banks in the two regions. Following years of turmoil, some 
economies in the MENA region appear to be stabilizing, although 
growth was fragile and uneven in 2014. Growth in oil-importing 
FRXQWULHV�ZDV�EURDGO\�ŶDW�LQ�������ZKLOH�DFWLYLW\�LQ�RLO�H[SRUWLQJ�
economies recovered slightly after contracting in 2013. 

Economic growth in the MENA region was moderate at 2.4% 
LQ������DPLG�GHFOLQLQJ�RLO�SULFHV��LQWHQVLI\LQJ�FRQŶLFWV��DQG�
continued policy uncertainty. The 50% drop in oil prices in the 
VHFRQG�KDOI�RI������ZHDNHQHG�WKH�H[WHUQDO�DQG�ŵVFDO�EDODQFHV�
RI�WKH�UHJLRQőV�RLO�H[SRUWHUV��,QGHHG��WKH�ŵVFDO�VXUSOXV�RI�WKH�
MENA region’s oil exporters declined from 5% of GDP in 2013 
to 0.3% of GDP in 2014, while the current account surplus 
UHJUHVVHG�IURP�������RI�*'3�WR������,Q�SDUWLFXODU��WKH�ŵVFDO�
surplus of Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) countries declined 
from 12.1% of GDP in 2013 to 4.6% of GDP in 2014, and the 
current account surplus narrowed from 20.6% of GDP to 16.5% 
of GDP. In contrast, the sharp drop in oil prices provided relief 
IRU�WKH�UHJLRQőV�RLO�LPSRUWHUV��,Q�IDFW��WKH�ŵVFDO�GHŵFLW�RI�RLO�
importers narrowed from 10.5% of GDP in 2013 to 9.8% in 2014, 
ZKLOH�WKH�FXUUHQW�DFFRXQW�GHŵFLW�UHJUHVVHG�IURP������RI�*'3�WR�
5.5% of GDP. 

Since the “Arab Spring” began in 2011, many Arab countries 
have been in political turmoil, which has disrupted economic 
activity in the region. There has been progress on the political 
transition in Tunisia and greater stability in Egypt in 2014. Also, 
RIŵFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH�IURP�WKH�*&&�FRXQWULHV�KHOSHG�LPSURYH�
FRQVXPSWLRQ�DQG�LQYHVWRU�FRQŵGHQFH��DQG�LQFUHDVHG�LQYHVWPHQW�
in Jordan and Egypt. The domestic environments in Iraq, Libya 
DQG�6\ULD�FRQWLQXHG�WR�EH�KLQGHUHG�E\�YLROHQW�FRQŶLFWV��DQG�
spillovers from the Syrian crisis negatively affected activity, 
particularly in Lebanon and Jordan. The capture of large swaths 
of territory in Iraq and Syria by the Islamic State militant group 

raised security risks in an already fragile region. Real GDP growth 
of oil-importing Arab economies was 2.5% in 2014 compared 
to 2.7% in 2013, well below the historical average growth rate 
of about 5%. The subdued level of economic activity was mainly 
due to political uncertainty and security challenges that weighed 
on key growth drivers. 

In parallel, real GDP growth in the economies of the GCC was 
3.6% in 2014, unchanged from 2013. Hydrocarbon output grew 
by 0.8% in 2014 relative to a growth rate of 0.5% in 2013. Activity 
in the non-hydrocarbon sector expanded by 5.7% in 2014, down 
from 6.5% in 2013 but still supported by strong private sector 
activity. Further, economic activity in the region’s non-GCC oil 
exporters grew by 1% in 2014, compared to a growth rate of 
0.5% in 2013, as oil production stopped contracting. 

Economic growth in SSA was robust at 5% in 2014 relative to 
5.2% in 2013, driven by strong private consumption, and by 
solid investment in mining and infrastructure. Real GDP growth 
was down slightly from 2013 as SSA’s oil exporters began 
to adjust to the lower global oil prices. Economic activity in 
Guinea, Liberia, and Sierra Leone declined substantially in 2014 
due to the Ebola epidemic, which caused severe disruptions 
in agriculture and services, and the postponement of mining 
development projects.

Real GDP growth in SSA’s oil exporters accelerated to 5.8% in 
2014 from 5.7% in 2013, while activity in oil-importing countries 
decelerated to 4.4% last year from 4.8% in 2013. Also, the 
region’s low-income countries grew by 6.8% last year relative 
to 6.6% in 2013, while growth in middle-income economies 
slowed to 2.7% in 2014 from 3.6% in the preceding year. Most 
SSA countries have seen their exchange rates depreciate 
against the US Dollar since August 2014, in line with other 
emerging markets and developing countries. 
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Our History

(VWDEOLVKHG�LQ�-EHLO��%\EORV���/HEDQRQ��LQ�������WKH�%\EORV�%DQN�*URXS�LV�D�OHDGLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQ�IRFXVHG�RQ�WKH�GRPHVWLF�DQG�
selected overseas markets. After nearly six decades of consistent growth, Byblos Bank now has an extensive network of 79 branches 
spread evenly across Lebanon. The Group also has expanded to several other countries, including Armenia, Belgium, Cyprus, the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo, France, Iraq, Nigeria, Sudan, Syria, the United Arab Emirates, and the United Kingdom. 

Our Strategic Goals

The focus of Byblos Bank’s strategy is to build on our leading position in the Lebanese market while diversifying into foreign ones. To do 
this, we strive to be a full-service bank providing comprehensive solutions for our customers in consumer banking, commercial banking, 
capital markets, correspondent banking, and assorted advisory services.

Our Major Lines of Business

Ř�  Consumer Banking
Ř�  Commercial Banking
Ř�  Correspondent Banking
Ř�  Financial Markets

Our Values

Ř�  Integrity
Ř�  Customer Focus
Ř�  Teamwork
Ř�  Performance

Our Mission

“Byblos Bank Group is a universal institution that is focused on the domestic and regional markets while striving to offer world-class 
VHUYLFHV�WR�LWV�FXVWRPHUV��IXOŵOOPHQW�WR�LWV�HPSOR\HHV��DQG�HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵW�WR�WKH�FRPPXQLWLHV�LW�VHUYHV�Ŕ

Our Subsidiaries

Adonis Insurance and Reinsurance Co. S.A.L. (ADIR), Partnership 
with Natixis Assurances – France
ADIR is a subsidiary of Byblos Bank established in 1983. The 
FRPSDQ\�FRPELQHV�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDELOLW\�ZLWK�DQ�RQJRLQJ�TXHVW�IRU�
product innovation and an uncompromising commitment to its 
customers in terms of service, coverage, and proper handling of 
claims. ADIR provides a comprehensive range of standard and 
tailored insurance products to both individual and institutional 
FOLHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�OLIH��ŵUH��JHQHUDO�DFFLGHQW�DQG�PHGLFDO�FRYHUDJH��
among others. In 2001, Natixis Assurances, one of the leading 
EDQFDVVXUHUV�LQ�)UDQFH�DQG�DQ�DIŵOLDWH�RI�%DQTXH�3RSXODLUH�HW�
Caisse d’Epargne (BPCE), acquired a 34% stake in ADIR, with 
Byblos Bank retaining a controlling interest of 64%. The Group 
believes that the association with the French banking giant will 
continue to facilitate the offering of bancassurance services to 
Byblos Bank customers in Lebanon and other selected markets 
where ADIR seeks to forge local partnerships. 

Byblos Bank Europe S.A.
Founded in 1976, Byblos Bank Europe S.A. is headquartered in 
Brussels and has branches in London and Paris. Byblos Bank S.A.L. 
holds more than 99% of the shares in Byblos Bank Europe, which 
VSHFLDOL]HV�LQ�VKRUW�WHUP�WUDGH�ŵQDQFH�IRU�VHOHFWHG�H[SRUWLQJ�
companies in Europe and offers correspondent banking services 
in the Middle East and Africa. In addition, the Paris branch 
provides banking services to customers in French-speaking 
African countries, while the London branch serves clients in 
English-speaking countries on the same continent.

3URŵOH�RI�WKH�*URXS%\EORV�%DQN�6�$�/�
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Byblos Bank Africa
After three decades of prosperous business in Sudan via local 
banks and a selected customer base, the Group established 
Byblos Bank Africa in 2003. Operating under Islamic Sharia’a, 
Byblos Bank Africa’s main lines of business are commercial 
banking and correspondent banking. Following a capital 
increase in 2012, Byblos Bank S.A.L. remains the largest 
shareholder in Byblos Bank Africa (56.9%), followed by the OPEC 
Fund for International Development (17.5%) and the Islamic 
Corporation for the Development of the Private Sector (8.75%).

Byblos Invest Bank S.A.L.
Byblos Invest Bank was established in 2003 as a means of 
increasing medium- and long-term investment options for the 
Group’s customers. Under Lebanese law and the regulations of 
the Central Bank and the Banking Control Commission, Byblos 
Invest Bank is a specialized institution: its main objectives are to 
DOORZ�FXVWRPHUV�WR�EHQHŵW�IURP�DWWUDFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�RQ�WHUP�
deposits for periods longer than six months, and to provide 
medium-and long-term loans to new and expanding companies. 

Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C.
Founded in 2005, Byblos Bank Syria has developed a wide range 
of commercial, corporate and retail banking services to meet the 
needs of clients in the Syrian market. In 2011, Byblos Bank Syria 
successfully completed a capital increase to 6.12 billion Syrian 
Pounds (SYP), equivalent to 12,240,000 shares. In May 2012, a 
5:1 stock split was carried out, increasing the number of shares 
to 61,200,000 at SYP 100 per share. During 2014, Byblos Bank 
S.A.L. increased its ownership to 59.81%, while the OPEC Fund for 
International Development share was reduced to 0.065% and that 
of Syrian investors stood at 40.125%.

Adonis Insurance Company Syria S.A. (ADIR Syria)
In 2007, the Byblos Bank Group established Adonis Insurance 
Company Syria S.A. (ADIR Syria), a Syrian insurer with paid-up 
capital of USD 25 million. The main shareholders are Byblos Invest 
Bank S.A.L., Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C., and Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. S.A.L. (ADIR), together with approximately 
20 prominent Syrian businesspeople. The Company operates 
IURP�LWV�+HDG�2IŵFH�LQ�'DPDVFXV��WKURXJK�RIŵFHV�LQ�$OHSSR�
and Homs, and through the branch network of Byblos Bank 
Syria. ADIR Syria provides a broad range of insurance products 
underwritten in a conservative and prudent way.

Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C.
Following the 2007 acquisition of a 100% stake in International 
Trade Bank, the institution was renamed Byblos Bank Armenia 
and commenced operations in 2008 as the Group’s fourth 
overseas subsidiary. Byblos Bank S.A.L. holds 65% of Byblos Bank 
Armenia’s shares, while the European Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development (25%) and the OPEC Fund for International 
Development (10%) hold the remainder. With four branches 
Ŏ�WKUHH�RI�WKHP�LQ�WKH�FDSLWDO��<HUHYDQ�Ŏ�%\EORV�%DQN�$UPHQLD�
continues to develop products that address local needs.

Byblos Bank RDC S.A.
On 27 March 2010, Byblos Bank S.A.L. participated in the capital 
increase of Solidaire Banque Internationale, a bank incorporated 
in the Democratic Republic of the Congo. Byblos Bank S.A.L. 
became the major shareholder, with 66.67% of the shares, and 
acquired management control. Renamed Byblos Bank RDC, the 
Bank operates as an independent subsidiary of the Byblos Bank 
*URXS��ZLWK�LWV�+HDG�2IŵFH�LQ�.LQVKDVD�DQG�RQH�EUDQFK�LQ�WKH�
capital’s Gombe District. It provides mainly commercial lending, 
transfers and payments, letters of credit, letters of guarantee, and 
documentary collection services. 

3URŵOH�RI�WKH�*URXS%\EORV�%DQN�6�$�/�
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KEY DATES
Establishment of Société Commerciale

et Agricole Byblos Bassil Frères & Co.,

engaged in natural silk and leather tanning

and agricultural credit activities.
Company’s name changed to Société Bancaire

Agricole Byblos Bassil Frères & Co.

Establishment of Byblos Bank Europe in Brussels

(branches in Paris and London).

Acquisition of Bank of Nova Scotia’s Lebanon branch.

Acquisition of assets and liabilities

of ABN AMRO Bank N.V.’s Lebanon branch.

Commencement of Byblos Bank S.A.L. operations in Erbil, Iraq.

Opening of 75th branch of Byblos Bank S.A.L. in Lebanon.

Acquisition of Unicredit Banca Di Roma’s Lebanon branch.

Acquisition of 66.7% stake in Solidaire Banque Internationale,

a bank incorporated in the Democratic Republic of the Congo,

now renamed as Byblos Bank RDC S.A.

Acquisition of Banque Beyrouth pour le Commerce (BBC).

Listing of 30% of Byblos Bank’s shares on the Beirut Stock Exchange.

Company’s name changed to Byblos Bank S.A.L.

and registration with Central Bank of Lebanon.

Establishment of Adonis Insurance

and Reinsurance Co. S.A.L. (ADIR).

Full integration of the subsidiary in Europe

as Byblos Bank Europe S.A.

Acquisition of Wedge Bank Middle East’s Lebanon branch.

Acquisition of assets of ING Barings’ Lebanon branch.

Opening of Byblos Bank Africa 

in Khartoum, Sudan.

Acquisition of 100% stake in Armenia’s International

Trade Bank, renamed Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C. in 2008.

Listing on the London Stock Exchange. 

2SHQLQJ�RI�D�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH�2IŵFH�LQ�/DJRV��1LJHULD�

2SHQLQJ�RI�D�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH�2IŵFH�LQ�$EX�'KDEL��8$(�

Opening of Byblos Bank Syria S.A. (now Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C.).

3URŵOH�RI�WKH�*URXS%\EORV�%DQN�6�$�/�
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YEAR IN REVIEW

SURPASSING EXPECTATIONS

EXACTING MANAGEMENT YIELDS STRONG RESULTS 
DESPITE REGIONAL INSTABILITY

Byblos Bank recorded another solid year in 2014, once 
DJDLQ�GHPRQVWUDWLQJ�WKH�SRZHU�RI�LWV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�WR�ŵQG�
opportunity amid challenging conditions. In a fourth consecutive 
year of political gridlock at home and multiple crises abroad, 
WKH�%DQN�SRVWHG�VWURQJ�ŵJXUHV�DFURVV�WKH�ERDUG��,QFUHDVHV�ZHUH�
DFKLHYHG�LQ�DVVHWV��GHSRVLWV��ORDQV��DQG�SURŵWV��DQG�FRQWLQXHG�
to beat both local regulatory requirements and international 
standards, maintaining healthy ratios for liquidity, capital 
adequacy, and non-performing loans.     

These results are the product of a long-term commitment to 
prudent management that both delivers steady performance 
DQG�SUHVHUYHV�RXU�FDSLWDO�EDVH��:KLOH�WKH�%DQN�ZDV�JUDWLŵHG�DW�
its achievements in 2014, therefore, it also remained focused 
RQ�WKH�SROLFLHV�DQG�SUDFWLFHV�WKDW�PDGH�WKHP�SRVVLEOH�Ŏ�DQG�RQ�
doing even better in the future. As such, we continued to achieve 
the right numbers in terms of critical performance ratios, to 
identify and implement process improvements, and to increase 
service quality.

This devotion to constant self-improvement has allowed Byblos 
Bank to advance the interests of all stakeholders despite multiple 
IRUPV�RI�DGYHUVLW\��7KH�VDPH�GLOLJHQFH�JLYHV�XV�FRQŵGHQFH�LQ�RXU�
SUHSDUHGQHVV�WR�ZDUG�RII�IXWXUH�FKDOOHQJHV�Ŏ�DQG�RXU�UHDGLQHVV�
to seize yet more opportunities when conditions improve. 

SERVING OUR CUSTOMERS 

RELATIONSHIPS THAT LAST    

Byblos Bank added more value than ever to the emphasis we 
place on customer relationships in 2014, helping our clients to 
protect and expand their businesses despite adverse conditions 
affecting Lebanon and other markets we serve.  The Consumer 
Banking Division tends to these relationships with great care 
and attention to detail, continually developing its processes 
and practices, updating its technologies, and designing new 
solutions that help our clients cope with shifting conditions. 

Our Customer Service Team operates 24/7 and strives to work 
SURDFWLYHO\��LGHQWLI\LQJ�DUHDV�RI�SRWHQWLDO�GLIŵFXOW\�EHIRUH�DFWXDO�
problems affect the quality or convenience of service delivery. 
We use both Mystery Shoppers and Customer Satisfaction 
6XUYH\V�WR�HQVXUH�FRQVLVWHQF\�RI�VHUYLFHV�DQG�ŵQG�QHZ�ZD\V�
to add value. In addition, we have carried out comprehensive 
SURFHVV�VLPSOLŵFDWLRQV��LQFOXGLQJ�D�VWUHDPOLQHG�SURFHGXUH�IRU�
opening new accounts.      

7KH�'LYLVLRQ�SODQV�WR�IXUWKHU�HQKDQFH�DQG�UHŵQH�WKH�TXDOLW\�RI�LWV�
products and services in 2015, meeting or exceeding our clients’ 

expectations and making us an even better bank.  To do this, 
we will continue our policy of providing constant training and 
other forms of career development support for our employees. 
Whatever else we do in terms of technologies and partnerships, 
Byblos Bank knows that in many situations, nothing can replace 
SHRSOH�Ŏ�HVSHFLDOO\�RXUV�
 
The Consumer Banking Division also knows that the digital 
revolution opens up whole new avenues for adding value and 
convenience to customer experiences, so it also will continue 
to keep pace with rapid technological change. Past innovations 
like Smart ATMs® have made Byblos Bank a trendsetter for 
Lebanon and the MENA region, and we remain committed to 
NHHSLQJ�RXU�FOLHQWV�SOXJJHG�LQWR�WKH�ODWHVW�WHFKQRORJLFDO�ŵ[HV��
Accordingly, 2014 saw us take the lead yet again by introducing 
the Byblos Bank Mobile Banking Application to round out 
Azka Banking, our full spread of smart and secure e-banking 
services. Every element of Azka Banking is designed to help 
FXVWRPHUV�H[HUFLVH�PRUH�GLUHFW�FRQWURO�RYHU�WKHLU�ŵQDQFHV��DQG�
to free up time for our branch personnel to provide one-on-one 
advisory services.

NEW BEGINNINGS, MORE PARTNERS, ADDED 
RECOGNITION

The Bank extended its already far-reaching presence in 
Lebanon to untapped and relatively underserved areas in 
2014, strengthening our position in regions with excellent 
growth potential. This process included the opening of two 
new branches: one on the main coastal highway in Dbayeh, a 
booming community just north of Beirut, and another to cover 
WKH�ŶRXULVKLQJ�UHJLRQ�RI�=DKOHK��KRPH�WR�WKH�FDSLWDO�RI�HDVWHUQ�
Lebanon’s Bekaa Governorate. Our domestic network now 
consists of 79 branches, putting our services within easy reach for 
people across the country. In addition, the Bank also expanded its 
reach in these and other regions by using new technologies that 
allow more transactions to be carried out online.      
 
Byblos Bank has long been a leader in forging new ties with 
WUXVWHG�SDUWQHUV�WKDW�KHOS�RXU�FOLHQWV�DFFHVV�QHZ�EHQHŵWV��
express their individuality, and support worthy charitable 
causes, and 2014 saw more of the same. The past 12 months 
saw the Bank team up with MasterCard, tapping the latter’s 
7LWDQLXP�OLQHXS�WR�RIIHU�FR�EUDQGHG�DIŵQLW\�FDUGV�LQ�SDUWQHUVKLS�
with several institutions, including the Tripoli Bar Association, 
the Order of Physio-Therapists in Lebanon, and Labora, an 
NGO that helps some of Lebanon’s founding communities to 
resist the pressures that have caused so many of their members 
to emigrate.

The Bank also further burnished its reputation in March, when 
it received its second consecutive award for having the fastest-
growing portfolio of Visa cards in the Levant region. This was 
ZLGHO\�KDLOHG�DV�D�VLJQ�RI�FRQWLQXHG�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�FRQŵGHQFH�LQ�
Byblos Bank as a reliable partner for some of the world’s largest 
and most reputable corporations.  
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As debit and credit cards occupy an ever larger place in modern 
consumer life, Byblos Bank is proud to offer a comprehensive 
VHOHFWLRQ�RI�EUDQGV�DQG�EHQHŵWV�WKDW�PDWFK�WKH�PHDQV�DQG�
needs of all our customers.

BETTER BANKING MEANS BETTER BUSINESS

TAILORED SERVICES FOR SPECIFIC NEEDS

Over the years, Byblos Bank has grown hand-in-hand with the 
ŵUPV�WKDW�PDNH�XS�/HEDQRQőV�IDPRXVO\�G\QDPLF�DQG�UHVLOLHQW�
private sector, giving us unique insights into the requirements 
of individual companies pursuing specialized activities in 
various regions and industries. This has allowed our Commercial 
Banking Division to develop high-value products and services 
WKDW�ERWK�UHŶHFW�ORFDO�UHDOLWLHV�DQG�PHHW�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�VWDQGDUGV�

These tools are backed by extensive training and experience, 
enabling us to provide valuable advice to our customers on how 
best to use them. We do this through teams of professionals 
specialized in one or more areas, including agriculture, 
V\QGLFDWLRQ�DQG�SURMHFW�ŵQDQFH��FRQWUDFWLQJ�DQG�UHDO�HVWDWH��
manufacturing, and trade.

Faced with a fourth year of poor economic conditions in 
2014, the Division followed a conservative strategy based 
on prudent growth targets and preservation of our leading 
PDUNHW�SRVLWLRQ�LQ�ŵHOGV�OLNH�FRQWUDFWLQJ��PDQXIDFWXULQJ��DQG�
trade. In line with our expectations, this approach proved 
successful, enabling us to meet our overall goals and each of 
our key performance indicators. 

Although tough conditions are expected to prevail in Lebanon 
and some of our key foreign markets in 2015, the Division 
UHPDLQV�FRQŵGHQW�WKDW�LW�ZLOO�PDLQWDLQ�LWV�OHDGLQJ�SRVLWLRQ��0DQ\�
years of market experience and sound management policies 
give us unique capacity to adapt in the face of change, and to 
help our clients do the same. Our strategy will continue to play 
to these strengths, helping us to meet all of our growth targets.

CAPITAL MARKETS

A FORCE FOR STABILITY
      
%\EORV�%DQN�H[HUWHG�LWV�XVXDO�VWHDG\LQJ�LQŶXHQFH�RQ�/HEDQRQőV�
capital markets in 2014, accounting for a 9.50% share on the 
Beirut Stock Exchange and retaining its role as one of the 
largest providers of liquidity in terms of both Eurobonds and 
domestic debt issues. Once again, we helped the Lebanese 
Republic to tap the capital markets with USD 1.5 billion in 
(XURERQG�ŵQDQFLQJ�

The Capital Markets and Financial Institutions Division also 
further increased its market share for brokerage activities, 
building on its reputation for reliable execution and follow-up 
24 hours a day. Our investment professionals help individual 
and corporate clients alike to navigate both the equity and 
ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�PDUNHWV��DOORZLQJ�WKHP�WR�LQYHVW��WUDGH�DQG�KHGJH�
QXPHURXV�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�FRPSHWLWLYH�SULFHV�

BANKING ACROSS BORDERS

EXPORTING A TRIED AND TESTED FORMULA

Despite political instability and/or economic slowdowns in 
almost all of the countries where Byblos Bank operates, we 
managed not just to maintain a solid presence abroad, but even 
to post strong growth in our business. As a result, net income 
generated by the Byblos Bank Group’s foreign entities in 2014 
increased by 11% over the previous year.

This performance was made possible by several factors, 
including the Bank’s long experience in coping with political 
and economic uncertainties, conservative management 
practices, and adherence to the highest standards of 
corporate governance. 

Backed by the full support and guidance of Group Compliance,  
all of Byblos Bank’s foreign entities further strengthened their 
anti-money laundering (AML) techniques and processes in order 
to further reduce inherent risks in certain overseas markets. 
AML practices and compliance with both local regulations and 
international sanctions have been the top priorities for the 
International Network Division since its establishment in 2010, 
and will continue to be so in the coming years.

Simultaneously, the Division remained focused on its core 
IXQFWLRQV�RI�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�ŶRZ�RI�EXVLQHVV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�IRUHLJQ�
HQWLWLHV�DQG�+HDG�2IŵFH�LQ�/HEDQRQ��DOO�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�
the Group Function and Service Level Agreements where 
DSSOLFDEOH��6HYHUDO�ŵHOG�YLVLWV�WR�EUDQFKHV��UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RIŵFHV��
and subsidiaries were carried out in 2014 in order to 
a) ensure continuity in key positions during long absences; 
b) prevent, identify and solve problems as early as possible; 
c) improve processes to better serve our clients; and d) update 
employees on newly introduced procedures and practices.

In 2015, Byblos Bank will continue its selective expansion in 
Iraq by opening a new branch in Sulaymaniah. In addition, the 
International Network Division will continue to consolidate 
LWV�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�LPSURYH�HIŵFLHQF\�LQ�RUGHU�WR�HQKDQFH�WKH�
SURŵWDELOLW\�RI�DOO�RXU�IRUHLJQ�HQWLWLHV��DQG�WKHUHIRUH�WKHLU�
contribution to the Group.
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THE HUMAN ELEMENT

A GREAT PLACE FOR GREAT PEOPLE TO DO GREAT WORK

Byblos Bank knows that it can only be as effective and successful 
as its people are, so we take great care to supply them with the 
opportunities, training and support they need to stay happy, 
healthy, motivated, and productive. The Human Resources 
Division undertook several initiatives aimed at these and other 
goals in 2014, including:

Ř� Implementation of our new OnTime attendance system, 
which gives employees a convenient self-service tool for 
several tasks, from managing their attendance records to 
planning, submitting, and monitoring leave requests. OnTime 
empowers employees by giving them a comprehensive view 
of where they stand, including the ability to correct bookings 
and other entries, ensuring greater control over their vacation 
planning. It also gives managers a powerful tool to keep track 
of attendance records, leave requests and other data in real 
time, enabling them to make decisions fairly and quickly while 
HQVXULQJ�DGHTXDWH�VWDIŵQJ�OHYHOV�DW�DOO�WLPHV��������������

Ř�  Launch of a partnership with GlobeMed that facilitates the 
entire healthcare process for our employees, and gives them 
free access to a 24/7 phone service for medical inquiries. 
Among other advantages, this relationship makes it easier 
for our employees to get the medicines they and their 
dependents need, settle charges for hospital admissions, 
and access a long list of other healthcare services. It also 
facilitates the Bank’s work to ensure that all employee 
EHQHŵWV�UHFRUGV�DUH�NHSW�DFFXUDWH�DQG�XS�WR�GDWH�����

Ř� Establishment of an Assessment and Development Center 
to support the Bank’s efforts to recruit, retain, and develop 
WKH�EHVW�WDOHQW�DYDLODEOH��7KH�IDFLOLW\�LV�VWDIIHG�E\�&HUWLŵHG�
Internal Assessors who use the latest tools and a standardized 
competency-based assessment process to reliably assess 
potential; accurately identify individual strengths and 
weakness; and formulate personalized development plans 
EDVHG�RQ�VFLHQWLŵF�PHWKRGRORJLHV��$PRQJ�RWKHU�EHQHŵWV��
the initiative will make recruitment and promotion processes 
more effective, more objective, and more transparent; 
systematically align abilities and aptitudes with appropriate 
and viable career paths; and further our efforts to keep all 
members of the Byblos Bank team challenged, motivated, and 
well-equipped to provide superior service.     

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

HELPING OTHERS, IMPROVING OURSELVES

Byblos Bank is deeply committed to helping the communities 
we serve to develop on every level, from art, literature, and 

culture to education and the environment. In 2014, we became 
even more focused than ever on our primary avenues of 
intervention,  which allows us to have a greater impact by 
FRQFHQWUDWLQJ�RXU�KXPDQ�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�UHVRXUFHV�RQ�SDUWLFXODU�
areas.

PHOTOGRAPHY: MOMENTS IN TIME

Byblos Bank’s Photography Program aims to support emerging 
Lebanese photographers by placing them at the heart of the 
art market and helping them build professional careers. This 
includes putting their talents in the spotlight by giving them 
access to the media, gallerists, collectors, and experts in the 
ŵHOG��7KH�SURJUDP�HQWDLOHG�VHYHUDO�HYHQWV�LQ�������LQFOXGLQJ��

Ř� In January and February, Byblos Bank contributed to bringing 
Photomed, the Mediterranean region’s leading photography 
festival, to Lebanon, and hosted an exhibition by renowned 
Italian master photographer Nino Migliori at its headquarters. 
Our aim was to offer both emerging Lebanese photographers 
and the general public an opportunity to see some truly great 
work being done in the world of photography. Photomed 
was so successful that Byblos Bank decided to become their 
main sponsor and cooperate in the development of a special 
Lebanese program, leading to exhibitions in early 2015 that 
have shed light on past and present glories of our country’s 
rich photographic heritage.

Ř�  In March, we launched Purple Lens by Byblos Bank, a 
Facebook page dedicated to bolstering our Photography 
Program by engaging with photography lovers, promoting the 
work of Lebanese photographers in general, and providing 
H[SRVXUH�IRU�%\EORV�%DQN�$ZDUG�IRU�3KRWRJUDSK\�ŵQDOLVWV�LQ�
particular. By the end of the year, the page had 12,000 fans, 
and public interest is still growing.

Ř�  In April, Byblos Bank Headquarters was proud to host the 
ŵUVW�VROR�H[KLELWLRQ�E\�*KDOHE�&DEEDE«��ZLQQHU�RI�WKH�
2013 Byblos Bank Award for Photography. Titled “Ahlein” 
(or “Welcome”), the show consisted of 20 photographs 
capturing moments in the social activities of foreign 
expatriates residing in Lebanon. According to BEIRUT ART 
FAIR Artistic Director Pascal Odille, whose organization is the 
primary partner of the Byblos Bank Award, Cabbabé’s work 
“is a dive into the daily lives of those who surround us, with 
no voyeurism and a lot of delicacy”.

Ř�  Cabbabé’s exhibition was accompanied by a free-of-charge 
seminar, open to all photographers, which delved into the 
history of photography and the photography market. Raising 
awareness of the value and history of photography is an 
integral part of our efforts to establish it as a standalone art 
in Lebanon.
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Ř� In September, we held the third edition of the Byblos Bank 
Award for Photography in cooperation with BEIRUT ART 
FAIR, attracting a record 67 emerging talents as participants. 
Renaud Bergonzo, Co-founder and Director of acte2galerie, 
a highly regarded Paris gallery specialized in photography, 
ŶHZ�LQ�IURP�)UDQFH�WR�VHUYH�DV�3UHVLGHQW�RI�WKH�-XU\��+H�DOVR�
RIIHUHG�LQYDOXDEOH�DGYLFH�WR�WKH����ŵQDOLVWV�GXULQJ�WKH�IRXU�
days of the 2014 BEIRUT ART FAIR,  which was visited by 
more than 21,000 people. 

Ř� Following a very close competition, the Jury named 
Myriam Boulos the winner of the 2014 Byblos Bank Award 
IRU�3KRWRJUDSK\��PDNLQJ�KHU�WKH�ŵUVW�ZRPDQ�WR�JDLQ�WKH�
honor. As in previous years, the centerpiece of the prize 
package was a solo exhibition to be hosted at Byblos Bank 
Headquarters in April 2015. To help Ms. Boulos prepare, she 
was immediately enrolled in a mentoring program tailored 
for her by BEIRUT ART FAIR Artistic Director Pascal Odille and 
world-famous photographer Jack Dabaghian. The Bank also 
will fund publication of a personal catalog for the winner, as 
well as a full media campaign to promote the exhibition.      

HERITAGE: WHERE WE COME FROM

Heritage is a big part of what makes a population a people, 
so Byblos Bank has long been committed to highlighting and 
preserving the products of Lebanon’s unique past, ensuring 
that they can also bear witness to a better future. In 2014, we 
supported several heritage initiatives, including the following:     

Ř�  Byblos Bank’s USD 2 million sponsorship of Phase I of the 
Jbeil (Byblos) Souks Renovation yielded tremendous results, 
boosting the tourism trade and improving the quality of 
life for all residents of the historic coastal city. This gave us 
even more reason to fund Phase II in 2014 by providing 
an additional USD 1 million grant to the Jbeil Municipality. 
Works are expected to be completed in 2015. This project 
is particularly important for Byblos Bank, not only because 
it contributes to the preservation of one of the world’s 
oldest cities, but also because its positive economic 
impact generates more opportunities for local residents, 
empowering them to build successful lives and stay rooted 
in their homeland.

Ř� Our activities in 2014 also included sponsorship of “Lebanon 
on Rail”, a book by Eddy Choueiry that uses powerful 
photography to illustrate both the glorious past of Lebanon’s 
railroads and the deplorable state into which they have fallen. 

Ř� The Bank also continued to sponsor “Hayda Lebnen”, a daily 
program carried by LBCI Television that sheds light on the 
natural wonders and other landmarks that make Lebanon one 
of the world’s most picturesque countries.

EDUCATION: THE MOST VALUABLE GIFT

Byblos Bank fully appreciates the difference education makes, 
so we have long been committed to helping more Lebanese 
acquire more learning at every level.   

Ř� The year 2014 saw Byblos Bank continue implementation of its 
University Loans Program (ULP), a partnership with the Agence 
Française de Développement (AFD). By fully utilizing the total 
line of credit of EUR 25 million from AFD, the program helped 
WR�ŵQDQFH�WKH�VWXGLHV�RI�RYHU�1,500 students at nine private 
universities in Lebanon since its launch in 2010. ULP loans 
are disbursed in Lebanese Pounds and carry highly favorable 
terms and interest rates.   

Ř� Throughout the year, the Bank maintained its partnerships 
with several schools and universities in Lebanon, with special 
focus on education for youth and securing their access to 
new ideas.

Ř�  In addition, we laid the foundation for a Financial Literacy 
Program that will be initiated in 2015. This initiative is aimed 
DW�HGXFDWLQJ�PRUH�/HEDQHVH�DERXW�ŵQDQFH��EDQNLQJ�DQG�
economic information, helping to better understand how 
WKHVH�DUHDV�LPSDFW�WKHLU�GDLO\�OLYHV�Ŏ�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�HTXLSSLQJ�
them to gain more control over their own destinies. 

ENVIRONMENT: GREEN TODAY, GREENER TOMORROW

Byblos Bank has been a pioneer in spreading awareness of the 
need to protect our natural environment, and in actually doing 
something about it. This kind of work continued on several fronts 
in 2014:    
 
Ř� On the occasion of World Environment Day in June, we 

launched the Byblos Bank Shouf Reserve Bio-Corridor 
Reforestation Initiative, which will help reverse the degradation 
of Lebanon’s forest cover. Carried out in cooperation with 
the Shouf Biosphere Reserve and the Lebanon Reforestation 
Initiative (funded by the US Agency for International 
Development and implemented by the US Forest Service), the 
project is highly ambitious. The goal is to plant some 10,000 
trees (primarily Cedrus Libani) over 15 hectares of land that 
currently has no vegetation. This will not only restore forest 
cover with Lebanon’s famous cedars and other native species, 
but also connect the cedar forests of Barouk with the oak one 
above Ammik.    

Ř� As an end-year gift, we also sponsored “Shouf Biosphere”, a 
book that explains the importance of the work being done at 
the largest facility of its kind in Lebanon. 

Operations and GovernanceByblos Bank S.A.L.

23



Ř�  In November, Byblos Bank’s “The Lebanese Are Losing It” 
video, a call to arms for the defense of Lebanon’s cedars, won 
D�6LOYHU�$ZDUG�DW�WKH�0LGGOH�(DVW�(IŵH�$ZDUGV�IRU�(IIHFWLYH�
Marketing. The spot urged the Lebanese to help retain their 
own national identity by helping to restore the country’s cedar 
forests to their former glory.       

Ř�  And on a daily basis throughout 2014, we also continued 
with the implementation of our Bgreen initiative at Byblos 
%DQN�+HDGTXDUWHUV�LQ�$VKUDŵHK��'HVLJQHG�WR�OLPLW�DQG�
UHGXFH�WKH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFW�RI�+HDG�2IŵFH�RSHUDWLRQV��
WKLV�LQLWLDWLYH�LQFOXGHV�VSHFLŵF�DQG�PHDVXUDEOH�DFWLRQV�WR�
save energy and water, recycle paper and plastic bottles, and 
reduce the usage of paper. 

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Ř� In February, we sponsored the Université Saint Joseph’s 
annual Daraj El Yassouiyeh event, three days of art, culture, 
and sports activities held in 2014 under the banner of Byblos 
Bank’s cedar reforestation campaign.

Ř� May marked the 29th time that the Bank has taken part 
in Child’s Week, an event run by the Association for the 
Protection of Lebanese Children.

Ř� ,Q�'HFHPEHU��ŵQDQFLDO�DVVLVWDQFH�IURP�%\EORV�%DQN�KHOSHG�
the Jbeil Municipality to erect a stunning Christmas Tree in 
the heart of the community that hosts the ancient port town 
of Byblos. This tree attracted attention from both local and 
international media, including the Guardian and the Wall 
Street Journal. At more than 25 meters high, the spectacular 
symbol of the Christmas spirit helped draw thousands of 
tourists to the town during the holidays.

Ř� The Bank also took part in fundraising events for a variety of 
non-governmental organizations (NGOs) to help them carry 
out their various functions in the community.

ADVOCACY

A VOICE FOR COMMON SENSE 

Dr. François S. Bassil, Byblos Bank’s Chairman and General 
Manager, is an elder statesman of Lebanon’s banking industry 
who in June 2015 completed his fourth term as head of the 
Association of Banks in Lebanon (ABL). As such, his input into 
PDQ\�RI�WKH�GHEDWHV�UHJDUGLQJ�/HEDQRQőV�SXEOLF�ŵQDQFHV�DQG�
other issues carries considerable weight. And as usual, Dr. Bassil 
made use of his status in 2014 to address some of the country’s 
most pressing challenges:

Ř� In January, as Lebanon’s political class bargained over the 
composition of yet another new Cabinet, Dr. Bassil focused 
on the more important matter of what policies the incoming 
government would follow. In particular, he warned that 
whoever the ministers were, they would have to “take drastic 
measures” to implement reforms and restore functionality to 
the mechanism of government.

Ř� In May, Dr. Bassil declared his support for an increased salary 
scale, but only if it were accompanied by better tax collection, 
increased emphasis on job performance, and other “radical 
reforms” required to help the Treasury absorb added costs.

Ř� ,Q�WKH�ODWWHU�SDUW�RI�WKH�\HDU��DV�SUHSDUDWLRQV�LQWHQVLŵHG�IRU�D�
new USD 1 billion sovereign Eurobond issue by the Lebanese 
Republic in early 2015, Dr. Bassil continued to champion the 
need for reform. Lebanon’s banks, he explained, remained 
UHDG\�WR�KHOS�WKH�VWDWH�PHHW�LWV�ŵQDQFLQJ�QHHGV�Ŏ�EXW�KH�
also called for decisive measures to be taken to improve the 
management of the public purse.     

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE 

MEETING OR SURPASSING THE MOST STRINGENT 
REQUIREMENTS

Strong governance and prudent management have allowed 
Byblos Bank to emerge relatively unscathed from multiple 
FULVHV�LQ�UHFHQW�\HDUV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�����������JOREDO�ŵQDQFLDO�
crisis, ensuing weakness in Europe and other key markets, 
and ongoing instability in much of the MENA region. Far from 
prompting a relaxation of standards, however, this experience 
has only redoubled our faith in the necessity of world-class 
governance and compliance measures.

Accordingly, the Bank continues to operate a business model 
whose core principles include strict adherence with all local 
and international regulations. This stance includes constant 
reassessment and, as and when necessary, updating of our 
internal policies and procedures. It also means regular training 
for our employees, keeping them abreast of changing regulatory 
requirements and how best to apply these in various situations.
Similar importance is placed on the quality of the information 
we provide, and to how we communicate it, especially to our 
shareholders. Byblos Bank goes to great lengths to ensure that 
ŵQDQFLDO�DQG�RWKHU�PDWHULDO�GDWD�DUH�DOZD\V�DFFXUDWH��FRPSOHWH��
and up to date. This approach has earned us an industry-wide 
UHSXWDWLRQ�IRU�WUDQVSDUHQF\��D�YRWH�RI�FRQŵGHQFH�WKDW�FUHDWHV�
real-world value for all of our stakeholders, including customers, 
investors, employees, and business partners.

YEAR IN REVIEW
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YEAR IN REVIEW
These practices are particularly helpful when it comes to 
shielding the Bank and its stakeholders against the effects of 
PRQH\�ODXQGHULQJ��WHUURULVP�ŵQDQFLQJ��DQG�RWKHU�FULPHV�WKDW�
DIIHFW�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��)RU�WKLV�UHDVRQ��WKH�%\EORV�%DQN�
Group relies on a wide range of measures and controls to keep 
it from being misused, whether by individuals or organizations 
seeking to breach international sanctions and/or otherwise 
circumvent or violate relevant laws and regulations. These 
include carefully designed internal organizational policies, timely 
implementation of supervisory initiatives, and close monitoring 
of internal processes and procedures. In addition, the Bank 
complies with all Central Bank of Lebanon rules and guidelines 
with regard to the establishment of a compliance function for 
identifying, monitoring, and reporting suspicious transactions 
and other activities.  

In line with Basel Committee recommendations, Financial Action 
Task Force guidelines, local regulations and international best 
practice standards, the Group maintains a comprehensive 
compliance program of policies, procedures and systems to 
IXOŵOO�LWV�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�GHWHFWLQJ�DQG�SUHYHQWLQJ�DOO�IRUPV�
of money laundering and related activities. This compliance 
program follows strict principles which we apply in each and 
every jurisdiction where the Group has a presence, including:

Ř� Conducting all necessary due diligence before establishing 
a relationship with a prospective client, including verifying 
his or her identity, ascertaining the legitimacy of sources of 
funds, identifying third parties who might actually control 
the disposition of those funds, understanding the customer’s 
business model, and determining the intended purpose of 
the business relationship. Under Group policy, and under no 
circumstances do we offer our services to “walk-in” customers 
not maintaining an account with us.

Ř�  Prohibiting or restricting the opening of accounts for certain 
types of relationships, such as shell banks, non-face-to-face 
customers, money services businesses  (MSBs), numbered or 
bearer accounts, online casinos and other gambling websites, 
among others.

Ř� Applying a risk-based approach, when determining whether 
to accept or reject the initiation of a business relationship, 
that accounts for factors such as the prospective customer’s 
background, geographic location, nature of business activity, 
and type of banking products being solicited. The Group 
strictly denies access to its services whenever due diligence 
examinations of a customer reveal inconsistency in the facts.

Ř� Exercising enhanced due diligence and increased transaction 
monitoring for customers believed to pose a higher-than-

average risk for money laundering, including, but not limited 
WR��WKRVH�FRQVLGHUHG�SROLWLFDOO\�RU�ŵQDQFLDOO\�H[SRVHG�

Ř�  Monitoring accounts for changes in transaction patterns 
that deviate from expected activity or behavior that would 
be considered normal for that particular customer or 
category of customers.

Ř� Screening customer data and transaction details against 
sanction programs administered by local authorities as well as 
foreign countries and organizations (such as OFAC, the United 
Nations and the European Union, among others) to ensure 
that individuals, entities, countries, vessels, goods and services 
associated directly or indirectly with any transaction are in full 
compliance with those sanctions.

Ř� Reporting to the Group AML and Legal Compliance 
Department on any transaction deemed to be unusual or 
VXVSLFLRXV��DQG��DV�DQG�ZKHQ�DSSURSULDWH��ŵOLQJ�D�FDVH�ZLWK�
the local authorities.  

 
Ř� Providing all staff with continuous training on anti-money 

laundering measures and techniques, and ensuring awareness 
of the Group’s obligations toward sanctions programs.

The Group uses a vigorous oversight regime over its activities to 
ensure consistent adherence with all elements of its compliance 
SURJUDP��7KLV�LQFOXGHV�WKH�DVVLJQPHQW�RI�D�FRPSOLDQFH�RIŵFHU�
to each branch and the presence of a local Compliance Unit 
for each subsidiary, all under the supervision of a Group AML 
and Legal Compliance Department located at Byblos Bank 
Headquarters. The Head of Group Compliance has direct access 
to Senior Management, the Board of Directors, and the Central 
Bank of Lebanon’s Special Investigation Commission.

These and other activities stem from our unshakeable belief in 
high standards of governance as the ultimate tool in modern risk 
management. Accordingly, we use state-of-the-art procedures 
to control different types of risks, for all lines of business, at the 
individual, portfolio, and aggregate levels. We take great care to 
protect client information, maintain lofty ethics in all our business 
dealings, and provide fully transparent risk disclosure to the 
Board of Directors, Senior Management, regulators, ratings 
agencies, and other interested parties.  

For decades, this belief has empowered Byblos Bank to 
JHQHUDWH�VROLG�UHWXUQV��VWHDGLO\�LPSURYH�LWV�ORQJ�WHUP�ŵQDQFLDO�
position, and build a sterling reputation. Having derived so 
much value from this approach and the self-improvement and 
other sound practices it encourages, we look forward to relying 
RQ�WKHP�Ŏ�DQG�FRQVWDQW�UHŵQHPHQWV�Ŏ�IRU�JHQHUDWLRQV�WR�FRPH����������
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBER PROFILES

DR. FRANÇOIS S. BASSIL
CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Lebanese, born in 1934. Holder of a PhD in Law from Leuven University in Belgium. Has 
been working in the banking sector since 1962. Was a co-founder of Byblos Bank S.A.L., 
which he has helped transform into Lebanon’s third-largest bank and where he currently 
holds the positions of Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Manager. Is also 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank Africa. Also sits on the Boards of 
Byblos Bank Europe, Byblos Bank Syria, and Byblos Bank Armenia. In addition, serves 
as Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Manager of Byblos Invest Holding 
Luxembourg. In June 2015 completed a fourth term as Chairman of the Board of the 
Association of Banks in Lebanon.

MR. SEMAAN BASSIL
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Lebanese, born in 1965. Holder of a Bachelor’s Degree from Boston University in the 
US and an MBA from Cambridge University in the UK. Has been working in the banking 
sector since 1990. Has been a Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. 
since 1992, and Vice-Chairman of the Board and General Manager since 2000. Also 
serves as Chairman of the Board of Byblos Bank Syria, Chairman and General Manager 
of Byblos Invest Bank S.A.L., Vice-Chairman of the Board of Byblos Bank Africa, and 
Member of the Board of Byblos Bank Europe. 

+�(��05��$57+85�*��1$=$5,$1
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1951. Holder of a Degree in Textile Engineering from Philadelphia 
University in the US. Has served as Lebanon’s Minister of Energy and Water Resources 
since 2014, as a Member of the Lebanese Parliament since 2009, and is a former 
Minister of Tourism and of Environment. Is an entrepreneur at the helm of several 
companies in Lebanon and the Gulf. Has been a Member of the Board of Directors 
of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 2006, and serves as a Member of the Risk, Compliance, 
Anti-Money-Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism Committee, and 
of the Human Resources, Compensation, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate 
*RYHUQDQFH�&RPPLWWHH��ERWK�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�DIŵOLDWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG��$OVR�VHUYHV�DV�D�
Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank Armenia. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBER PROFILES

BARON DR. GUY L. QUADEN
DIRECTOR

Belgian, born in 1945. Holder of a Master’s Degree in Economics from La Sorbonne in 
France and of a PhD from Liège University in Belgium. Appointed in 1977 as Professor 
of Economic Policy at Liège University, where he later served as Dean of the Faculty of 
Economics and Management. Started his career in the banking sector in 1988 when he 
joined the Board of the National Bank of Belgium (the country’s central bank), later serving 
as Governor (and as a Member of the Governing Council of the European Central Bank) 
from 1999 until 2011. Has produced numerous economic publications. Received the title of 
%DURQ�IURP�WKH�.LQJ�RI�%HOJLXP�DQG�ZDV�GHFRUDWHG�DV�DQ�2IŵFHU�RI�WKH�/«JLRQ�Gő+RQQHXU�
by the President of the French Republic. Has been a Member of the Board of Directors of 
Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 2012. Also sits on the Board of Byblos Bank Europe.

MR. DES S. O’SHEA
DIRECTOR

Irish, born in 1956. Holder of a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University College 
&RUN�LQ�,UHODQG��DQG�TXDOLŵHG�DV�D�&KDUWHUHG�$FFRXQWDQW�LQ�������+DV�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�LQ�WKH�
banking industry since 1981, including eight years as Vice President of GE Capital ending 
in 2011, and is a current or former holder of banking directorships in 10 countries. Has 
been a Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 2014.

MR. AHMAD T. TABBARA
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1940. Holder of a Bachelor’s Degree from the American University 
of Beirut. Worked as a consultant to former Prime Minister Salim el Hoss. Is an 
entrepreneur with shares in a number of family businesses and social initiatives, 
LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�7RXŵF�7DEEDUD�&XOWXUDO�&HQWHU��+DV�EHHQ�D�0HPEHU�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�
Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 1999. Also serves as a Member of the Risk, 
Compliance, Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism 
&RPPLWWHH�DIŵOLDWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�
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MR. FAISAL M. ALI EL TABSH
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1948. Holder of a Master’s Degree in Geology from the American 
University of Beirut. Is an entrepreneur and owner of M.A. Tabsh Company in Saudi 
Arabia. Has been a Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 
2000. Is also a Member of the Board of Byblos Invest Holding Luxembourg and Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Byblos Bank Europe.

MR. ABDULHADI A. SHAYIF*
DIRECTOR

Saudi Arabian, born in 1948. Pursued his studies in Economics at the American 
University of Beirut. Has been working in the banking sector since 1974, since which 
WLPH�KH�KDV�DVVXPHG�VHYHUDO�WRS�SRVLWLRQV�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VHFWRUV�RI�YDULRXV�$UDE�
countries, most notably that of General Manager of National Commercial Bank 
Jeddah. Was a Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. from 2006 
until 2015. Also served as Chairman of the Risk, Compliance, Anti-Money-Laundering 
and Combating the Financing of Terrorism Committee and as a Member of the Audit 
&RPPLWWHH��ERWK�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�DIŵOLDWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG�

MR. BASSAM A. NASSAR
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1965. Pursued his higher studies at both the London School of 
Economics in the UK and Harvard Business School in the US. Is an entrepreneur with 
major holdings in a number of private companies in Nigeria. Has been a Member of 
the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 1992, and serves as a Member of the 
Audit Committee and the Human Resources, Compensation, Remuneration, Nomination 
DQG�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�&RPPLWWHH��ERWK�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�DIŵOLDWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG��$OVR�
serves as Chairman of the Board of Byblos Bank Europe and as a Member of the Board 
of Byblos Invest Holding Luxembourg.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBER PROFILES

* The mandate of Mr. Abdulhadi A. Shayif expired on 15 May 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBER PROFILES

MR. ALAIN C. TOHMÉ
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1962. Holder of a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University College 
Cork in Ireland and an MBA from Boston College in the US. Started working in the banking 
industry when he joined Byblos Bank Europe in 1985 before moving in 1997 to Byblos 
Bank S.A.L., where he assumed several positions, the most recent having been Deputy 
General Manager, until 2011. Has been a Member of the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank 
S.A.L. since 2011 and serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of the 
Human Resources, Compensation, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate Governance 
&RPPLWWHH��ERWK�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�DIŵOLDWHG�WR�WKH�%RDUG��,V�DOVR�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�
Byblos Bank Armenia, Vice-Chairman of the Board of Byblos Bank Syria, a Member of the 
Board of Byblos Bank RDC, and a Member of the Board of Byblos Invest Bank S.A.L.

'5��+(15<�7��$==$0
DIRECTOR

Lebanese, born in 1949. Holder of a PhD in Economics from the University of Southern 
&DOLIRUQLD�LQ�WKH�86��+DV�EHHQ�ZRUNLQJ�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VHFWRU�VLQFH�������+DV�DVVXPHG�
NH\�SRVLWLRQV�ZLWK�PDMRU�ŵQDQFLDO�FRPSDQLHV�LQ�/HEDQRQ�DQG�RWKHU�SDUWV�RI�WKH�$UDE�
world, including Deutsche Bank Dubai. Is well-versed in the money and banking 
PDUNHWV�DQG�KDV�LVVXHG�SXEOLFDWLRQV�DQG�DUWLFOHV�UHYROYLQJ�DURXQG�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�ZRUOG��
Has been on the Board of Directors of Byblos Bank S.A.L. since 2012.

The Ordinary General Assembly of Shareholders elected Mr. Yves R. Jacquot to the Board of Directors on 15 May 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman Mr. Alain C. Tohmé

Members Mr. Abdulhadi A. Shayif

Mr. Bassam A. Nassar

RISK, COMPLIANCE, ANTI-MONEY-LAUNDERING AND
COMBATING THE FINANCING OF TERRORISM COMMITTEE

Chairman Mr. Abdulhadi A. Shayif

Members H.E. Mr. Arthur G. Nazarian 

Mr. Ahmad T. Tabbara 

Mr. Des S. O’Shea

HUMAN RESOURCES, COMPENSATION, REMUNERATION,  
NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Chairman Mr. Alain C. Tohmé

Members H.E. Mr. Arthur G. Nazarian 

Mr. Bassam A. Nassar 
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

CENTRAL CREDIT COMMITTEE

President Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Vice President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Members Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Fouad Ferneiné Head of Corporate Banking Department

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES COMMITTEE

President Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Vice President Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

=LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

President François S. Bassil Chairman and General Manager

Vice President Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Members Joumana Chelala DGM*, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

President Fadi Abou Abdallah Head of Group Internal Audit Division

Vice President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Joseph Nasr AGM**, Head of Distribution Network Division

=LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

BANKING TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

President Raffoul Raffoul
AGM, Head of Group Organization Development, Information Systems 
and Operational Support Division

Vice President =LDG�(O�=RJKEL� Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Walid Kazan AGM, Head of International Network Division

Elie Bassil Head of Group Banking Technology Division

* DGM – Deputy General Manager.                 ** AGM – Assistant General Manager.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Vice President Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division 

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

=LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

Pascale Maksoud 
Dahrouge

Head of Group Financial and Operational Risk Management Department

INTERNATIONAL COMMITTEE

President Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Vice President Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Members Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Walid Kazan AGM, Head of International Network Division

Raffoul Raffoul
AGM, Head of Group Organization Development, Information Systems 
and Operational Support Division

*LOEHUW�=RXHLQ AGM, Head of Group Products, Segments and Marketing Division

=LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

President Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Vice President Fadi Hayek Head of Group Human Resources Division

Members Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Raffoul Raffoul
AGM, Head of Group Organization Development, Information Systems 
and Operational Support Division

COMPLIANCE AND ANTI-MONEY-LAUNDERING COMMITTEE

President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Vice President Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Consumer Banking Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Alain Wanna DGM, Head of Group Financial Markets and Financial Institutions Division

Walid Kazan AGM, Head of International Network Division

Joseph Nasr AGM, Head of Distribution Network Division

Fadi Abou Abdallah Head of Group Internal Audit Division

Paul Chammas Head of Group Operations Division

Sharif Hachem
Head of Group Anti-Money-Laundering and Regulatory  
Compliance Department
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

LOAN RECOVERY COMMITTEE

President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Vice President Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Samir Hélou Head of Loan Recovery Department 

PURCHASING COMMITTEE

President =LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

Vice President Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Raffoul Raffoul
AGM, Head of Group Organization Development, 
Information Systems and Operational Support Division

Antoine Keldany Head of Administration Department

OPERATIONAL RISK COMMITTEE

President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Vice President Raffoul Raffoul
Head of Group Organization Development, 
Information Systems and Operational Support Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Joseph Nasr AGM, Head of Distribution Network Division

Paul Chammas Head of Group Operations Division

=LDG�(O�=RJKEL Head of Group Finance and Administration Division

Pascale Maksoud 
Dahrouge

Head of Group Financial and Operational Risk Management Department

INFORMATION SECURITY COMMITTEE

President Raffoul Raffoul
Head of Group Organization Development, Information Systems 
and Operational Support Division

Vice President Marwan Moharram DGM, Head of Group Risk Management Division

Members Semaan F. Bassil Vice-Chairman and General Manager

Joumana Chelala DGM, Head of Group Consumer Banking Division

Fadi Nassar DGM, Head of Group Commercial Banking Division

Walid Kazan AGM, Head of International Network Division

Elie Bassil Head of Group Banking Technology Division
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GROUP CHART

Lebanon,
Cyprus, Iraq

BYBLOS BANK S.A.L.
U.A.E., 
Nigeria

41.43% 29.30%29.27%

Byblos Bank Europe
Belgium, France, UK

Byblos Bank Africa
Sudan

Adonis Brokerage House
Lebanon

Byblos Invest Bank
Lebanon

Byblos Bank RDC
Democratic Republic 

of the Congo

ADIR Insurance
Lebanon

ADIR Insurance
Syria

34.00% 60.00% 24.00%

64.00%

16.00%

Byblos Bank Syria
Syria

Branches

Byblos Bank Armenia
Armenia

99.95%

56.86%

100%

99.99%

66.67%

59.87%

65.00%

Representative
2IŵFHV

Natixis
Assurances

Byblos Invest Holding
Luxembourg

Around 4,300
individual shareholders

(less than 1% each)

Different Byblos
Bank Group Entities Syrian Investors

* Major shareholders in Byblos Invest Holding.

** The Bank of New York Mellon is the depositary bank for the GDR program.

*** Including preferred shares, as at 31 December 2014.

**** Société de Promotion et de Participation pour la Coopération Economique.

The Bank of New York Mellon**        11.04%
International Finance Corporation    8.36%
Bassil Family*                                           8.01%
Anasco Holding*                                    4.65%
Rami Rifaat El Nimer                              2.26%

Ali Hassan Dayekh                1.63%
Vectra Holding S.A.L.            1.63%
BLOM Invest Bank S.A.L.      1.45%
PROPARCO****                      1.20%
Agence Française 
de Développement               1.20%

Other Shareholders***
>1% each
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Performance Review  Byblos Bank S.A.L.

KEY FINANCIAL DATAKEY FINANCIAL DATAKEY FINANCIAL DATA

(1) Includes CDs issued by the Central Bank.  
(2) Excludes subordinated loans.    
(3) Includes branches of Byblos Bank Europe; Byblos Bank 
Africa; Byblos Bank Syria; Byblos Bank Armenia; Byblos Bank DR 
Congo; and branches of Byblos Bank S.A.L. in Baghdad, Basra, 

Erbil and Cyprus. 
(4) Market Share is based on all commercial and investment 
banks operating in Lebanon.    
(5) Based on the number of shares outstanding at the end 
of the period. 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total assets 7,526 8,190 9,486 11,230 13,576 15,288 16,602 17,015 18,485 19,035
Customers’ deposits 5,646 6,276 7,262 8,363 10,286 11,927 12,820 13,384 14,749 15,715
Net advances to customers 1,488 1,750 2,233 2,790 3,197 3,771 4,008 4,120 4,511 4,728
Cash and due from banks (1) 3,194 3,234 3,884 4,708 6,179 7,802 9,001 8,917 9,298 9,468
Total equity 794 752 984 1,270 1,494 1,831 1,852 1,926 1,922 1,963
Net book value (2) 555 580 613 699 827 1,124 1,148 1,181 1,204 1,246
Net income 69.4 78.7 99.2 122.0 145.6 177.7 179.7 167.3 156.2 175.5
Number of domestic branches 73 73 73 76 75 77 78 77 76 78
Number of foreign branches and subsidiaries (3) 6 9 16 17 19 23 24 25 25 24
Number of ATMs 84 85 109 114 133 149 165 168 186 203
Number of employees 1,520 1,766 2,101 2,362 2,433 2,719 2,716 2,572 2,526 2,531
Market Shares (4)
Market share in assets 9.17% 9.30% 9.67% 9.88% 9.80% 9.97% 10.27% 9.91% 10.00% 9.90%
Market share in customers’ loans 7.18% 8.35% 8.78% 8.71% 8.51% 8.05% 8.00% 8.15% 8.43% 8.27%
Market share in customers’ deposits 9.32% 9.42% 9.55% 9.48% 9.41% 9.51% 9.66% 9.59% 9.89% 10.01%
Share Data
Book value per share in USD (5) 1.11 1.17 1.25 0.94 1.06 1.32 1.36 1.42 1.46 1.53
Earnings per common share in USD (5) 0.25 0.14 0.18 0.21 0.26 0.27 0.25 0.23 0.21 0.24
Earnings per priority share in USD (5) 0.29 0.17 0.22 0.24 0.29 0.30
Net dividend per common share in USD (6) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13
Net dividend per priority share in USD (6) (7) 0.01 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.16 0.16
Dividend payout ratio 50.63% 78.32% 62.17% 57.10% 58.71% 63.80% 59.62% 64.04% 68.61% 61.07%
3URŵWDELOLW\
Return on average assets 0.96% 1.00% 1.12% 1.18% 1.17% 1.23% 1.13% 1.00% 0.88% 0.94%
Return on average common equity 12.03% 11.37% 13.84% 14.56% 15.00% 14.03% 12.29% 11.28% 9.80% 11.07%
Leverage multiplier 10.87 11.37 12.41 10.46 10.48 9.38 10.07 10.29 11.21 11.28
Interest on earning assets 6.32% 7.16% 7.29% 6.97% 6.38% 5.84% 5.50% 5.25% 5.08% 5.19%
Funding cost 5.02% 5.66% 5.64% 4.99% 4.65% 4.21% 4.00% 3.98% 4.04% 4.19%
Spread 1.30% 1.49% 1.65% 1.98% 1.73% 1.63% 1.49% 1.27% 1.04% 1.00%
Net interest margin 1.70% 2.00% 2.10% 2.39% 2.17% 2.04% 1.88% 1.64% 1.40% 1.36%
Cost-to-income 49.56% 53.41% 51.81% 47.38% 46.28% 45.54% 43.65% 45.89% 46.86% 46.66%
Operating expenses to average assets 1.37% 1.42% 1.49% 1.77% 1.42% 1.47% 1.29% 1.28% 1.18% 1.15%
Capital Adequacy
Capital to assets 10.55% 9.18% 10.37% 11.31% 11.01% 11.97% 11.16% 11.32% 10.40% 10.31%
Capital adequacy (8) 25.04% 20.17% 11.23% 12.61% 12.62% 14.75% 14.60% 16.74% 16.04% 16.65%
Liquidity
Net advances/assets 19.77% 21.36% 23.54% 24.85% 23.55% 24.67% 24.14% 24.21% 24.40% 24.84%
Net advances/customers’ deposits 26.36% 27.88% 30.75% 33.37% 31.08% 31.62% 31.26% 30.78% 30.59% 30.08%
Customers’ deposits/total resources 75.02% 76.63% 76.56% 74.47% 75.77% 78.01% 77.22% 78.66% 79.79% 82.56%
Liquid assets 76.20% 74.00% 71.63% 70.69% 72.42% 71.85% 72.48% 72.56% 72.16% 72.29%
Assets Quality
Loan loss provisions (9)/customers’ loans 10.24% 8.73% 5.40% 4.19% 3.64% 3.45% 4.04% 5.30% 5.82% 6.11%
Non-performing loans/customers’ loans 10.47% 8.14% 4.66% 3.36% 2.63% 2.38% 3.02% 5.28% 4.85% 5.05%
Loan loss provision (9)/non-performing loans 91.30% 100.88% 107.51% 115.64% 134.10% 144.46% 132.77% 99.62% 119.77% 120.67%
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA
Year ended 31 December (in USD million, except for per share data)

(6) Net of income tax (5%).     
(7) Representing annual distribution for priority shares calculated 
at 4% of the nominal value in addition to dividend declared for 
common shares, noting that as of May 2011, priority shares were 
converted into common shares.    

(8) Capital adequacy is calculated based on Basel II as of 
December 2007 and Basel III as of December 2011.  
����,QFOXGHV�VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV��DV�ZHOO�DV�
reserved interest.

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total assets 7,526 8,190 9,486 11,230 13,576 15,288 16,602 17,015 18,485 19,035
Customers’ deposits 5,646 6,276 7,262 8,363 10,286 11,927 12,820 13,384 14,749 15,715
Net advances to customers 1,488 1,750 2,233 2,790 3,197 3,771 4,008 4,120 4,511 4,728
Cash and due from banks (1) 3,194 3,234 3,884 4,708 6,179 7,802 9,001 8,917 9,298 9,468
Total equity 794 752 984 1,270 1,494 1,831 1,852 1,926 1,922 1,963
Net book value (2) 555 580 613 699 827 1,124 1,148 1,181 1,204 1,246
Net income 69.4 78.7 99.2 122.0 145.6 177.7 179.7 167.3 156.2 175.5
Number of domestic branches 73 73 73 76 75 77 78 77 76 78
Number of foreign branches and subsidiaries (3) 6 9 16 17 19 23 24 25 25 24
Number of ATMs 84 85 109 114 133 149 165 168 186 203
Number of employees 1,520 1,766 2,101 2,362 2,433 2,719 2,716 2,572 2,526 2,531
Market Shares (4)
Market share in assets 9.17% 9.30% 9.67% 9.88% 9.80% 9.97% 10.27% 9.91% 10.00% 9.90%
Market share in customers’ loans 7.18% 8.35% 8.78% 8.71% 8.51% 8.05% 8.00% 8.15% 8.43% 8.27%
Market share in customers’ deposits 9.32% 9.42% 9.55% 9.48% 9.41% 9.51% 9.66% 9.59% 9.89% 10.01%
Share Data
Book value per share in USD (5) 1.11 1.17 1.25 0.94 1.06 1.32 1.36 1.42 1.46 1.53
Earnings per common share in USD (5) 0.25 0.14 0.18 0.21 0.26 0.27 0.25 0.23 0.21 0.24
Earnings per priority share in USD (5) 0.29 0.17 0.22 0.24 0.29 0.30
Net dividend per common share in USD (6) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13
Net dividend per priority share in USD (6) (7) 0.01 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.16 0.16
Dividend payout ratio 50.63% 78.32% 62.17% 57.10% 58.71% 63.80% 59.62% 64.04% 68.61% 61.07%
3URŵWDELOLW\
Return on average assets 0.96% 1.00% 1.12% 1.18% 1.17% 1.23% 1.13% 1.00% 0.88% 0.94%
Return on average common equity 12.03% 11.37% 13.84% 14.56% 15.00% 14.03% 12.29% 11.28% 9.80% 11.07%
Leverage multiplier 10.87 11.37 12.41 10.46 10.48 9.38 10.07 10.29 11.21 11.28
Interest on earning assets 6.32% 7.16% 7.29% 6.97% 6.38% 5.84% 5.50% 5.25% 5.08% 5.19%
Funding cost 5.02% 5.66% 5.64% 4.99% 4.65% 4.21% 4.00% 3.98% 4.04% 4.19%
Spread 1.30% 1.49% 1.65% 1.98% 1.73% 1.63% 1.49% 1.27% 1.04% 1.00%
Net interest margin 1.70% 2.00% 2.10% 2.39% 2.17% 2.04% 1.88% 1.64% 1.40% 1.36%
Cost-to-income 49.56% 53.41% 51.81% 47.38% 46.28% 45.54% 43.65% 45.89% 46.86% 46.66%
Operating expenses to average assets 1.37% 1.42% 1.49% 1.77% 1.42% 1.47% 1.29% 1.28% 1.18% 1.15%
Capital Adequacy
Capital to assets 10.55% 9.18% 10.37% 11.31% 11.01% 11.97% 11.16% 11.32% 10.40% 10.31%
Capital adequacy (8) 25.04% 20.17% 11.23% 12.61% 12.62% 14.75% 14.60% 16.74% 16.04% 16.65%
Liquidity
Net advances/assets 19.77% 21.36% 23.54% 24.85% 23.55% 24.67% 24.14% 24.21% 24.40% 24.84%
Net advances/customers’ deposits 26.36% 27.88% 30.75% 33.37% 31.08% 31.62% 31.26% 30.78% 30.59% 30.08%
Customers’ deposits/total resources 75.02% 76.63% 76.56% 74.47% 75.77% 78.01% 77.22% 78.66% 79.79% 82.56%
Liquid assets 76.20% 74.00% 71.63% 70.69% 72.42% 71.85% 72.48% 72.56% 72.16% 72.29%
Assets Quality
Loan loss provisions (9)/customers’ loans 10.24% 8.73% 5.40% 4.19% 3.64% 3.45% 4.04% 5.30% 5.82% 6.11%
Non-performing loans/customers’ loans 10.47% 8.14% 4.66% 3.36% 2.63% 2.38% 3.02% 5.28% 4.85% 5.05%
Loan loss provision (9)/non-performing loans 91.30% 100.88% 107.51% 115.64% 134.10% 144.46% 132.77% 99.62% 119.77% 120.67%
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Byblos Bank is one of the leading banks in Lebanon, providing a full range of banking services through its extensive branch 
QHWZRUN��7KURXJK�LWV�RYHUVHDV�EDQNLQJ�DQG�RWKHU�VXEVLGLDULHV��DV�ZHOO�DV�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RIŵFHV��WKH�%DQN�DOVR�FRQGXFWV�D�ZLGH�
UDQJH�RI�FRPPHUFLDO�EDQNLQJ�DQG�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�DFWLYLWLHV�LQ�(XURSH�DQG�WKH�0LGGOH�(DVW�DQG�1RUWK�$IULFD��0(1$��UHJLRQ��$V�
at 31 December 2014, the Bank had 2,531 employees, 78 branches in Lebanon, one branch in Cyprus, and three in Iraq (Erbil, 
Baghdad, and Basra). As at the same date, Byblos Bank Europe S.A., the Bank’s 99.95% owned subsidiary, had its main branch in 
Brussels, one branch in London and another in Paris; Byblos Bank Africa, the Bank’s 56.86% owned subsidiary, had one branch in 
Khartoum and one branch in Bahri; Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C., the Bank’s 59.87% owned subsidiary, had four branches in Damascus 
(Abou Roummaneh, Mazzeh, Hosh Blass, and Abbassiyeen), and one branch in each of Aleppo, Homs, Lattakia, Tartous, Hama, and  
Swaidaa. Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C., the Bank’s 65% owned subsidiary, had three branches in Yerevan (Amirian, Malatia and 
Komitas) and one branch in Vanadzor. Byblos Bank RDC S.A., the Bank’s 66.67% owned subsidiary, had one branch in Kinshasa-
*RPEH��'HPRFUDWLF�5HSXEOLF�RI�WKH�&RQJR��7KH�%DQN�DOVR�KDV�D�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RIŵFH�LQ�$EX�'KDEL��8QLWHG�$UDE�(PLUDWHV��DQG�
another in Lagos, Nigeria, both of which are aimed at better servicing of the Lebanese Diaspora. 

7KH�IROORZLQJ�DQDO\VLV�FRYHUV�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�%DQN�GXULQJ�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDU������ZLWK�D�FRPSDUDWLYH�ZLWK�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDUV�
ZKHUH�WKH�GDWD�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�DXGLWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�%DQN��'DWD�IRU�WKH�VHFWRU�DUH�H[WUDFWHG�IURP�HLWKHU�
the Banque du Liban (BDL) quarterly bulletin, Bankdata, or the Alpha Group report, which consists of banks having total deposits 
JUHDWHU�WKDQ�86'���ELOOLRQ��7KH�DQDO\VLV�VWDUWV�ZLWK�D�GHWDLOHG�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�%DQNőV�JURZWK��SURŵWDELOLW\��DVVHW�TXDOLW\��FUHGLW�ULVN��
GLYLGHQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DQG�ŵQDOO\�DQ�RYHUYLHZ�RI�WKH�%DQNőV�UDWLQJV���

OVERVIEW OF THE BANK

GROWTH 

ASSETS

Total assets of the Bank recorded an increase of 3.0% during the 
year 2014 to reach LBP 28,695 billion (USD 19,035 million) at the 
end of December 2014 compared to an increase of 8.6% during 
the year 2013, and compared to an increase of 10.4% in the Alpha 
Group of top Lebanese banks. Consequently, the Bank’s market 
share in the Alpha Group by total assets stood at 9.8% at the 
end of 31 December 2014 compared to 10.5% at the end of 31 
December 2013.
 

During the period between 31 December 2011 and 31 
December 2014, total assets of the Bank grew at an average 
annual compounded rate of 4.7% compared to growth of 9.6% 
LQ�WKH�$OSKD�*URXS��ZKLFK�ZDV�UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�%DQNőV�PDUNHW�
share by total assets, which decreased from 11.2% at the end of 
December 2011 to 9.8% at the end of December 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The bar chart below shows the evolution of total assets and market share during the last four years:

Evolution of Total Assets During Last Four Years

ASSET SPLIT IN THE GROUP

The following pie charts show the breakdown of assets in the Byblos Bank Group as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014:

As illustrated above, total assets of international subsidiary banks and branches represented 9.0% of total assets as at 31 December 2014, 
lower than 11.1% at the end of the previous year. 

Asset Split in Group 2013 Asset Split in Group 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Geographical Distribution of Branches

Byblos Bank’s branch network reached 78 branches inside 
Lebanon at the end of 2014, representing 7.6% of total branches 
in the Lebanese banking sector. Byblos Bank’s branch presence is 
more concentrated in rural areas as compared to the distribution 
in the sector as a whole. Byblos Bank branches located in Mount 
Lebanon, numbering 20, represented 25.6% of total Byblos Bank 
branches at the end of December 2014 compared to just 19.0% 
in the Lebanese banking sector, and represented 10.3% of total 
branches in the Lebanese banking sector operating in Mount 
Lebanon. On the other hand, branches located in Beirut and its 
suburbs, 36 branches, represented 46.2% of total Byblos Bank 
branches at the end of December 2014 compared to 53.7% in the 
Lebanese banking sector, and represented 6.6% of total branches 
operating in Beirut and its suburbs.

The nine branches located in the North of Lebanon represented 
11.5% of total Byblos Bank branches compared to 9.9% in the 
Lebanese banking sector, and represented 8.9% of total branches 
of the Lebanese banking sector operating in North Lebanon. 
,Q�6RXWK�/HEDQRQ��HLJKW�EUDQFKHV��DQG�WKH�%HNDD�9DOOH\��ŵYH�
branches), Byblos Bank’s presence was almost identical to the 
Lebanese banking sector, with Byblos Bank branches located in 
the South and the Bekaa representing 10.3% and 6.4% of total 
Byblos Bank branches respectively, compared to 10.7% and 6.7% 
respectively in the Lebanese banking sector. 

The pie charts below show the geographical distribution of 
Byblos Bank branches in Lebanon as compared to the Lebanese 
banking sector as at 31 December 2014:

Byblos Bank Dec. 2014 Sector Dec. 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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3.0%37.5%
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Bank Placements
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11.5%
36.7%
24.8%

2.4%36.7%

At the end of 2014, the Byblos Bank Group’s presence 
abroad consisted of Cyprus; Erbil, Baghdad and Basra in 
Iraq (branches of Byblos Bank S.A.L.); Brussels, London, 
and Paris through our subsidiary Byblos Bank Europe S.A.; 
Khartoum and Bahri through our subsidiary Byblos Bank 
Africa (Sudan); Abou Roummaneh, Aleppo, Homs, Lattakia, 

ASSET BREAKDOWN

The pie charts below show the composition of the Bank’s assets as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014:

Geographical Distribution
of ATMs (Byblos Bank Dec. 2014)

Geographical Distribution
of ATMs (Sector Dec. 2014)

Breakdown of Assets 2013 Breakdown of Assets 2014

Mazzeh, Tartous, Hama, Abbassiyeen, Hosh Blass and Swaidaa 
through our subsidiary Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C.; Vanadzor, 
Malatia, Amirian and Komitas through our subsidiary Byblos 
Bank Armenia C.J.S.C.; and Kinshasa-Gombe through our 
subsidiary Byblos Bank RDC S.A.

Geographical Distribution of Automated Teller Machines (ATMs)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2012 2013 2014

LBP Million % LBP Million % LBP Million %

Lebanese and other governmental
treasury bills and bonds 

Lebanese Treasury bills in LBP 2,182,704 22.9 2,624,259 25.1 3,237,470 30.8

Lebanese and other governmental
bonds in foreign currencies 2,031,047 21.3 2,802,672 26.8 2,692,128 25.6

%RQGV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
ZLWK�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�

Corporate bonds 797,650 8.4 635,339 6.1 509,044 4.8

&RUSRUDWH�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�
in foreign currencies 164,122 1.7 33,102 0.3 33,147 0.3

&HQWUDO�%DQN�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�
in LBP and foreign currencies 4,259,293 44.7 4,239,371 40.6 3,916,550 37.2

6KDUHV��VHFXULWLHV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
with variable income in LBP and 
foreign currencies 

104,791 1.1 119,859 1.1 134,660 1.3

Collective Provisions (5,487) -0.1 (5,062) 0.0 (1,574) 0.0

Total 9,534,121 100 10,449,540 100 10,521,425 100

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PORTFOLIO

7KH�%DQNőV�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�SRUWIROLR��KHOG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW��IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�DQG�ORVV��IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�2&,��
LQFOXGHV�/HEDQHVH�7UHDVXU\�ELOOV�DQG�RWKHU�JRYHUQPHQWDO�ELOOV��FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW��ERQGV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�ZLWK�ŵ[HG�
LQFRPH��DQG�PDUNHWDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�ZLWK�YDULDEOH�LQFRPH�

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the Bank’s securities portfolio by type of instrument and currency as at 31 
December 2012, 2013 and 2014:

7KH�%DQNőV�SRUWIROLR�RI�VHFXULWLHV�LV�FODVVLŵHG�DV�IROORZV�

,QYHVWPHQWV�E\�&ODVVLŵFDWLRQ

$OO�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQL]HG�RQ�WKH�
trade date, i.e. the date that the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular 
ZD\Ŕ�WUDGHV��SXUFKDVHV�RU�VDOHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
 
7KH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�
%DQNőV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�
WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZ�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV��$VVHWV�DUH�

LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�SOXV��LQ�WKH�FDVH�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�
QRW�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��SDUWLFXODU�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV��
Assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value.
 
The Bank may, at initial recognition,  irrevocably designate a 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
LI�GRLQJ�VR�HOLPLQDWHV�RU�VLJQLŵFDQWO\�UHGXFHV�D�PHDVXUHPHQW�
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring 
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them 
RQ�GLIIHUHQW�EDVHV��$Q�HQWLW\�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�GLVFORVH�VXFK�ŵQDQFLDO�
assets separately from those mandatorily measured at fair value. 
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As at 31 December 2012

LBP Million

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 

at amortized 
cost

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through OCI
Accrued 
interest Total

&HQWUDO�%DQN�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�� 10,537 4,165,733 83,024 4,259,293

Lebanese and other governmental 
treasury bills and bonds 

253,890 3,899,640 60,221 4,213,751

%RQGV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
ZLWK�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�

7,655 779,037 10,958 797,650

6KDUHV��VHFXULWLHV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments with variable income 

26,127  78,664 104,791

&RUSRUDWH�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 163,869  253 164,122

Collective Provisions (5,487)  (5,487)

Total by category 26,127 272,082 9,002,792 78,664 154,456 9,534,121

Ř� DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST 
    Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortized  
    cost less any impairment loss (except for debt instruments that 
����DUH�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�XSRQ�LQLWLDO�
    recognition) if they meet the following two conditions: 
       1. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is  
�������WR�KROG�DVVHWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV��DQG
       2. The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on 
�������VSHFLŵHG�GDWHV�WR�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�
       principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Ř� DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  
PROFIT OR LOSS

    Included in this category are those debt instruments that do 
    not meet the conditions in “Debt instruments at amortized 
    cost” above, and debt instruments designated at fair value 
����WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�XSRQ�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

Ř� EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  
PROFIT OR LOSS

����,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
����WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��XQOHVV�WKH�*URXS�GHVLJQDWHV�DW�LQLWLDO�
    recognition an investment that is not held for trading as at 
    fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI).

Ř� EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

    Investments in equity instruments designated at initial 
����UHFRJQLWLRQ�DV�QRW�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
    through other comprehensive income.

The following tables set forth a breakdown of the Bank’s 
LQYHVWPHQW�VHFXULWLHV�SRUWIROLR��E\�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ��DV�DW����
December 2012, 2013 and 2014:
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As at 31 December 2013

LBP Million

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 

at amortized 
cost

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through OCI
Accrued 
interest Total

&HQWUDO�%DQN�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW��  322 4,159,115 79,932 4,239,371

Lebanese and other governmental 
treasury bills and bonds 

104,024 5,252,132 70,773 5,426,931

%RQGV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
ZLWK�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�

19,066 608,696 7,577 635,339

6KDUHV��VHFXULWLHV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments with variable income 

32,964  86,895 119,859

&RUSRUDWH�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 33,013  87 33,102

Collective Provisions (5,062)  (5,062)

   Total by category 32,964 123,414 10,047,896 86,895 158,371 10,449,540

As at 31 December 2014

LBP Million

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 
at fair value 

through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

Debt 
instruments 

at amortized 
cost

Equity 
instruments 
at fair value 

through OCI
Accrued 
interest Total

&HQWUDO�%DQN�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW��  3,085 3,849,688 63,777 3,916,550

Lebanese and other governmental 
treasury bills and bonds 

112,826 5,742,380 74,392 5,929,598

%RQGV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
ZLWK�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�

2,057 501,212 5,776 509,044

6KDUHV��VHFXULWLHV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments with variable income 

35,942  98,718 134,660

&RUSRUDWH�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 33,059  88 33,147

Collective Provisions (1,574)  (1,574)

   Total by category 35,942 117,968 10,124,765 98,718 144,033 10,521,425

$V�SHU�WKH�WDEOH�DERYH��������RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�
FODVVLŵHG�XQGHU�GHEW�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW��/HEDQHVH�
and other governmental treasury bills and bonds (in both LBP 
and foreign currencies) increased, as a percentage of the Bank’s 
total securities portfolio, to 56.4% (0.21% of total assets) as at 
31 December 2014, higher than the 51.9% (and 0.19% of total 
assets) as at 31 December 2013 and 44.2% (and 0.16% of total 
assets) as at 31 December 2012. Investments in Central Bank 

FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW��LQ�ERWK�/%3�DQG�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV��
represented 37.2% of the Bank’s portfolio (and 0.14% of total 
assets) as at 31 December 2014, as compared to 40.6% (and 
0.15% of total assets) as at 31 December 2013 and 44.7% (and 
0.17% of total assets) as at 31 December 2012. Corporate bonds 
represented 4.8% of the total portfolio as at 31 December 2014 
compared to 6.1% as at 31 December 2013 and 8.4% as at 31 
December 2012.
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Market Share within Alpha 
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CUSTOMERS’ LOANS

&XVWRPHUVő�ORDQV�QHW�RI�SURYLVLRQV��VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH��RQ�
doubtful loans and reserved interest on substandard and doubtful 
loans grew by 4.8% during the year 2014 to reach LBP 7,127 
billion (USD 4,728 million) at the end of 31 December 2014, 
compared to growth of 9.5% in 2013, and compared to growth 
of 11.7% in the Alpha Group of top Lebanese banks. The lower 
growth in the Bank’s net customers’ loans in comparison with the 
Alpha Group banks led to a decrease in the Bank’s market share 
of net customers’ loans to 7.8% at the end of 31 December 2014, 
down from 8.3% at the end of 31 December 2013. 

Evolution of Customers’ Loans During Last Four Years

During the period between 31 December 2011 and 31 
December 2014, net customers’ loans increased at an average 
annual compounded rate of 5.7% compared to growth of 12.6% 
in the Alpha Group. Consequently, the Bank’s market share of 
net customer advances dropped from 9.5% at the end of 31 
December 2011 to 7.8% at the end of 31 December 2014.

The chart below shows the evolution of net customers’ loans and 
their market shares over the last four years:
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Dec. 2012 Dec. 2013 Dec. 2014

LBP Million USD 000’s % of total LBP Million USD 000’s % of total LBP Million USD 000’s % of total

Corporate 2,685,886 1,781,683 40.4% 2,907,251 1,928,525 39.7% 3,054,036 2,025,895 39.8%

International 1,156,956 767,467 17.4% 1,212,237 804,137 16.6% 1,248,591 828,252 16.3%

Middle Market 356,078 236,204 5.4% 420,196 278,737 5.7% 458,089 303,874 6.0%

Retail 2,141,804 1,420,766 32.2% 2,366,038 1,569,511 32.3% 2,483,923 1,647,710 32.4%

Syndication 72,470 48,073 1.1% 161,278 106,984 2.2% 113,105 75,028 1.5%

Others 230,968 153,212 3.5% 249,641 165,599 3.4% 311,304 206,503 4.1%

Total 6,644,162 4,407,405 100.0% 7,316,641 4,853,493 100.0% 7,669,048 5,087,262 100.0%

Loan Breakdown by Nature of Borrower
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During 2014, Byblos Bank’s gross loan portfolio increased by 
4.8% (+LBP 352 billion) to reach LBP 7,669 billion (USD 5,087 
million) at the end of 31 December 2014 compared to an 
increase of 10.1% in 2013. 

Commercial Loan Portfolio 

Ř� The corporate loan portfolio increased by 5.0% (+LBP 147 
billion or USD 97 million) during the year 2014 to reach LBP 
3,054 billion (USD 2,026 million) at the end of 31 December 
2014, compared to an increase of 8.2% (+LBP 221 billion or 
USD 147 million) in 2013. Corporate loans represented 39.8% 
of the gross loan portfolio at the end of December 2014, 
compared to 39.7% at the end of 31 December 2013.

Ř� The international loan portfolio increased by 3.0% (+LBP 36 
billion or USD 24 million) during the year 2014 to reach LBP 
1,249 billion (USD 828 million) at the end of 31 December 

2014, compared to an increase of 4.8% (+LBP 55 billion or 
USD 37 million) in 2013. International loans represented 
16.3% of the gross loan portfolio compared to 16.6% at the 
end of December 2013. 

Ř� The middle market loan portfolio increased by 9.0% (+LBP 38 
billion or USD 25 million) during the year 2014 to reach LBP 
458 billion (USD 304 million) at the end of 31 December 2014, 
representing 6.0% of the gross loan portfolio.

Ř� Total exposure to syndicated loans at the end of 2014 
amounted to LBP 113 billion (USD 75 million) compared to 
LBP 161 billion (USD 107 million) at the end of December 
2013, representing 1.5% of the gross loan portfolio compared 
to 2.2% at the end of December 2013.

The chart below shows the breakdown of the loan portfolio by 
nature of borrower for the years 2012, 2013 and 2014:
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Dec. 2012 Dec. 2013 Dec. 2014

LBP Million USD 000’s % of total LBP Million USD 000’s % of total LBP Million USD 000’s % of total

Personal Loans 603,119 400,079 28.2% 652,110 432,577 27.6% 652,581 432,889 26.3%

Byblos Bank 
Housing Loans

461,626 306,219 21.5% 544,256 361,032 23.0% 599,887 397,935 24.1%

PHC Housing Loans 348,638 231,269 16.3% 446,683 296,307 18.9% 535,959 355,529 21.6%

Army Housing Loans 108,834 72,195 5.1% 123,708 82,062 5.2% 140,689 93,326 5.7%

Auto Loans 289,531 192,061 13.5% 259,211 171,948 11.0% 229,745 152,401 9.2%

Plastic Cards 76,826 50,963 3.6% 83,485 55,380 3.5% 88,956 59,009 3.6%

Kafalat 178,877 118,658 8.3% 171,801 113,964 7.2% 149,623 99,253 6.0%

Others 74,353 49,322 3.5% 84,784 56,241 3.6% 86,483 57,368 3.5%

Total Retail 2,141,804 1,420,766 100.0% 2,366,038 1,569,511 100.0% 2,483,923 1,647,710 100.0%
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In line with the Bank’s strategy to maintain Byblos Bank’s leader-
ship in retail, the retail loan portfolio increased from LBP 2,366 
billion (USD 1,570 million) as of 31 December 2013 to LBP 2,484 
billion (USD 1,648 million) as of 31 December 2014, recording 
growth of 5.0%. The main increase in retail loans was the result 
of the increase in housing loans, whose outstanding portfolios 
increased between 2013 and 2014 from USD 739 million to USD 
847 million, an increase of 14.5%. However, the improvement in 

housing loans was partially offset by the decrease in auto loans 
by 11.4% (-LBP 29 billion or USD 20 million) and the decrease in 
Kafalat loans by 12.9% (-LBP 22 billion or USD 15 million) during 
2014.

The chart below shows the evolution of retail loans throughout 
the last three years:
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Banks’ Deposits and Loans
Debt Instruments 
Customers’ Deposits 
Other Liabilities 
Equity 

5.2%
1.8%

79.8%
2.8%

10.4%79.8%

Banks’ Deposits and Loans
Debt Instruments 
Customers’ Deposits 
Other Liabilities 
Equity 

3.4%
1.6%

82.6%
2.2%

10.3%82.6%

Market Share within Alpha

2.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

14.00%

12.00%

16.00%

18.00%

20.00%

4.00%

0%

2,000

6,000

0

8,000

10,000

18,000

14,000

12
,8
20

10.4% 10.0% 10.0% 9.8%

13
,3
84

14
,7
49

15
,7
15

MARKET SHARE 

U
SD

 M
ill

io
n 12,000

16,000

4,000

Deposits

2012 20132011 2014Year

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES BREAKDOWN

Customers’ deposits represent the major source of funds with a share of 82.6% at the end of 2014, compared to a share of 79.8% at the 
end of 2013:

CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS

Customers’  deposits recorded an increase of 6.5% during 2014 
to reach LBP 23,691 billion (USD 15,715 million) at the end of 
31 December 2014 compared to an increase of 10.2% during 
2013, and compared to an increase of 9.4% in the Lebanese 
Alpha Group. Consequently, the Bank’s market share of total 
customers’ deposits in the Alpha Group of banks decreased 
slightly to 9.8% at the end of 2014 compared to 10.0% at 
the end of the previous year. During the period between 31 

December 2011 and 31 December 2012, the Bank’s customers’ 
deposits grew at an annual average compounded growth rate 
of 7.0% compared to growth of 9.2% for the Alpha Group. 
Consequently, the Bank’s market share decreased from 10.4% as 
at 31 December 2011 to 9.8% as at 31 December 2014.

The graph below shows the evolution of customers’ deposits 
over the last four years:

Evolution of Customers’ Deposits During Last Four Years

Breakdown of Liabilities
2013

Breakdown of Liabilities
2014
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Customers’ Deposits Currency Structure 

LBP Customers’ Deposits/Total Deposits (Byblos Bank vs. Alpha Group) 

As at 31 December 2012 2013 2014

LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total

Current accounts 3,291,348 16.3 3,353,030 15.1 3,264,135 13.8

Term deposits 15,617,849 77.4 17,458,400 78.5 18,986,964 80.2

Blocked accounts 963,958 4.8 1,044,999 4.7 1,004,709 4.2

Related parties’ accounts 205,343 1.0 261,324 1.2 311,970 1.3

Accrued interest 97,134 0.5 116,909 0.5 122,824 0.5

Total 20,175,633 100 22,234,662 100 23,690,602 100

The dollarization rate was not impacted by the economic and political tensions among different parties in Lebanon, the “Arab Spring” 
and its consequences on the country, or the worldwide economic slowdown. Therefore, customers’ deposits denominated in LBP 
remained almost unchanged between 2011 and 2014, with a slight increase from 38.7% in 2011 to 39.4% in 2014, and stayed in line 
with the trend in the sector. Compared to the Lebanese banking sector, Byblos Bank has a higher deposit base denominated in LBP as 
compared to 29.3% in the Alpha Group of banks as at the end of December 2014.

Customers’ Deposits by Type of Account

The following table shows the distribution of the Bank’s customers’ deposits by type of account as at 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014:

The composition of customers’ deposits stood almost  unchanged throughout the last three years, during which time they were 
comprised mostly of term deposits, which consisted of 80.2% of total customers’ deposits at the end of December 2014, as compared 
to 78.5% as at 31 December 2013, and to 77.4% as at 31 December 2012. 
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0DWXULW\�3URŵOH�RI�&XVWRPHUVő�'HSRVLWV

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�VKRZV�WKH�GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI�WKH�%DQNőV�FXVWRPHUVő�GHSRVLWV�E\�PDWXULW\�SURŵOH�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU������������DQG������

As at 31 December 2012 2013 2014

LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total

Less than 3 months 15,406,356 76.4 16,089,479 72.4 16,726,883 70.6

3 months to 1 year 3,725,139 18.5 4,282,229 19.2 4,925,149 20.8

1 year to 5 years 1,036,896 5.1 1,813,749 8.2 1,969,327 8.3

Over 5 years 7,242 0.0 49,205 0.2 69,243 0.3

Total 20,175,633 100 22,234,662 100 23,690,602 100
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Almost all of the Bank’s customers’ deposits are short-term, with deposits having a remaining maturity of less than one year 
representing 91.4% and 91.6% of total customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, respectively.

Customers’ Deposits Split in the Byblos Bank Group

The pie charts below show the split of customers’ deposits in the Byblos Bank Group:

Deposits by Group 2014Deposits by Group 2013
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In USD 000’s Dec. 2012 Dec. 2013 Dec. 2014

Central Bank of Lebanon 5,847 28,696 40,994

International Finance Corporation (IFC) 4,231 3,462

Arab Trade Finance Program 15,841 18,439 15,694

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 40,450 40,450

PROPARCO 3,347 1,753 384

OPEC Fund for International Development 12,167 4,500 1,833

European Investment Bank 126,055 105,503 100,150

Govco Incorporated NY 59,071 53,429 47,786

Agence Française de Développement 36,787 43,968 40,490

European Bank  for Reconstruction and Development 3,571 2,143 714

The European Fund for Southeast Europe (EFSE) 5,168 3,000

Citibank 5,000 3,167 1,750

Convertible subordinated loans 300,000 300,000 300,000

Byblos Bank Eurobond 300,000 300,000 300,000

Total Long-Term Sources of Funds 913,304 909,278 853,258

Geographical Distribution of Customers’ Deposits

The geographical distribution of the Bank’s customers’ deposits 
is in line with the geographical distribution of its branches, with 
customers’ deposits in branches located in Beirut and its suburbs 
(46.2% of total branches) representing 59.8% of total customers’ 
deposits in the Bank compared to 69.3% in the Lebanese banking 
sector. On the other hand, customers’ deposits in branches 
located in Mount Lebanon (25.6% of total branches) represented 
20.0% of the Bank’s customers’ deposits compared to 13.6% in 
the Lebanese banking sector; customers’ deposits in branches 
located in North Lebanon (11.5% of total branches) represented 
8.4% of the Bank’s customers’ deposits, higher than 4.9% in the 
Lebanese banking sector. In the South (10.3% of total branches), 
Byblos Bank’s customers’ deposit concentration was 7.6% 

compared to 6.5% in the Lebanese banking sector. In the Bekaa 
Valley, the Bank’s customers’ deposits are less concentrated than 
in the Lebanese banking sector, with 4.2% of the Bank’s total 
customers’ deposit located in the Bekaa (6.4% of total branches) 
compared to 5.7% in the Lebanese banking sector. 

LONG-TERM SOURCES OF FUNDS

As a part of its strategy to match its longer-term loan portfolio 
with longer-term funding sources, the Bank has tapped into 
several types of long-term funding resources. The following 
table shows the breakdown of the Bank’s long-term sources of 
funding as at 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively: 

Byblos Bank Dec. 2014 Sector Dec. 2014
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LBP Million 2012 2013 2014 Growth (Vol.) Growth (%)

Net interest income 402,641 363,358 371,336 7,978 2.2%

Net allocation to provisions (106,286) (79,551) (42,915) 36,636 -46.1%

Net commission income 135,699 138,993 135,865 (3,129) -2.3%

1HW�SURŵWV�RQ�ŵQDQFLDO�RSHUDWLRQV 146,452 149,590 166,856 17,266 11.5%

,PSDLUPHQW�ORVVHV�RQ�ŵQDQFLDO�LQYHVWPHQWV 19,490 419 3,487 3,068 732.2%

Other operating income 241,450 23,564 21,879 (1,684) -7.1%

Total Operating Income 
(Before Provisions and Impairment) 709,243 675,504 695,935 20,431 3.0%

Total Operating Income
(After Provisions and Impairment) 622,445 596,373 656,507 60,135 10.1%

Operating expenses (294,212) (289,187) (299,658) (10,471) 3.6%

Depreciation and amortization (31,282) (27,377) (25,041) 2,337 -8.5%

Taxes (44,692) (44,359) (67,277) (22,917) 51.7%

Net Income 252,259 235,449 264,532 29,083 12.4%

Bank’s share 246,451 224,683 252,792 

Dividend on Preferred Shares 
(Series 2008)

(24,160) (24,240) (24,240)

Dividend on Preferred Shares 
(Series 2009)

(24,160) (24,240) (24,240)

Net income related 
to common shares

198,131 176,203 204,312 

Weighted average number of common 
shares during the period

561,749,874 561,731,039 562,510,901 

Earnings per common share 352.70 313.68 363.21 

PROFITABILITY

Net income for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 264,532 million 
(USD 175 million), recording an increase of 12.4% (+LBP 29,083 
million or USD 19.3 million) compared to LBP 235,449 million 
(USD 156 million) for the year 2013. Return on average assets 
(ROA) stood at 0.94% at the end of December 2014 compared 
to 0.88% at the end of December 2013. In addition, return on 

average common equity (ROCE) stood at 11.07% compared 
to 9.80% at the end of December 2013. Earnings per common 
share based on the weighted average number of shares stood at 
LBP 363.21 (USD 0.241) in 2014 compared to LBP 313.68 (USD 
0.208) in 2013.
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The contribution of the Bank’s subsidiaries to consolidated net 
income is presented below:  

Ř� Byblos Bank Africa’s net income for the year 2014 amounted 
to LBP 8,650 million (USD 6.8 million) compared to LBP 8,248 
million (USD 5.5 million) for the year 2013. 

Ř� Byblos Bank Europe’s net income for the year 2014 amounted 
to LBP 10,278 million (USD 6.8 million) compared to LBP 
12,069 million (USD 8.0 million) for the year 2013. 

Ř� Byblos Bank Syria’s net income stood at LBP 8,384 million 
(USD 5.6 million) at the end of 2014 compared to LBP 4,752 
million (+USD 3.2 million) for the year 2013. 

Ř� Byblos Invest Bank’s net income stood at LBP 4,298 million 
(+USD 2.9 million) at the end of 2014 compared to LBP 994 
million (+USD 0.7 million) for the year 2013. 

Ř� Byblos Bank Armenia’s net loss stood at LBP 3,994 million 
(-USD 2.6 million) at the end of 2014 compared to a net loss of 
LBP 1,289 million (USD 0.9 million) for the year 2013. 

Ř� 1HW�LQFRPH�RI�WKH�LQVXUDQFH�FRPSDQLHV�Ŏ�$GRQLV�,QVXUDQFH�
and Reinsurance S.A.L. (ADIR), Adonis Insurance and 
Reinsurance Syria (ADIR Syria), and Adonis Brokerage House 
�$%+��Ŏ�IRU�WKH�\HDU������DPRXQWHG�WR�/%3��������PLOOLRQ�
(USD  11.5 million) compared to LBP 15,306 million (USD 10.2 
million) for the year 2013.

Pie charts below show the contribution of the Bank’s subsidiaries 
to consolidated income between the years 2013 and 2014:

2013 2014
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2013 2014

Average 
balance

LBP Million

Interest 
earned

LBP Million

Average 
rate

%

Average 
balance

LBP Million

Interest 
earned

LBP Million

Average rate
%

ASSETS

Interest-bearing deposits in 
banks and central banks

13,729,793 512,191 3.73% 14,144,904 539,787 3.82%

Corporate bonds 809,926 26,840 3.31% 602,092 21,178 3.52%

Customers’ loans 6,505,751 458,704 7.05% 6,963,889 489,767 7.03%

Treasury bills and bonds 4,820,248 315,738 6.55% 5,678,171 370,141 6.52%

Total Interest-Earning Assets 25,865,718 1,313,473 5.08% 27,389,056 1,420,873 5.19%

Premises and equipment 289,102 0 0.00% 276,333 0 0.00%

Other non-interest-bearing assets 603,419 0 0.00% 615,014 0 0.00%

Total Average Assets 26,758,239 1,313,473 4.91% 28,280,403 1,420,873 5.02%

LIABILITIES

Customers’ deposits 21,205,148 854,971 4.01% 22,962,631 962,496 4.19%

Subordinated loans 411,632 30,747 7.47% 413,474 31,347 7.58%

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 507,600 35,085 6.91% 475,938 32,227 6.77%

Interest-bearing deposits 
and loans to banks

1,392,068 29,312 2.11% 1,206,950 23,467 1.94%

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 23,516,448 950,115 4.04% 25,058,993 1,049,537 4.19%

Other liabilities 753,095 0 0.00% 706,641 0 0.00%

Shareholders’ equity 2,488,696 0 0.00% 2,514,769 0 0.00%

Total Average Liabilities 
and Equity 26,758,239 950,115 3.55% 28,280,403 1,049,537 3.71%

Net interest spread (a) 1.04% 1.00%

Net interest spread (b) 1.36% 1.31%

Net interest margin 1.40% 1.36%

Interest-Earning Assets/
Interest-Bearing Liabilities 1.10 1.09

(a) Average return on interest-earning assets minus average cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

(b) Average return on assets minus average cost of liabilities and equity.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income before provisions for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 371,336 million (USD 246.3 million), recording an increase of 
2.2% (+LBP 7,978 million or USD 5.3 million) compared to a decrease of 9.8% during 2013, when it stood at LBP 363,358 million (USD 
241.0 million). Consequently, net interest margin stood at 1.36% at the end of 2014 compared to 1.40% at the end of 2013.
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LBP Million 2012 2013 2014

6SHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV�
set up during the year

  Doubtful debts 119,682 115,097 74,568 

��'RXEWIXO�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
  institutions accounts

- - -

  Writeoffs 66 80 178

Total Provisions Allocated 119,747 115,177 74,746

6SHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV�
written back during the year:

  Loans recovered or upgraded (9,497) (25,566) (25,128)

  Unrealized interest on loans and 
  advances to customers

(3,022) (9,163) (6,257)

��'RXEWIXO�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
  institutions accounts

(942) (897) (446)

Total Provisions Recoveries (13,461) (35,626) (31,831)

Net Provisions Allocated 106,286 79,551 42,915 

PROVISIONS ALLOCATED

1HW�SURYLVLRQV��VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH��DOORFDWHG�IRU�GRXEWIXO�DQG�QRUPDO�ORDQV�GHFUHDVHG�E\���������/%3��������PLOOLRQ���UHDFKLQJ�
LBP 42,915 million (USD 28.5 million) for the year 2014, as compared to LBP 79,551 million (USD 52.8 million) for the year 2013. 

7KH�%DQN�DOORFDWHG�VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�GRXEWIXO�ORDQV�LQ�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�/%3��������PLOOLRQ��86'������PLOOLRQ��GXULQJ�
the year 2014 as compared to LBP 115,097 million (USD 76.3 million) the previous year. Collective provisions alone added up to 
USD 32.1 million and were booked as follows: USD 12.8 million for Byblos Bank  S.A.L. (USD 2.7 million for retail portfolio as per new 
Central Bank of Lebanon circulars numbers 376 and 386, USD 3.9 million as per internal risk policies for the commercial portfolio); 
USD 16.3 million for Byblos Bank Syria; USD 1.8 million for Byblos Bank Africa; and USD 1.2 million for Byblos Bank S.A.L. operations 
in Iraq as compared to USD 18.2 million allocated during the same period of last year on the Group level. Furthermore, the Bank 
recovered provisions in the amount of USD 13.1 million for Byblos Bank Syria, and USD 6.6 million for Byblos Bank S.A.L.

&RYHUDJH�RI�QRQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�ORDQV�E\�VSHFLŵF�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�UHVHUYHG�LQWHUHVW�VWRRG�DW��������DV�DW����'HFHPEHU�
2014, as compared to 119.8% as at 31 December 2013. Additional details on coverage of non-performing loans will be discussed in 
the section on asset quality. 

Management Discussion and AnalysisByblos Bank S.A.L.

60



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LBP Million 2012 2013 2014 Growth (Vol.) Growth (%)

Commissions on documentary 
credits and acceptances 41,557 41,142 37,135 (4,007) -9.7%

  out of which in Lebanon* 15,820 14,589 13,363 (1,226) -8.4%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Europe 19,164 20,867 19,511 (1,356) -6.5%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Africa 5,143 5,345 3,955 (1,390) -26.0%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Syria 1,378 214 170 (44) -20.4%

  out of which in Byblos Bank DR Congo 52 127 135 8 6.4%

Commissions on letters of guarantee 16,593 15,357 15,861 504 3.3%

  out of which in Lebanon* 13,194 13,239 13,825 586 4.4%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Europe 829 731 812 81 11.1%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Africa 293 373 383 10 2.7%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Syria 2,150 753 598 (155) -20.6%

  out of which in Byblos Bank Armenia 4 0 0 0 

  out of which in Byblos Bank DR Congo 123 261 243 (18) -7.0%

Securities Income 
(realized and unrealized)

80,108 80,927 113,611 32,683 40.4%

Dividends received 5,042 1,715 3,293 1,578 92.0%

Foreign exchange income 61,302 66,949 49,952 (16,996) -25.4%

Other commissions on banking services 77,549 82,493 82,869 375 0.5%

Total Non-Interest Income (Net)** 282,152 288,583 302,721 14,138 4.9%

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Non-interest income for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 302,721 million (USD 200.8 million), recording an increase of 4.9% (+LBP 
14,138 million/+USD 9.4 million) as compared to LBP 288,583 million (USD 191.4 million) for the same period of last year.  

Ř� Commissions on documentary credits and acceptances for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 37,135 million (USD 24.6 million), 
UHFRUGLQJ�D�GHFUHDVH�RI������DV�FRPSDUHG�WR�/%3��������PLOOLRQ��86'������PLOOLRQ��LQ�������7UDGH�ŵQDQFH�DFWLYLWLHV�LQ������
represented 12.3% of total non-interest income, compared to 14.3% in 2013. 

Ř� Commissions on letters of guarantee for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 15,861 (USD 10.5 million), recording an increase of 3.3% as 
compared to LBP 15,357 million (USD 10.2 million) in 2013. 

Ř� Realized and unrealized gains on the securities portfolio for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 113,611 million (USD 75.4 million), 
recording an increase of 40.4% as compared to a gain of LBP 80,927 million (USD 53.7 million) in 2013.  

Ř� Gains on foreign exchange trading for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 49,952 million (USD 33.1 million), as compared to LBP 66,949 
million (USD 44.4 million) in 2013. 

* Lebanon includes Cyprus and Iraq.



�1HW�FRPPLVVLRQV��SOXV�QHW�WUDGLQJ�LQFRPH��SOXV�QHW�JDLQ�RU�ORVV�RQ�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
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OPERATING EXPENSES

LBP Million 2012 2013 2014
Growth  

(vol.)
Growth  

(%)

Staff Expenses 154,321 162,226 167,617 5,392 3.3%

General Expenses 139,891 126,961 132,041 5,080 4.0%

Depreciation and Amortization 31,281 27,377 25,041 (2,336) -8.5%

Total Operating Expenses 325,493 316,564 324,699 8,135 2.6%

Operating expenses for the year 2014 amounted to LBP 324,699 
million (USD 215.4 million), recording an increase of 2.6% (+LBP 
8,135 million) as compared to LBP 316,563 million (USD 210.0 
million) in 2013. Consequently, the cost-to-income ratio stood 
at 46.7% in 2014 compared to 46.9% in 2013. Furthermore, 
operating expenses to average assets stood at 1.15% in 2014 
compared to 1.18% in 2013 

The pie charts below show the breakdown of operating 
expenses for the last two years.

The graph below shows the evolution of operating expenses and 
the cost-to-income ratio over the last three years:

Breakdown of Operating 
Expenses 2014

Breakdown of Operating 
Expenses 2013
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ASSETS QUALITY

LOAN PORTFOLIO

Based on Circular 58 issued by the Banque du Liban (BDL), 
/HEDQRQőV�&HQWUDO�%DQN��DOO�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
operating in Lebanon have been required as of 2011 to classify 
loans according to six categories of risk: (i) regular accounts; (ii) 
follow-up accounts; (iii) follow-up and regularization accounts; 
(iv) substandard accounts; (v) doubtful accounts; and (vi) 
bad accounts. 

%\EORV�%DQN�DGRSWV�WKH�UHJXODWRU\�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�JUDGLQJ�
and also applies an internal rating system that incorporates 
DQG�UHŵQHV�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�%DQN�EHOLHYHV�WKDW��DV�DW�
31 December 2014, it was in compliance with all related 
requirements. Reports to the Central Bank and the Banking 
Control Commission are made in accordance with the Central 
%DQN�FODVVLŵFDWLRQV��

The Banking Control Commission of Lebanon issued Circular 
280, dated 2 January 2015, to clarify the amendments 
introduced by the BDL to Circular 81 (Intermediate Circular 383 
dated 24 December 2014) regarding new standards for granting 
retail and housing loans and new provisioning and reserve 
requirements. Circular 280 included the following changes:

1) Retail and Housing Loans: New Loan Granting Standards 

Banks should abide by a debt-service coverage (DSC) ratio of 
35% when granting retail loans and housing loans. They also 
must abide by a loan-to-value (LTV) ratio of 75% when granting 
housing loans and auto loans. The DSC ratio is total household 
monthly loan repayments to banks divided by household 
monthly income. When the same borrower is granted a housing 
loan and other loans, the DSC may reach 45% but the housing 
loan DSC must not exceed 35%.  

2)�5HWDLO�DQG�+RXVLQJ�/RDQV��1HZ�/RDQ�&ODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�
Provision  Requirements

The circular introduced collective provision rates for regular 
retail loans delinquent for 30 days or less of 1.5% to be reached 
progressively by end-2017 and starting with 0.25% in 2014. 
$QRWKHU�SURYLVLRQ�Ŏ�UHDFKLQJ�����IRU�FUHGLW�FDUGV�DQG�����IRU�
DXWR�ORDQV�Ŏ�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�WKH�GHOLQTXHQF\�EUDFNHW�RI����GD\V�
to 90 days. Loans showing delinquency between 91 days and 

����GD\V�DUH�QRZ�DVVLJQHG�D�VSHFLŵF�SURYLVLRQ�RI������DXWR�
loans) or 50% (all other retail loans). Retail and housing loans 
DUH�WR�EH�DVVLJQHG�IXOO�VSHFLŵF�SURYLVLRQ�VWDUWLQJ�ZLWK�RQH�\HDU�
RI�GHOLQTXHQF\��FUHGLW�FDUGV�DQG�SHUVRQDO�ORDQV��DQG�XS�WR�ŵYH�
years (housing loans). 

3) Recognized Collateral and Guarantees

The following collateral and guarantees are recognized as 
RIIVHWWLQJ�D�ORDQ�EDODQFH��FDVK��EDQN�JXDUDQWHH�SD\DEOH�RQ�ŵUVW�
demand; Kafalat corporate guarantee. 

4) Retail and Housing Reserve Requirements

On top of allocating collective provisions against the regular 
retail portfolio (up to 30 days’ delinquency), banks are requested 
to allocate a general reserve denominated in LBP for 0.5% of the 
balance of the portfolio at end-2014, and then 0.5% annually for 
six years beginning in 2015. Housing loans, student loans and 
education loans are exempted from this treatment. The general 
reserve is eligible in CET1.  

5) Commercial Loans: Treatment of Collective Provisions and 
General Reserve 

i)  Banks are required to conduct impairment tests on their  
    non-impaired commercial loans, based on IFRS standards, at  
    least once every year, and to allocate corresponding  
    collective provisions;

ii) Banks will gradually assign a general reserve, denominated  
    in LBP, for up to 1.5% of the commercial portfolio to be 
    reached by 31 December 2017, with the following minimum 
    phase-in compliance: 0.25% booked in 2014, 0.5% in 2015, 
    1% in 2016, and 1.5% in 2017. Banks that have already booked 
    a similar amount in collective provisions are exempted from 
    this treatment. 

     
    Byblos Bank was in full compliance with BDL 383 and 
    BCCL 280 provision requirements as of 31 December 2014, 
    with  comfortable collective provision against the commercial 
    portfolio largely exceeding the amount required by 
    regulations. The Bank undertook the necessary changes in its 
    retail and housing program loans to be in compliance with 
    the new retail and housing loan granting conditions. 
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As at 31 December 2012 2013 2014

GROSS BALANCES (1) LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total

Regular 5,303,374 80.0 6,348,301 87.0 6,324,891 82.7

Follow-up 616,041 9.3 313,656 4.3 531,051 7.0

Follow-up and regularization 344,463 5.2 277,635 3.8 367,369 4.8

Substandard loans 13,145 0.2 3,486 0.0 30,618 0.4

Doubtful loans 223,128 3.4 124,545 1.7 138,013 1.8

Bad loans 127,661 1.9 230,489 3.2 248,997 3.3

Total 6,627,812 100.0 7,298,112 100.0 7,640,939 100.0

As at 31 December 2012 2013 2014

NET BALANCES (1 and 2) LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total LBP Million % of total

Regular 5,303,374 83.0 6,348,301 90.6 6,324,891 86.4

Follow-up 616,040 9.6 313,656 4.5 531,051 7.3

Follow-up and regularization 344,463 5.4 277,635 4.0 367,369 5.0

Substandard loans 10,754 0.2 2,569 0.0 29,358 0.4

Doubtful loans 114,055 1.8 60,494 0.9 68,128 0.9

Bad loans 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0

Total 6,388,686 100.0 7,002,655 100.0 7,320,797 100.0

(1) Loans and advances to customers excluding related parties, and gross of interest received in advance and accruals.

����1HW�RI�VSHFLŵF�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�UHVHUYHG�LQWHUHVW�

7KH�*URXS�UHYLHZV�LWV�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�DW�HDFK�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�WR�DVVHVV�ZKHWKHU�DQ�
impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated income statement. In particular, judgment by management is required in 
WKH�HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�ZKHQ�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV��,Q�HVWLPDWLQJ�WKHVH�FDVK�ŶRZV��
WKH�*URXS�PDNHV�MXGJPHQWV�DERXW�WKH�ERUURZHUőV�ŵQDQFLDO�VLWXDWLRQ�DQG�WKH�QHW�UHDOL]DEOH�YDOXH�RI�FROODWHUDO��7KHVH�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�
based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. 

The tables below show the breakdown of the Bank’s loan portfolio (gross and net) over the last three years:
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LBP Million Dec. 2012 Dec. 2013 Dec. 2014

Substandard loans 13,145 3,486 30,618

Non-performing loans 350,790 355,034 387,011

7RWDO�&ODVVŵHG�/RDQV 363,935 358,520 417,629

6SHFLŵF�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�ORDQ�ORVVHV 167,778 213,603 222,680

General provisions and collective provisions 112,732 130,669 148,135

  out of which general and collective 

  provisions for retail
31,540 32,290 10,891

Reserved interest (sub-standard loans) 2,391 917 1,260

Reserved interest (non-performing loans) 68,957 80,937 96,201

Total Provisions and Cash Collateral 351,859 426,126 468,276

Substandard loans/total loans 0.20% 0.05% 0.40%

Non-performing loans/total loans 5.28% 4.85% 5.05%

7RWDO�FODVVLŵHG�WRWDO�ORDQV 5.48% 4.90% 5.45%

Total provisions/total loans 5.30% 5.82% 6.11%

NPL provisions/non-performing loans (*) 99.62% 119.77% 120.67%

NPL provisions/non-performing loans (**) 90.63% 110.67% 117.86%

7RWDO�SURYLVLRQV�WRWDO�FODVVLŵHG�ORDQV��
� 96.68% 118.86% 112.13%

6SHFLŵF�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�
reserved interest/NPL

67.49% 82.96% 82.40%


�,QFOXGHV�VSHFLŵF��JHQHUDO�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�SURYLVLRQV��UHVHUYHG�LQWHUHVW�
** Excluding general provisions for retail loans.

Provisioning and Coverage Ratios
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Non-Performing Loans/Total Loans
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7RWDO�FODVVLŵHG�ORDQV��VXEVWDQGDUG��GRXEWIXO��DQG�EDG��DPRXQWHG�
to LBP 417,629 million (USD 277 million) at the end of 31 
December 2014, representing 5.5% of the total loan portfolio 
compared to LBP 358,520 million (USD 238 million) at the end 
of December 2013, representing 4.9% of the total loan portfolio. 
Total non-performing loans (doubtful and bad) amounted to 
LBP 387,011 million (USD 257 million) as at 31 December 2014, 
representing 5.1% of the total loan portfolio, up from 4.9% at 
WKH�HQG�RI����'HFHPEHU�������6SHFLŵF��JHQHUDO�DQG�FROOHFWLYH�
provisions (excluding general provisions for the retail loan 

portfolio), as well as reserved interest on non-performing loans, 
amounted to LBP 456,126 million (USD 303 million), covering 
up to 117.9% of total non-performing loans as at 31 December 
2014 compared to 110.7% at the end of 31 December 2013.

Substandard loans amounted to LBP 30,618 million (USD 20.3 
million) at the end of 31 December 2014, representing 0.4% of 
the total loan portfolio compared to LBP 3,486 million (USD 2.3 
million) and 0.05% respectively at the end of 31 December 2013. 

&ODVVLŵHG�/RDQV
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2013 20142012Year

Provision on B/S/Gross NPL 

December 

Liquid Assets to Total Assets Dec. 12 Dec. 13 Dec. 14

Cash and Central Bank 38.08% 36.07% 38.22%

��RXW�RI�ZKLFK�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 16.61% 15.21% 13.65%

Lebanese and Other 
Governmental Securities 16.43% 19.47% 20.67%

%RQGV�DQG�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�VHFXULWLHV 3.73% 2.38% 1.88%

%DQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 14.33% 14.24% 11.52%

Total Liquidity 72.57% 72.16% 72.29%

Liquid Assets to Customers’ Deposits Dec-12 Dec-13 Dec-14

Cash and Central Bank 48.41% 45.20% 46.29%

��RXW�RI�ZKLFK�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW 21.11% 19.07% 16.53%

Lebanese and Other 
Governmental Securities 20.89% 24.41% 25.03%

%RQGV�DQG�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�VHFXULWLHV 4.74% 2.98% 2.28%

%DQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 18.22% 17.85% 13.96%

Total Liquidity 92.26% 90.44% 87.56%

LIQUIDITY

As shown above, the Bank maintained a high level of liquid 
assets to meet foreseeable liability maturity requirements. As at 
31 December 2014, liquid assets (comprised of cash, reserves 
and placements with central banks, Lebanese Government 

VHFXULWLHV��SODFHPHQWV�ZLWK�EDQNV��DQG�RWKHU�ŵ[HG�LQFRPH�
securities) represented 72.3% of total assets and 87.6% of 
customers’ deposits compared to 72.2% and 90.4% respectively 
as at 31 December 2013.
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CAPITAL 

As of 31 December 2014, the Bank’s share capital was LBP 
689,113 million, consisting of (i) a single class of 565,515,040 
Common Shares, with a par value LBP 1,210 per share, all of 
which are fully paid-up; (ii) 2,000,000 Preferred Shares, with a par 
value of LBP 1,210 per share, which were issued on 15 August 
2008 at a price of, and may, subject to certain conditions, be 
redeemed by the Bank at, USD 100.00 per share, all of which are 
fully paid-up; (iii) 2,000,000 Preferred Shares, with a par value of 
LBP 1,210 per share, which were issued on 4 September 2009 
at a price of USD 96.00 per share, and may, subject to certain 
conditions, be redeemed by the Bank at, USD 100.00 per share, 
all of which are fully paid-up. 

On 19 February 2009, the Bank listed Global Depositary 
Shares on the London Stock Exchange representing 26% of the 
Bank’s common shares. The Bank of New York Mellon acts as 
the depositary bank of the issue. The Bank aimed to increase 
liquidity through the listing of Global Depositary Shares and to 

promote further transparency for investors. According to the 
/RQGRQ�6WRFN�([FKDQJH��%\EORV�%DQN�ZDV�WKH�ŵUVW�/HEDQHVH�
company to list on the London Stock Exchange in 12 years 
DQG�WKH�ŵUVW�EDQN�WR�OLVW�RQ�WKH�/6(�LQ�������VKRZLQJ�UHVLOLHQFH�
GHVSLWH�WKH�RQJRLQJ�JOREDO�ŵQDQFLDO�FULVLV���

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 

As a consolidated Group, Byblos Bank’s Total Capital Ratio stood 
at 16.7% as at 31 December 2014, with the Tier 1 Capital and 
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratios coming in at 13.7% and 
9.9%, respectively (see table below). These ratios are measured 
according to Basel III requirements and BDL Intermediate 
Circular 358, dated 6 March 2014. The latter stipulates a lower 
risk weight applied to foreign currency-denominated claims 
on the BDL of 50% instead of 100% required under the Basel II 
Standardized Approach. Measured under a strict interpretation 
of the Basel III rules, the Total Capital, Tier 1 Capital and CET1 
ratios would reach 14.4%, 11.9%, and 8.6%, respectively. 

BYBLOS BANK GROUP BASEL III (*) CAPITAL RATIOS  

31 December

(LBP Million except ratios) 2012 2013 2014

Common equity ratio (CET1) 9.7% 9.5% 9.9%

Tier 1 capital ratio 13.7% 13.2% 13.7%

Total capital adequacy ratio 16.7% 16.0% 16.7%

Common equity 1,486,461 1,534,004 1,568,435

Tier 1 capital 2,097,762 2,135,290 2,170,015

Tier 2 capital 465,632 464,967 463,616

Total capital base 2,563,394 2,600,257 2,633,631

Total risk-weighted assets (RWA) 15,315,380 16,206,434 15,815,521

  Credit risk RWA 13,603,485 14,758,060 14,467,658

  Market risk RWA 489,831 304,905 242,529

  Operational risk RWA 1,222,064 1,143,469 1,105,334

(*) After applying a risk weight of 50% to foreign currency-denominated claims on the BDL for all years, instead of 100%, as per BDL 

Intermediate Circular 358.

5HJXODWRU\�FDSLWDO�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�SURŵW�DSSURSULDWLRQ�RI�WKH�\HDU�
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As for the Leverage Ratio, it reached 6.5% at 31 December 2014 
EDVHG�RQ�%&%6�DQG�WKH�%'/őV�GHŵQLWLRQ��7KH�%&%6�KDV�VHW�WKH�
Leverage Ratio as a non-risk-based measurement formed by 
Tier 1 in the numerator divided by total assets plus off balance 
sheet items and committed lines in the denominator. The BCBS 
has set the minimum ratio at 3%, with effective disclosure date in 
January 2015.

In addition to measuring the capital requirements under Pillar 
1, Byblos Bank has undertaken to estimate the supplementary 
capital charge that would be needed to cover the interest 

The table below shows the Lebanon and Basel Committee (BCBS) timetables for compliance with Basel III ratios. It shows that Byblos 
Bank was operating at comfortable solvency levels as at 31 December 2014, as measured against established regulatory ratios and 
timetables to meet the requirements of Basel III.   

Timetable to comply with Basel III CAR ratios in Lebanon compared with BCBS target ratios and deadlines (BDL Basic Circular 44):

Basel III minimum 
CAR ratios / Deadline

Lebanon timetable BCBS

31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2013 31 Dec. 2014 31 Dec. 2015(*) 1 Jan. 2019(*) 

CET1 Ratio 5% 6% 7% 8% 7%

Tier 1 Ratio 8% 8.5% 9.5% 10% 8.5%

Total Capital Ratio 10% 10.5% 11.5% 12% 10.5%

�
��7DUJHW�UDWLRV�LQFOXGH�D������FDSLWDO�FRQVHUYDWLRQ�EXIIHU�EXW�H[FOXGH�DQ\�VXUFKDUJH�IRU�V\VWHPDWLFDOO\�LPSRUWDQW�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
(SIFIs) or other countercyclical buffer.

rate risk in the banking book and the credit concentration risk 
falling under Pillar 2. To perform these measurements, the Bank 
used stress-test scenarios and other classical tools to estimate 
risk concentrations. 

Moreover, the Bank has conducted stress-test scenarios to 
assess the impact on capital and liquidity of higher sovereign 
ULVNV��LQFUHDVHG�SRUWIROLR�GHIDXOWV��DQG�IXQGLQJ�RXWŶRZV��DQG�KDV�
found both the capital buffer and the liquidity buffer to be at 
satisfactory levels. 
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THE BASEL COMMITTEE’S CONSULTATIVE 
DOCUMENT ON THE REVISIONS TO THE 
STANDARDIZED APPROACH FOR CREDIT 
RISK – A SUMMARY

The Basel Committee has proposed a revision of the credit risk 
weights (RW) under the Standardized Approach (SA) of Basel 
II/Basel III. The consultative document issued on 22 December 
2014 for comments by 27 March 2015 comes as a response to 
WKH�*����UHTXHVW�DIWHU�WKH�JOREDO�ŵQDQFLDO�FULVLV�������������
to reduce the reliance on external rating agencies. In brief, the 
Committee proposes to replace the reference to external rating 
ZLWK�RWKHU�ERUURZHU�VSHFLŵF�ULVN�GULYHUV�WR�DVVLJQ�ULVN�ZHLJKWV��
The treatment is dependent on the type of asset.

Main proposed revisions are summarized below.  
  
i) Claims on the Sovereign have not been addressed in  
   the proposal. 
ii) Claims on Banks are assessed independently from their    
   sovereign of incorporation so far, but the Committee may 
   consider incorporating country risk as an additional risk driver.
   Claims on banks will be assessed based on two risk drivers: 
- Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio, and 
- Net Non-Performing Assets (net NPA) ratio. 

The preferential risk weight of 20% that was assigned to short-
term claims on banks in Basel II has been removed. To be 
allocated the best risk weight of 30% in the new proposal, a 
bank must have a CET1 ratio of at least 12%, along with a net 
NPA ratio not exceeding 1%. Banks with CET1 ratios below 5.5% 
or net NPA ratios above 3% will receive a risk weight of 120% or 
140%. Banks with CET1 ratios below 4.5% receive a punitive risk 
weight of 300%.

iii) Claims on Corporates are assessed based on two new 
    risk drivers: 
- Revenue, i.e. annual sales; and 
��/HYHUDJH��GHŵQHG�E\�7RWDO�$VVHWV�WR�7RWDO�(TXLW\��

7KH�EHVW�FRUSRUDWH�SURŵOHV�ZLOO�JHW�D�ULVN�ZHLJKW�RI�����LI�
revenues are higher than EUR 1 billion and leverage is below 
3 (three) times. Banks will apply a penalizing risk weight of 
300% to exposures to obligors that have not provided revenue 
and leverage data, and to negative equity corporates. For 
exposure to a newly incorporated corporate (startup) that has 
not yet provided revenue and leverage data, banks may apply 
D�ULVN�ZHLJKW�RI������LQ�WKH�ŵUVW�\HDU�DIWHU�LWV�HVWDEOLVKPHQW��
Corporates with annual revenues not exceeding EUR 5 million 
DQG�OHYHUDJH�H[FHHGLQJ����ŵYH��WLPHV�ZLOO�UHFHLYH�D�KLJKHU�ULVN�
weight of 130%.

iv) The Committee has also addressed Specialized Lending 
    and Real Estate companies with risk weights, respectively,  
    of minimum 120% and minimum 150%.

v) Subordinated Debt, Equity and Other Capital Instruments: 
    When such instruments are not deducted from regulatory 
    capital or risk-weighted at 250%, they will receive a risk 
    weight of 300% or 400% whether they are publicly traded on a 
    recognized security exchange or not.

vi) Retail Exposures:�'HŵQLWLRQV�RI�5HJXODWRU\�UHWDLO�H[SRVXUH�
    and risk weight are similar to the current treatment (risk weight 
    is 75% for regulatory retail exposure, 100% for Other retail). 
    The Basel Committee is keeping the discussion open over 
    how to introduce additional risk drivers to differentiate the risk, 
    such as security, income coverage of the debt service, maturity 
    of exposure, and existing established relationship between the 
    bank and the borrower.

vii) Exposures Secured by Residential Real Estate (housing 
    loans, mortgage loans): The current treatment of a standard 
    risk weight of 35% is seen as lacking risk sensitivity. Two risk 
    drivers are proposed to apply risk weight to residential real 
    estate: loan-to-value (LTV) ratio and debt-service coverage 
    (DSC) ratio (principal and interest payment relative to the 
    borrower’s total income over a month or a year). Risk weights 
����ZLOO�YDU\�EHWZHHQ������/79�����DQG�'6&ů�����DQG������
�����/79Ű�����DQG�'6&!����RU�XQNQRZQ��

viii) Exposures secured by Commercial Real Estate: The 
    assessment is either to follow the treatment of a corporate 
    exposure or to assign a risk weight function of the LTV 
    ratio (75% risk weight to a LTV<60%; a risk weight of 120% 
����IRU�D�/79Ű������$�EDQN�WKDW�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�WKH�QHFHVVDU\�/79�
    information for a given commercial real estate exposure must 
    apply a 120% risk weight.

ix) Off Balance Sheet Exposures: The proposal seeks to 
    homogenize the treatment with IRB (internal ratings-based     
    approach) for committed loans whereby a credit conversion 
    factor (CCF) of 75% is assigned to all undrawn exposures, 
    replacing 20% and 50%, respectively, for maturities up to one 
    year and exceeding one year under the Standardized 
    Approach. Also, unconditionally cancelable commitments are 
    assigned 10% instead of the 0% currently under SA.

x) Past Due Loans: The Committee is still considering the 
    treatment for past due loans.

xi) Credit Risk Mitigation (collateral and guarantees): 
    There is a wider recognition of guarantees. The following are 
    considered eligible guarantors:

Ř� 3UXGHQWLDOO\�UHJXODWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV
Ř� 3DUHQW�FRPSDQLHV��VXEVLGLDULHV��DQG�DIŵOLDWH�FRPSDQLHV�RI�WKH�

counterparty 
Ř� Other entities that meet all of the following conditions: 

Ř� The entity is externally audited or its common shares are 
publicly traded on a recognized security exchange; 

Ř� The entity has an established economic relationship with 
the counterparty. 
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Period High Low Common Share Dividend1

USD USD LBP USD

2000  2.3750  1.6250 250.00  0.1658 

2001  1.7500  1.0625 250.00  0.1658 

2002  1.7813  1.0625 236.84  0.1571 

2003  2.0625  1.2500 157.89  0.1047 

2004  1.8100  1.4500 157.89  0.1047 

2005  2.7800  1.4500 157.89  0.1047 

2006  4.0000  1.4500 157.89  0.1047 

2007  2.6000  1.6500 157.89  0.1047 

2008  3.2300  1.5800 157.89  0.1047 

2009  2.1900  1.5800 200.00  0.1327 

2010  2.3000  1.7000 200.00  0.1327 

2011  2.0100  1.5500 200.00  0.1327 

2012  1.7400  1.4700 200.00  0.1327 

2013  1.7000  1.4700 200.00  0.1327 

2014  1.7000  1.5500 200.00  0.1327 

(1) Before taxes at a rate of 5%.

At its Annual General Assembly held on 15 May 2015, the Bank’s 
shareholders approved the distribution of dividends out of the 
Bank’s net income for the year ended 31 December 2014 (before 
taxes of 5%) of LBP 200 (USD 0.1327) per common share and 

USD 8 per Series 2008 and Series 2009 Preferred Share. Total 
dividends paid in respect of 2013 represented 61.1% of net 
income for that year.

Dividend distribution

The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices of Byblos Bank common shares, as reported on the Beirut Stock Exchange, 
and the cash dividends paid by the Bank on common shares with respect to the periods indicated:

We have assessed the impact of the Revised Basel Proposal on the credit risk-weighted assets of Byblos Bank and found that 
LW�ZLOO�KDYH�DQ�RYHUDOO�LQŶDWLQJ�HIIHFW�RQ�5:$�LQ�WKH�UDQJH�RI�����WR������7KH�%DQN�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�RSHUDWLQJ�ZLWK�D�FRPIRUWDEOH�
buffer above minimum regulatory ratios. The new proposal will increase the risk-weighted assets of the exposure to banks 
after the removal of the preferential short-term risk weight of Basel II, and the corporate exposure due to higher conversion 
factors applied to committed lines and the punitive risk weight applied to highly leveraged corporate and those having 
negative-equity corporates.
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THE BANK’S RATINGS

The Lebanese economy was affected in 2014 by domestic 
political uncertainties, rising political polarization, growing 
VSLOORYHUV�IURP�WKH�6\ULDQ�FRQŶLFW��DQG�WKH�ZHDN�UXOH�RI�ODZ��
in addition to severe security breaches across the country, a 
vacuum at the level of the Presidency, and the lack of a fully 
functioning Parliament. 

During the past few months, ratings agencies took actions 
following mounting political risks and the deterioration in public 
ŵQDQFHV��EXW�WKH\�UHPDLQ�FRQŵGHQW�LQ�WKH�EDQNLQJ�VHFWRU��)LWFK�
5DWLQJV�DIŵUPHG�LWV�RXWORRN�IRU�%\EORV�%DQN�UDWLQJV�DW�ŐQHJDWLYHő��
and Moody’s Investor Services revised its outlook downward to 
‘negative’. Only Capital Intelligence maintains a ‘stable’ outlook 
on Byblos ratings.  

2Q����'HFHPEHU������)LWFK�5DWLQJV�DIŵUPHG�DW�Ő%ő�WKH�ORQJ�
term Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of Byblos Bank with a ‘negative’ 
outlook. It also maintained the bank’s Viability Ratings at ‘b’. 
It said that the ‘negative’ outlook mirrors the outlook on the 
sovereign ratings. It noted that the unstable domestic political 
situation would weigh on the banking sector, but it did not 
H[SHFW�SROLWLFDO�LQVWDELOLW\�WR�KDYH�D�VLJQLŵFDQW�LPSDFW�RQ�GHSRVLW�
growth. As such, it expected liquidity in the banking sector to 
remain at comfortable levels.

It said that the ratings take into account the Bank’s strong 
domestic franchise, experienced management and resilient 
deposits, in addition to Byblos Bank’s solid liquidity and 
LQFUHDVLQJ�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�GLYHUVLŵFDWLRQ��,W�FRQVLGHUHG�WKDW�WKH�
Bank has weak capitalization, mainly due to the Bank’s large 
holdings of sovereign debt. It indicated that a ratings upgrade 
is not likely in the short- to medium-term, given the Bank’s key 
UROH�LQ�ŵQDQFLQJ�WKH�VRYHUHLJQ��,W�VDLG�WKDW�LW�ZRXOG�GRZQJUDGH�
the Bank’s ratings in the event of a prolonged weakening of the 
RSHUDWLQJ�HQYLURQPHQW�WKDW�ZRXOG�DIIHFW�GHSRVLWRU�FRQŵGHQFH��
DQG�LI�DVVHW�TXDOLW\�VLJQLŵFDQWO\�GHWHULRUDWHG�DQG�UHGXFHG�WKH�
Bank’s capital base.

Further, the agency pointed out that the Lebanese authorities 
would have a high willingness to support the Bank in case of 
need, given its systemic importance to the banking sector and to 
the economy as a whole. But it noted that the authorities’ ability 
to provide such support cannot be relied upon. It added that 
WKH�DXWKRULWLHV�ZRXOG�IDFH�GLIŵFXOWLHV�LQ�SURYLGLQJ�V\VWHP�ZLGH�
support for the banking sector, including to Byblos Bank, 
if needed.

On 16 December 2014 Moody’s Investors Service downgraded 
to ‘B2’ from ‘B1’ the long-term foreign currency deposit ratings 
of Byblos Bank and lowered the Bank’s long-term local currency 
deposit ratings to ‘B2’ from ‘Ba3’. It kept the ‘negative’ outlook 
on the long-term deposit ratings. Also, it downgraded the long-

term national scale ratings of Byblos Bank to ‘A1.lb’ from ‘Aa2.
lb’, with a ‘negative’ outlook. It also lowered the baseline credit 
assessments of the Bank to ‘b2’ from ‘b1’. The agency indicated 
that its ratings action followed its earlier decision to downgrade 
Lebanon’s sovereign rating.

The agency indicated that the downgrade of the Bank’s baseline 
FUHGLW�DVVHVVPHQW�UHŶHFWV�WKH�DGYHUVH�LPSDFW�RI�WKH�ZHDNHQLQJ�
RI�JRYHUQPHQW�FUHGLWZRUWKLQHVV�RQ�WKH�%DQNőV�FUHGLW�SURŵOH��
given the Bank’s large holdings of government debt. It estimated 
Byblos Bank’s sovereign exposure at 4.4 times its Tier One 
Capital at the end of September 2014. It noted that the Bank’s 
high exposure to government securities and to the Central 
%DQNőV�&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�'HSRVLW��DV�ZHOO�DV�LWV�OLPLWHG�UHJLRQDO�
GLYHUVLŵFDWLRQ��PDNH�LW�VXVFHSWLEOH�WR�HYHQW�ULVNV�DW�WKH�VRYHUHLJQ�
level and constrain the Bank’s credit assessments at the level of 
the government’s bond rating. It added that the Bank’s regional 
JHRJUDSKLF�GLYHUVLŵFDWLRQ�LV�QRW�VXIŵFLHQW�WR�RIIVHW�WKH�ULVNV�RI�
the Bank’s credit linkages to the Lebanese sovereign. Further, 
Moody’s attributed the downgrade of the Bank’s deposit ratings 
to the government’s reduced capacity to support it in case of 
need. It noted that the deposit rating of the Bank is now rated on 
SDU�ZLWK�WKH�JRYHUQPHQWőV�UDWLQJV�DQG�GRHV�QRW�EHQHŵW�IURP�WKH�
government’s support uplift.

,Q�0D\������&DSLWDO�,QWHOOLJHQFH�DIŵUPHG�%\EORV�%DQNőV�
long- and short-term foreign currency ratings at ‘B’ and ‘B’, 
UHVSHFWLYHO\��,W�DOVR�DIŵUPHG�WKH�%DQNőV�)LQDQFLDO�6WUHQJWK�5DWLQJ�
(FSR) at ‘BBB-’. It maintained the Support Level at ‘3’, given the 
KLJK�OLNHOLKRRG�RI�RIŵFLDO�VXSSRUW�LQ�FDVH�RI�QHHG�GXH�WR�%\EORV�
Bank’s systemic importance. It said the outlook on all the ratings 
is ‘stable’ and noted that the ratings continue to be restrained by 
the sovereign ratings of Lebanon.

The agency pointed out that Byblos Bank’s ratings are supported 
by its improved asset quality, sound capital adequacy, 
comfortable liquidity level and good domestic franchise. It 
said that the Bank had increased its customers’ deposits at 
a moderately high rate in 2013 despite strong competition, 
mainly due to its strong franchise. It indicated that Byblos Bank 
has good access to capital markets, which has allowed it to 
GLYHUVLI\�LWV�VRXUFHV�RI�IXQGLQJ�D�ORW�PRUH�VLJQLŵFDQWO\�WKDQ�
most Lebanese banks. It said that the Bank’s loan asset quality 
has improved and stands at a relatively good level. It indicated 
WKDW�WKH�%DQNőV�GHFUHDVH�LQ�SURŵWDELOLW\��PDLQO\�IURP�WKH�GHFOLQH�
in the net interest margin, from translation losses and from 
high dividend payouts, has kept common equity capital nearly 
unchanged for the past three years. It pointed out that the Bank’s 
ratings are constrained by factors such as the exposure to the 
sovereign, country risk and slow economic growth. It noted that 
Byblos Bank follows a universal banking model, offers services in 
commercial and retail banking through one of the largest branch 
networks in Lebanon, and operates in 11 locations abroad.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

Interest and similar income 8 1,413,234 1,295,959

Interest and similar expense 9 (1,049,537) (950,115)

NET INTEREST INCOME 363,697 345,844

Fee and commission income 10 149,631 154,040

Fee and commission expense 10 (13,767) (15,047)

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 135,864 138,993

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

11 66,942 86,098

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�VDOH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW 12 104,818 79,862

5HYHQXH�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�
comprehensive income

27 2,736 1,144

Other operating income 13 21,859 23,542

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 695,916 675,483

Net credit losses 14 (39,428) (79,132)

NET OPERATING INCOME 656,488 596,351

Personnel expenses 15 (167,617) (162,226)

Other operating expenses 16 (132,041) (126,961)

Depreciation of property and equipment 28 (24,882) (27,218)

Amortization of intangible assets 29 (159) (159)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (324,699) (316,564)

OPERATING PROFIT 331,789 279,787

Net gain on disposal of property and equipment 20 21

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 331,809 279,808

Income tax expense 17 (67,277) (44,359)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 264,532 235,449

Attributable to:

  Equity holders of the parent 252,792 224,683

  Non-controlling interests 11,740 10,766

264,532 235,449

Earnings per share LBP LBP

Equity shareholders of the parent:

  Basic earnings per share 18 363.21 313.68

  Diluted earnings per share 18 339.79 298.02
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 264,532 235,449

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

,WHPV�WR�EH�UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
in subsequent periods:

  Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (47,460) (61,299)

1HW�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�ORVV�WR�EH�UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�
the income statement in subsequent periods (47,460) (61,299)

,WHPV�QRW�WR�EH�UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
in subsequent periods:

��1HW�XQUHDOL]HG�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
  through other comprehensive income

10,657 8,222

  Income tax effect (1,546) (1,232)

9,111 6,990

5H�PHDVXUHPHQW�JDLQV�RQ�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SODQV 37 (a) 977 2,741

1HW�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�QRW�WR�EH�UHFODVVLŵHG�
to the income statement in subsequent periods 10,088 9,731

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (37,372) (51,568)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 227,160 183,881

Attributable to:

  Equity holders of the parent 227,342 203,526

  Non-controlling interests (182) (19,645)

227,160 183,881
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LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 19 7,048,785 5,809,930

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� 20 2,913,279 3,353,314

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHYHUVH�UHSXUFKDVH�
agreements

21 393,712 614,866

Financial assets given as collateral 22 7,005 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 23 6,715 3,824

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV 24 155,582 157,447

Net loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 25 7,099,163 6,776,850

Net loans and advances to related parties at amortized cost 47 28,033 23,732

Debtors by acceptances 302,939 445,957

Financial assets at amortized cost 26 10,260,119 10,198,193

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 27 98,718 86,895

Property and equipment 28 236,379 243,230

Intangible assets 29 652 811

Assets obtained in settlement of debt 30 36,677 36,379

Other assets 31 106,780 107,835

TOTAL ASSETS 28,694,538 27,866,268

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Due to central banks 32 71,146 51,502

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 33 911,173 1,392,562

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 23 5,427 3,063

Customers’ deposits at amortized cost 34 23,377,789 21,970,185

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost 47 312,813 264,477

Debt issued and other borrowed funds 35 445,387 506,489

Engagements by acceptances 302,939 445,957

Other liabilities 36 163,903 195,704

Provisions for risks and charges 37 145,429 138,375

Subordinated debt 38 414,580 412,368

TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,150,586 25,380,682

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV 39 684,273 684,273

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV� 39 4,840 4,840

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV 39 229,014 229,014

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV 39 591,083 588,671

Non-distributable reserves 40 748,879 672,318

Distributable reserves 41 95,943 97,253

Treasury shares 43 (6,425) (10,054)

Retained earnings 39,899 52,118

Revaluation reserve of real estate 44 5,689 5,689

&KDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�

  comprehensive income 45 (7,533) (16,644)

1HW�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�SHULRG�Ŏ�SURŵW 252,792 224,683

Foreign currency translation reserve (164,357) (123,650)

2,474,097 2,408,511

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 69,855 77,075

TOTAL EQUITY 2,543,952 2,485,586

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  28,694,538 27,866,268

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�DXWKRUL]HG�IRU�LVVXH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RQ�21 April 2015.

Dr. François S. Bassil
Chairman and General Manager

Mr. Ziad El-Zoghbi
Head of Group Finance and Administration
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

   Attributable to equity holders of the parent  

LBP Million

Common
shares

Preferred
shares

Share
SUHPLXP�Ŏ�

common 
shares

Share
SUHPLXP�Ŏ�
preferred 

shares

Non-
distributable

reserves 
Distributable

reserves

Other 
equity

instruments
Treasury

shares
Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve of
real estate

Change in fair 
value of 
ŵQDQFLDO
assets at

fair value
through other 

comprehensive
income

Net results
of the

ŵQDQFLDO
SHULRG�Ŏ
SURŵW

Foreign
currency 

translation
reserve Total

Non-
controlling 

interests Total

Balance at 1 January 2014 684,273 4,840 229,014 588,671 672,318 97,253 - (10,054) 52,118 5,689 (16,644) 224,683 (123,650) 2,408,511 77,075 2,485,586

3URŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU - - - - - - - - - - - 252,792 - 252,792 11,740 264,532
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 977 - 9,111 - (35,538) (25,450) (11,922) (37,372)

Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 977 - 9,111 252,792 (35,538) 227,342 (182) 227,160

Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - (7,000) - - 231,683 - - (224,683) - - - -
Transfer to reserves and premiums - - - 2,412 76,764 4,691 - - (83,867) - - - - - - -
'LYLGHQGV�SDLG�Ŏ�VXEVLGLDULHV - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (4,225) (4,225)
Equity dividends paid (note 54) - - - - - - - - (161,012) - - - - (161,012) - (161,012)
Treasury shares (note 43) - - - - (203) - - 3,629 - - - - - 3,426 - 3,426
Put options on non-controlling
interests (note 6)

- - - - - 999 - - - - - - - 999 2,571 3,570

Acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests (note 5) - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,169) (5,169) (5,384) (10,553)

Balance at 31 December 2014 684,273 4,840 229,014 591,083 748,879 95,943 - (6,425) 39,899 5,689 (7,533) 252,792 (164,357) 2,474,097 69,855 2,543,952

Balance at 1 January 2013 684,273 4,840 229,014 586,259 568,145 99,659 14,979 (25,302) 74,024 5,689 (23,634) 246,450 (92,762) 2,371,634 120,172 2,491,806
3URŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU - - - - - - - - - - - 224,683 - 224,683 10,766 235,449

Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 2,741 - 6,990 - (30,888) (21,157) (30,411) (51,568)

Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 2,741 - 6,990 224,683 (30,888) 203,526 (19,645) 183,881

Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - - 246,450 - - (246,450) - - - -
Transfer to reserves and premiums - - - 2,412 104,448 3,346 - - (110,206) - - - - - - -
'LYLGHQGV�SDLG�Ŏ�VXEVLGLDULHV - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (3,209) (3,209)
Translation difference - - - - - - - - (54) - - - - (54) - (54)
Equity dividends paid (note 54) - - - - - - - - (160,837) - - - - (160,837) - (160,837)

Treasury shares (note 43) - - - - (275) - (14,979) 15,248 - - - - - (6) - (6)
Put options on non-controlling
interests (note 6)

- - - - - (5,752) - - - - - - - (5,752) (20,243) (25,995)

Balance at 31 December 2013 684,273 4,840 229,014 588,671 672,318 97,253 - (10,054) 52,118 5,689 (16,644) 224,683 (123,650) 2,408,511 77,075 2,485,586
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   Attributable to equity holders of the parent  

LBP Million

Common
shares

Preferred
shares

Share
SUHPLXP�Ŏ�

common 
shares

Share
SUHPLXP�Ŏ�
preferred 

shares

Non-
distributable

reserves 
Distributable

reserves

Other 
equity

instruments
Treasury

shares
Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve of
real estate

Change in fair 
value of 
ŵQDQFLDO
assets at

fair value
through other 

comprehensive
income

Net results
of the

ŵQDQFLDO
SHULRG�Ŏ
SURŵW

Foreign
currency 

translation
reserve Total

Non-
controlling 

interests Total

Balance at 1 January 2014 684,273 4,840 229,014 588,671 672,318 97,253 - (10,054) 52,118 5,689 (16,644) 224,683 (123,650) 2,408,511 77,075 2,485,586

3URŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU - - - - - - - - - - - 252,792 - 252,792 11,740 264,532
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 977 - 9,111 - (35,538) (25,450) (11,922) (37,372)

Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 977 - 9,111 252,792 (35,538) 227,342 (182) 227,160

Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - (7,000) - - 231,683 - - (224,683) - - - -
Transfer to reserves and premiums - - - 2,412 76,764 4,691 - - (83,867) - - - - - - -
'LYLGHQGV�SDLG�Ŏ�VXEVLGLDULHV - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (4,225) (4,225)
Equity dividends paid (note 54) - - - - - - - - (161,012) - - - - (161,012) - (161,012)
Treasury shares (note 43) - - - - (203) - - 3,629 - - - - - 3,426 - 3,426
Put options on non-controlling
interests (note 6)

- - - - - 999 - - - - - - - 999 2,571 3,570

Acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests (note 5) - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,169) (5,169) (5,384) (10,553)

Balance at 31 December 2014 684,273 4,840 229,014 591,083 748,879 95,943 - (6,425) 39,899 5,689 (7,533) 252,792 (164,357) 2,474,097 69,855 2,543,952

Balance at 1 January 2013 684,273 4,840 229,014 586,259 568,145 99,659 14,979 (25,302) 74,024 5,689 (23,634) 246,450 (92,762) 2,371,634 120,172 2,491,806
3URŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU - - - - - - - - - - - 224,683 - 224,683 10,766 235,449

Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 2,741 - 6,990 - (30,888) (21,157) (30,411) (51,568)

Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - - 2,741 - 6,990 224,683 (30,888) 203,526 (19,645) 183,881

Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - - 246,450 - - (246,450) - - - -
Transfer to reserves and premiums - - - 2,412 104,448 3,346 - - (110,206) - - - - - - -
'LYLGHQGV�SDLG�Ŏ�VXEVLGLDULHV - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (3,209) (3,209)
Translation difference - - - - - - - - (54) - - - - (54) - (54)
Equity dividends paid (note 54) - - - - - - - - (160,837) - - - - (160,837) - (160,837)

Treasury shares (note 43) - - - - (275) - (14,979) 15,248 - - - - - (6) - (6)
Put options on non-controlling
interests (note 6)

- - - - - (5,752) - - - - - - - (5,752) (20,243) (25,995)

Balance at 31 December 2013 684,273 4,840 229,014 588,671 672,318 97,253 - (10,054) 52,118 5,689 (16,644) 224,683 (123,650) 2,408,511 77,075 2,485,586

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3URŵW�EHIRUH�WD[ 331,809 279,808

$GMXVWPHQWV�WR�UHFRQFLOH�SURŵW�EHIRUH�WD[�WR�QHW�FDVK�ŶRZV�

  Depreciation and amortization 28 and 29 25,041 27,377

  Provision for loans and advances and direct  
  writeoffs, net 

14 43,361 80,448

  Write-back of provision for other doubtful   
  bank accounts, net

14 (446) (897)

��:ULWH�EDFN�RI�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW���
  amortized cost, net

14 (3,487) (419)

  Gain on disposal of property and equipment (20) (21)

  Gain on disposal of assets obtained  
   in settlement of debt 

13 (2,190) (5,791)

  Provisions for risks and charges, net 10,957 14,399

��8QUHDOL]HG�IDLU�YDOXH�JDLQV�RQ�ŵQDQFLDO�
��LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

(4,574) (4,520)

��5HDOL]HG�JDLQV�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV (108,936) (76,407)

��'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV (527) 2,800

2SHUDWLQJ�SURŵW�EHIRUH�ZRUNLQJ�FDSLWDO�FKDQJHV� 290,988 316,777

CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Due from central banks (969,530) (490,715)

Due to central banks 17,911 32,792

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� (37,020) (13,231)

Financial assets given as collateral - 1,918

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV 10,557 144,527

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� (76,022) (33,291)

Net loans and advances to customers and related parties (369,975) (670,112)

Assets obtained in settlement of debt 30 (2,563) (5,687)

Proceeds from sale of assets obtained in settlement of debt 4,455 8,301

Other assets (6,648) (9,587)

Customers’ and related parties’ deposits 1,455,940 2,059,029

Other liabilities (36,796) (99,068)

Cash from operations 281,297 1,241,653

Provision for risks and charges paid (1,816) (3,748)

Taxation paid (56,494) (47,788)

Net cash from operating activities 222,987 1,190,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

LBP Million
Notes 2014 2013

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Financial assets at amortized cost 46,379 (972,286)

Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

(1,431) (10)

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHVHUYH�
purchase agreements

221,154 (156,159)

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets  (23,834) (18,674)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 182 237

Net cash from (used in) investing activities 242,450 (1,146,892)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Debts issued and other borrowed funds (61,102) (2,222)

Subordinated debt 2,212 1,472

Treasury shares 3,426 (6)

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent (net) (161,012) (160,837)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (4,225) (3,209)

Acquisition of additional non-controlling interests (10,553) -

1HW�FDVK�XVHG�LQ�ŵQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV (231,254) (164,802)

Net effect of foreign exchange (38,725) (43,725)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 195,458 (165,302)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,455,785 4,621,087

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 46 4,651,243 4,455,785

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST 
AND DIVIDENDS

Interest paid (1,043,104) (925,827)

Interest received 1,415,702 1,306,114

Dividends received 3,293 1,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Byblos Bank S.A.L. (“the Bank”), a Lebanese joint stock company, 
was incorporated in 1961 and registered under No. 14150 
at the commercial registry of Beirut and under No. 39 on the 
list of banks published by the Central Bank of Lebanon. The 
%DQNőV�KHDG�RIŵFH�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�(OLDV�6DUNLV�6WUHHW�LQ�$VKUDŵHK��
Beirut, Lebanon. The Bank’s shares are listed on the Beirut Stock 
Exchange and London SEAQ. 

7KH�%DQN��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�LWV�DIŵOLDWHG�EDQNV�DQG�VXEVLGLDULHV�
(collectively “the Group”), provides a wide range of banking and 
insurance services, through its headquarters and branches in 
Lebanon and nine locations abroad (Cyprus, Belgium, United 
Kingdom, France, Syria, Sudan, Iraq, Democratic Republic of 
the Congo, and Armenia). Further information on the Group’s 
structure is provided in note 4.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�RQ�
a historical cost basis except for: a) the restatement of certain 
tangible real estate properties in Lebanon according to the 
provisions of Law No. 282 dated 30 December 1993; and b) the 
PHDVXUHPHQW�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�GHULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
 
The carrying values of recognized assets and liabilities that 
are hedged items in fair value hedges, and otherwise carried 
at amortized cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair value 
attributable to the risks that are being hedged.

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�/HEDQHVH�
Pounds (LBP) and all values are rounded to the nearest LBP million 
except when otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB), and the regulations of the Central Bank of Lebanon and 
the Banking Control Commission (BCC).

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7KH�*URXS�SUHVHQWV�LWV�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�EURDGO\�LQ�
order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement 
ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�DIWHU�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�
�FXUUHQW��DQG�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�DIWHU�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
position date (non-current) is presented in the notes.

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�RIIVHW�DQG�WKH�QHW�
DPRXQW�LV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability 
simultaneously. Only gross settlement mechanisms with features 
WKDW�HOLPLQDWH�RU�UHVXOW�LQ�LQVLJQLŵFDQW�FUHGLW�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�
and that process receivables and payables in a single settlement 
process or cycle would be, in effect, equivalent to net settlement. 
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, 
therefore the related assets and liabilities are presented gross 
LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��,QFRPH�DQG�
expense will not be offset in the consolidated income statement 
unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or 
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ��DV�VSHFLŵFDOO\�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�
of the Group.

2.2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRPSULVH�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 
2014. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
WKH�LQYHVWHH��6SHFLŵFDOO\��WKH�*URXS�FRQWUROV�DQ�LQYHVWHH�LI�DQG�
only if the Group has:

Ř� Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the 
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

Ř� Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement 
with the investee, and 

Ř� The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
 
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar 
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts 
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an 
investee, including:

Ř� The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders  
of the investee

Ř� Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
Ř� The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts 
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more 
of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in the statement of 
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control 
until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

:KHQ�QHFHVVDU\��DGMXVWPHQWV�DUH�PDGH�WR�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into 
line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-Group assets 
DQG�OLDELOLWLHV��HTXLW\��LQFRPH��H[SHQVHV�DQG�FDVK�ŶRZV�UHODWLQJ�WR�
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full 
on consolidation.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

1RQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�UHSUHVHQW�WKH�SRUWLRQ�RI�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
and net assets of subsidiaries not owned by the Group. The Group 
has elected to measure the non-controlling interests in acquirees 
DW�WKH�SURSRUWLRQDWH�VKDUH�RI�HDFK�DFTXLUHHőV�LGHQWLŵDEOH�QHW�
assets. Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to 
the Group are reported in consolidated equity as non-controlling 
LQWHUHVWV��3URŵWV�RU�ORVVHV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�QRQ�FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVWV�
DUH�UHSRUWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�DV�SURŵW�RU�
loss attributable to non-controlling interests. Losses applicable 
to the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary are allocated to 
the non-controlling interest even if doing so causes the non-
FRQWUROOLQJ�LQWHUHVW�WR�KDYH�D�GHŵFLW�EDODQFH�

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as 
transactions with equity holders of the Group. For purchases 
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any 
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the 
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in 
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests 
are also recorded in equity.

Put options granted to non-controlling interests give rise to a 
ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�IRU�WKH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�UHGHPSWLRQ�DPRXQW��
Non-controlling interest continues to be recognized within 
equity, with changes in the carrying amounting arising from: a) an 
DOORFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�IRU�WKH�\HDU��E��D�VKDUH�RI�FKDQJHV�
in appropriate reserves; and c) dividends declared before the 
end of the reporting period. At the end of each reporting period, 
the non-controlling interest is then derecognized as if it were 
acquired at that date. The liability is recognized at the end of the 
reporting period at its fair value, and any difference between the 
amount of non-controlling interest derecognized and this liability 
is accounted for within equity. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss 
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group 
loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Ř�Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities 
of the subsidiary

Ř�Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-
    controlling interests
Ř�Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences 

recorded in equity
Ř� Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received
Ř� Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained
Ř� 5HFRJQL]HV�DQ\�VXUSOXV�RU�GHŵFLW�LQ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV
Ř� 5HFODVVLŵHV�WKH�SDUHQWőV�VKDUH�RI�FRPSRQHQWV�SUHYLRXVO\�
UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�2&,�WR�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�RU�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV��DV�
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly 
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
DISCLOSURES

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

7KH�*URXS�DSSOLHG��IRU�WKH�ŵUVW�WLPH��FHUWDLQ�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�
amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2014.

INVESTMENT ENTITIES (AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 10, IFRS 12 
AND IAS 27)

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation 
UHTXLUHPHQW�IRU�HQWLWLHV�WKDW�PHHW�WKH�GHŵQLWLRQ�RI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�
entity under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 
must be applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition 
relief. The exception to consolidation requires investment 
HQWLWLHV�WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�VXEVLGLDULHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�
loss. These amendments have no impact on the Group, since 
QRQH�RI�WKH�HQWLWLHV�LQ�WKH�*URXS�TXDOLŵHV�DV�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�HQWLW\�
under IFRS 10.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – 
AMENDMENTS TO IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off” and the criteria for non-simultaneous 
settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for 
offsetting and is applied retrospectively. These amendments 
have no impact on the Group.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS – AMENDMENTS TO IAS 36

The IASB has amended IAS 36 to (i) remove the requirement 
to disclose recoverable amounts when a cash-generating unit 
�&*8��FRQWDLQV�JRRGZLOO�RU�LQGHŵQLWH�OLYHG�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�
but there has been no impairment; (ii) require disclosure of the 
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an impairment 
loss has been recognized or reversed; and (iii) require detailed 
disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been 

Financial StatementsByblos Bank S.A.L.

85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

measured when an impairment loss has been recognized 
or reversed. The amendments will impact all preparers who 
UHFRJQL]H�RU�UHYHUVH�DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�RQ�QRQ�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

NOVATION OF DERIVATIVES AND CONTINUATION OF HEDGE 
ACCOUNTING – AMENDMENTS TO IAS 39

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge 
accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a 
hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective 
application is required. These amendments have no impact on 
the Group as the Group has not novated its derivatives during 
the current or prior periods.

IFRIC 21 LEVIES

,)5,&����FODULŵHV�WKDW�DQ�HQWLW\�UHFRJQL]HV�D�OLDELOLW\�IRU�D�OHY\�
ZKHQ�WKH�DFWLYLW\�WKDW�WULJJHUV�SD\PHQW��DV�LGHQWLŵHG�E\�WKH�
relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon 
UHDFKLQJ�D�PLQLPXP�WKUHVKROG��WKH�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ�FODULŵHV�WKDW�
QR�OLDELOLW\�VKRXOG�EH�DQWLFLSDWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�VSHFLŵHG�PLQLPXP�
threshold is reached. Retrospective application is required for 
IFRIC 21. This interpretation has no impact on the Group as it 
has applied the recognition principles under IAS 37 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with the 
requirements of IFRIC 21 in prior years.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS 2010-2012 CYCLE

In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, the IASB 
issued seven amendments to six standards, which included 
an amendment to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The 
amendment to IFRS 13 is effective immediately and, thus, for 
SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�DW���-DQXDU\�������DQG�LW�FODULŵHV�LQ�WKH�%DVLV�
for Conclusions that short-term receivables and payables with 
no stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts 
when the effect of discounting is immaterial. This is in line 
with the applied fair valuation methodologies and as such this 
amendment to IFRS 13 has no impact on the Group.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS 2011-2013 CYCLE

In the 2011-2013 annual improvements cycle, the IASB 
issued four amendments to four standards, which included 
an amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International 
Financial Reporting Standards. The amendment to IFRS 1 is 
effective immediately and, thus, for periods beginning at 1 
-DQXDU\�������DQG�FODULŵHV�LQ�WKH�%DVLV�IRU�&RQFOXVLRQV�WKDW�DQ�
entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new 
standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, 
provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the 
SHULRGV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�HQWLW\őV�ŵUVW�,)56�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
This amendment to IFRS 1 has no impact on the Group, since the 
Group is an existing IFRS preparer. 

2.4. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet 
HIIHFWLYH��XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�LVVXDQFH�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�
statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt 
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

,Q�-XO\�������WKH�,$6%�LVVXHG�WKH�ŵQDO�YHUVLRQ�RI�,)56���)LQDQFLDO�
,QVWUXPHQWV��,)56���>����@���ZKLFK�UHŶHFWV�DOO�SKDVHV�RI�WKH�
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�SURMHFW�DQG�UHSODFHV�,$6����)LQDQFLDO�
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous 
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements 
IRU�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW��LPSDLUPHQW��DQG�KHGJH�
accounting. In prior years, the Group has early adopted IFRS 9 
��������ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�
and measurement. IFRS 9 (2014) is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early 
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, 
but comparative information is not compulsory. The adoption 
of IFRS 9 (2014) will have an effect on measuring impairment 
DOORZDQFHV�DQG�RQ�WKH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�WKH�
*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��EXW�QR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�
PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��7KH�*URXS�LV�
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9 (2014) and plans to 
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 19 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS: 
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from 
HPSOR\HHV�RU�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�ZKHQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�
plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should 
EH�DWWULEXWHG�WR�SHULRGV�RI�VHUYLFH�DV�D�QHJDWLYH�EHQHŵW��7KHVH�
amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contributions 
is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is 
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in 
the service cost in the period in which the service is rendered, 
instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. 
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2014. It is not expected that this amendment 
would be relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within 
WKH�*URXS�KDV�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SODQV�ZLWK�FRQWULEXWLRQV�IURP�
employees or third parties.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS 2010-2012 CYCLE

These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Group. They include:

IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment: This improvement is applied 
SURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�YDULRXV�LVVXHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�
GHŵQLWLRQV�RI�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�VHUYLFH�FRQGLWLRQV�ZKLFK�DUH�
vesting conditions, including:
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Ř� A performance condition must contain a service condition
Ř� A performance target must be met while the counterparty is 

rendering service
Ř� A performance target may relate to the operations or activities 

of an entity, or to those of another entity in the same group
Ř� A performance condition may be a market or non- 

market condition
Ř� If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to 

provide service during the vesting period, the service 
FRQGLWLRQ�LV�QRW�VDWLVŵHG�

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment is applied 
SURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�WKDW�DOO�FRQWLQJHQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�
DUUDQJHPHQWV�FODVVLŵHG�DV�OLDELOLWLHV��RU�DVVHWV��DULVLQJ�IURP�D�
business combination should be subsequently measured at fair 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�ZKHWKHU�RU�QRW�WKH\�IDOO�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
scope of IFRS 9.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: The amendments are applied 
retrospectively and clarify that 1) an entity must disclose the 
judgments made by management in applying the aggregation 
criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8, including a brief description 
of operating segments that have been aggregated and the 
economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments 
are “similar”; and 2) the reconciliation of segment assets to total 
assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is 
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, similar to the 
required disclosure for segment liabilities.  

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible 
Assets:�7KH�DPHQGPHQW�LV�DSSOLHG�UHWURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�LQ�
IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by reference to 
observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. 
In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the 
difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: The amendment is applied 
UHWURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�WKDW�D�PDQDJHPHQW�HQWLW\��DQ�HQWLW\�
that provides key management personnel services) is a related 
party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an 
entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the 
expenses incurred for management services.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS 2011-2013 CYCLE

These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Group. They include:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment is applied 
SURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�IRU�WKH�VFRSH�H[FHSWLRQV�ZLWKLQ�,)56�
3 that 1) joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside 
the scope of IFRS 3; and 2) this scope exception applies 
RQO\�WR�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�MRLQW��
arrangement itself.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: The amendment is applied 
SURVSHFWLYHO\�DQG�FODULŵHV�WKDW�WKH�SRUWIROLR�H[FHSWLRQ�LQ�,)56����
FDQ�EH�DSSOLHG�QRW�RQO\�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV��
but also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9.

IAS 40 Investment Property: The description of ancillary services 
in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-
occupied property. The amendment is applied prospectively and 
FODULŵHV�WKDW�,)56����DQG�QRW�WKH�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�DQFLOODU\�VHUYLFHV�
in IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase 
of an asset or business combination.

IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

IFRS 15�ZDV�LVVXHG�LQ�0D\������DQG�HVWDEOLVKHV�D�QHZ�ŵYH�VWHS�
model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount 
WKDW�UHŶHFWV�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WR�ZKLFK�DQ�HQWLW\�H[SHFWV�WR�
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a 
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured 
approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new 
revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede 
all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either 
D�IXOO�RU�PRGLŵHG�UHWURVSHFWLYH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early 
adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact 
of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required 
effective date.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 11 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS: 
ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS OF INTERESTS

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator 
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, 
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a 
business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business 
combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a 
previously held interest in a joint operation is not re-measured 
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint 
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope 
exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the 
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, 
including the reporting entity, are under common control of the 
same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both 
the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the 
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation 
and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These 
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group. 
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AMENDMENTS TO IAS 16 AND IAS 38: CLARIFICATION 
OF ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF DEPRECIATION AND 
AMORTIZATION

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 
WKDW�UHYHQXH�UHŶHFWV�D�SDWWHUQ�RI�HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�WKDW�DUH�
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) 
UDWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�WKDW�DUH�FRQVXPHG�WKURXJK�
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot 
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment, and may 
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible 
assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early 
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to 
have any impact on the Group given that the Group has not used 
a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 27: EQUITY METHOD IN SEPARATE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method 
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, 
DQG�DVVRFLDWHV�LQ�WKHLU�VHSDUDWH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��(QWLWLHV�
already applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity 
PHWKRG�LQ�WKHLU�VHSDUDWH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZLOO�KDYH�WR�DSSO\�
that change retrospectively. The amendments are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with 
early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have any 
LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�*URXSőV�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

2.5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�
Lebanese Pounds, the Bank’s presentation currency. Each 
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency 
DQG�LWHPV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�HDFK�HQWLW\�
are measured using that functional currency.

(i) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the 
Group’s entities at the functional currency spot rate of exchange 
UXOLQJ�DW�WKH�GDWH�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�ŵUVW�TXDOLŵHV�IRU�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at 
WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��$OO�GLIIHUHQFHV�DUH�
WDNHQ�WR�œ1HW�JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on 
retranslation of non-monetary items is treated in line with the 
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item 
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
ORVV�LV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�RU�SURŵW�
or loss is also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�UHVSHFWLYHO\���

(ii) Group companies
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries and 
overseas branches are translated into the Bank’s presentation 
currency at the rate of exchange as at the reporting date, and 
their income statements are translated at the weighted average 
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on 
translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. 
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount 
recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign operation 
LV�UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
 
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation 
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at closing rate.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  CLASSIFICATION AND 
MEASUREMENT
 
(i) Date of recognition  
$OO�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQL]HG�RQ�WKH�
trade date, i.e. the date that the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular 
ZD\�WUDGHVŔ��SXUFKDVHV�RU�VDOHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by 
regulation or convention in the market place.

�LL��&ODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
a. Financial assets
7KH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�
WKH�HQWLW\őV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
DQG�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZ�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�
asset. Assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the 
FDVH�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�QRW�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��
particular transaction costs. Assets are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost or fair value.
 
An entity may, at initial recognition,  irrevocably designate a 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
LI�GRLQJ�VR�HOLPLQDWHV�RU�VLJQLŵFDQWO\�UHGXFHV�D�PHDVXUHPHQW�
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or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from 
measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and 
losses on them on different bases. An entity is required to 
GLVFORVH�VXFK�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�VHSDUDWHO\�IURP�WKRVH�PDQGDWRULO\�
measured at fair value. 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost less any impairment loss (except for debt instruments that 
DUH�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�XSRQ�LQLWLDO�
recognition) if they meet the following two conditions:

Ř� The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to 
KROG�DVVHWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV��DQG

Ř� 7KH�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�JLYH�ULVH�RQ�VSHFLŵHG�
GDWHV�WR�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 
7KHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�UHFRJQL]HG�DW�FRVW��EHLQJ�
the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of 
the investment. All transaction costs directly attributed to the 
acquisition are also included in the cost of investment. After 
LQLWLDO�PHDVXUHPHQW��WKHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), 
less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate. The amortization is included in “Interest and similar income” 
in the consolidated income statement. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the consolidated income 
statement in “Net credit losses”.
 
Although the objective of an entity’s business model may be to 
KROG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV��
the entity need not hold all of those instruments until maturity. 
7KXV�DQ�HQWLW\őV�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�FDQ�EH�WR�KROG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WR�
FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV�HYHQ�ZKHQ�VDOHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
occur. However, if more than an infrequent number of sales are 
made out of a portfolio, the entity needs to assess whether and 
how such sales are consistent with an objective of collecting 
FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV��,I�WKH�REMHFWLYH�RI�WKH�HQWLW\őV�EXVLQHVV�
PRGHO�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�WKRVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FKDQJHV��WKH�HQWLW\�LV�
UHTXLUHG�WR�UHFODVVLI\�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

*DLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKH�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW�DUH�UHŶHFWHG�XQGHU�œ1HW�
JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�VDOH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVWŔ�LQ�WKH�
consolidated income statement. 

BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS, DUE FROM BANKS AND 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, LOANS TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS, AND LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 
AND RELATED PARTIES – AT AMORTIZED COST 

After initial measurement, “Balances with central banks”, “Due 
IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQVŔ��œ/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQVŔ��DQG�œ/RDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�WR�FXVWRPHUV�DQG�
related parties” are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The amortization is included in “Interest and similar income” 
in the consolidated income statement. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the consolidated income 
statement in “Net credit losses”.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Included in this category are those debt instruments that do 
not meet the conditions in “at amortized cost” above, debt 
LQVWUXPHQWV�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�XSRQ�
initial recognition, and equity instruments at fair value through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV��

�L��'HEW�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV
7KHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��&KDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�
value and interest income are recorded under “Net gain (loss) 
IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�
the consolidated income statement showing, separately, those 
UHODWHG�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�XSRQ�LQLWLDO�
recognition from those mandatorily measured at fair value. 

Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of debt 
LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�DUH�DOVR�UHŶHFWHG�
XQGHU�œ1HW�JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
VKRZLQJ��VHSDUDWHO\��WKRVH�UHODWHG�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�GHVLJQDWHG�
at fair value upon initial recognition from those mandatorily 
measured at fair value.
 
�LL��(TXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV
,QYHVWPHQWV�LQ�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��XQOHVV�WKH�*URXS�GHVLJQDWHV�DW�LQLWLDO�
recognition an investment that is not held for trading as at fair 
value through other comprehensive income.

7KHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��&KDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�
value and dividend income are recorded under “Net gain (loss) 
IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�
the consolidated income statement. 
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Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of equity 
LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�DUH�DOVR�UHŶHFWHG�
XQGHU�œ1HW�JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Investments in equity instruments designated at initial 
UHFRJQLWLRQ�DV�QRW�KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
through other comprehensive income.

7KHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�SOXV�
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair 
value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
under equity. The cumulative gain or loss will not be 
UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�GLVSRVDO�
of the investments. 

Dividends on these investments are recognized under 
œ5HYHQXHV�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�
comprehensive income” in the consolidated income 
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment of 
dividend is established in accordance with IAS 18: Revenue, 
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of 
the cost of the investment.

b. Financial liabilities
Liabilities  are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a 
ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�QRW�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��SDUWLFXODU�
transaction costs. Liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost or fair value.
 
7KH�*URXS�FODVVLŵHV�DOO�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�VXEVHTXHQWO\�
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for: 

Ř� ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
(including derivatives); 

Ř� ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�WKDW�DULVH�ZKHQ�D�WUDQVIHU�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�
does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing 
involvement approach applies; and

Ř� ŵQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHH�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�FRPPLWPHQWV�WR�SURYLGH�
a loan at a below-market interest rate which after initial 
recognition are subsequently measured at the higher of the 
amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount 
initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative 
amortization recognized in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.

Fair value option

An entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a 
ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�DV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�
loss when:

Ř� doing so results in more relevant information, because it 
HLWKHU�HOLPLQDWHV�RU�VLJQLŵFDQWO\�UHGXFHV�D�PHDVXUHPHQW�
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from 
measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and 
losses on them on different bases; or 

Ř� D�JURXS�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�RU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on 
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and information about 
the group is provided internally on that basis to the entity’s 
key management personnel. 

7KH�DPRXQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�
GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�DW�LQLWLDO�
recognition that is attributable to changes in credit risk of that 
liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless 
such recognition would create an accounting mismatch in 
the consolidated income statement. Changes in fair value 
DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�DUH�QRW�UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�
consolidated income statement.  

Debt issued and other borrowed funds and subordinated debt

Financial instruments issued by the Group, which are not 
GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DV�
liabilities under “Debt issued and other borrowed funds”, where 
the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the 
Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�WR�WKH�KROGHU��RU�WR�VDWLVI\�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�RWKHU�
WKDQ�E\�WKH�H[FKDQJH�RI�D�ŵ[HG�DPRXQW�RI�FDVK�RU�DQRWKHU�
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�IRU�D�ŵ[HG�QXPEHU�RI�RZQ�HTXLW\�VKDUHV�

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are 
an integral part of the effective interest rate method.

$�FRPSRXQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�ZKLFK�FRQWDLQV�ERWK�D�OLDELOLW\�
and an equity component is separated at the issue date. A 
portion of the net proceeds of the instrument is allocated to 
the debt component on the date of issue based on its fair value 
(which is generally determined based on the quoted market 
prices for similar debt instruments). The equity component is 
assigned the residual amount after deducting from the fair value 
of the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined 
for the debt component. The value of any derivative features 
�VXFK�DV�D�FDOO�RSWLRQ��HPEHGGHG�LQ�WKH�FRPSRXQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
instrument other than the equity component is included in the 
debt component.

'XH�WR�FHQWUDO�EDQNV��GXH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��
customers’ deposits, and related parties’ deposits

After initial measurement, due to central banks, due to banks 
DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��FXVWRPHUVő�DQG�UHODWHG�SDUWLHVő�
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deposits are measured at amortized cost less amounts repaid 
using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate method.

F��'HULYDWLYHV�UHFRUGHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV
The Group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps and 
futures, credit-default swaps, cross-currency swaps, forward 
foreign exchange contracts and options on interest rates, foreign 
currencies and equities. 
 
Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when 
their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is 
negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized 
LQ�œ1HW�JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
 
An embedded derivative is separated from the host and 
accounted for as a derivative if, and only if:
(a) the hybrid contract contains a host that is not an asset within 
the scope of IFRS 9;
(b) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded 
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics 
and risks of the host;
(c) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded 
GHULYDWLYH�ZRXOG�PHHW�WKH�GHŵQLWLRQ�RI�D�GHULYDWLYH��DQG
(d) the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with changes 
LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

�LLL��'D\���SURŵW�RU�ORVV
When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument 
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 
only data from observable markets, the Group immediately 
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and 
IDLU�YDOXH��D�œ'D\��Ŕ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�
statement. In cases where fair value is determined using data 
which is not observable, the difference between the transaction 
price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated 
income statement when the inputs become observable, or when 
the instrument is derecognized.

�LY��5HFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
7KH�*URXS�UHFODVVLŵHV�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LI�WKH�REMHFWLYH�RI�WKH�
EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�WKRVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FKDQJHV��
Such changes are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes 
are determined by the Group’s Senior Management as a result 
RI�H[WHUQDO�RU�LQWHUQDO�FKDQJHV�ZKHQ�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�*URXSőV�
operations and demonstrable to external parties. 

,I�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFODVVLŵHG��WKH�UHFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�LV�DSSOLHG�
SURVSHFWLYHO\�IURP�WKH�UHFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�GDWH��ZKLFK�LV�WKH�ŵUVW�GD\�
RI�WKH�ŵUVW�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�IROORZLQJ�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�EXVLQHVV�

PRGHO�WKDW�UHVXOWV�LQ�WKH�UHFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��$Q\�
previously recognized gains, losses or interest are not restated.
 
,I�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�UHFODVVLŵHG�VR�WKDW�LW�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�
YDOXH��LWV�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�DW�WKH�UHFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�GDWH��
Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous 
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DQG�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��,I�D�
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�UHFODVVLŵHG�VR�WKDW�LW�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�
FRVW��LWV�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�UHFODVVLŵFDWLRQ�GDWH�EHFRPHV�LWV�QHZ�
carrying amount.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 
LIABILITIES

(i) Financial assets
$�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW��RU��ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��D�SDUW�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�
DVVHW�RU�SDUW�RI�D�JURXS�RI�VLPLODU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��LV�
derecognized when:

Ř� 7KH�ULJKWV�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ŶRZV�IURP�WKH�DVVHW�KDYH�H[SLUHG�
Ř� 7KH�*URXS�KDV�WUDQVIHUUHG�LWV�ULJKWV�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ŶRZV�

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
UHFHLYHG�FDVK�ŶRZV�LQ�IXOO�ZLWKRXW�PDWHULDO�GHOD\�WR�D�WKLUG�
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either:

Ř� The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset; or

Ř� The Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

:KHQ�WKH�*URXS�KDV�WUDQVIHUUHG�LWV�ULJKWV�WR�UHFHLYH�FDVK�ŶRZV�
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, 
the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing 
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes 
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
OLDELOLW\�DUH�PHDVXUHG�RQ�D�EDVLV�WKDW�UHŶHFWV�WKH�ULJKWV�DQG�
obligations that the Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

(ii) Financial liabilities
$�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�GHUHFRJQL]HG�ZKHQ�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�XQGHU�
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. Where an 
H[LVWLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�UHSODFHG�E\�DQRWKHU�IURP�WKH�VDPH�
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
H[LVWLQJ�OLDELOLW\�DUH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�PRGLŵHG��VXFK�DQ�H[FKDQJH�
RU�PRGLŵFDWLRQ�LV�WUHDWHG�DV�D�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference 
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EHWZHHQ�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�
and the consideration paid is recognized in the consolidated 
income statement.

REPURCHASE AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

6HFXULWLHV�VROG�XQGHU�DJUHHPHQWV�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�DW�D�VSHFLŵHG�
future date are not derecognized from the consolidated 
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�WKH�*URXS�UHWDLQV�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�
all the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash 
UHFHLYHG�LV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
position as an asset with a corresponding obligation to return 
it, including accrued interest as a liability within “Due to banks 
DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQVŔ��UHŶHFWLQJ�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQőV�HFRQRPLF�
substances as a loan to the Group. The difference between the 
sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is 
accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR. When the 
counterparty has the right to sell or re-pledge the securities, the 
*URXS�UHFODVVLŵHV�WKRVH�VHFXULWLHV�LQ�LWV�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
SRVLWLRQ�WR�œ)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
pledged as collateral” as appropriate. 

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at 
D�VSHFLŵHG�IXWXUH�GDWH�DUH�QRW�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��7KH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�SDLG��LQFOXGLQJ�
accrued interest, is recorded in the consolidated statement 
RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�ZLWKLQ�œ'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHYHUVH�UHSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQWVŔ��UHŶHFWLQJ�WKH�
transaction’s economic substance as a loan by the Group. The 
difference between the purchase and resale prices is recorded 
in “Net interest income” and is accrued over the life of the 
agreement using the EIR.

If securities purchased under agreement to resell are 
subsequently sold to third parties, the obligation to return the 
securities is recorded as a short sale within “Financial liabilities 
DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�DQG�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
with any gains or losses included in “Net gain (loss) from 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ�LQ�WKH�
consolidated income statement.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

7KH�*URXS�PHDVXUHV�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��VXFK�DV�GHULYDWLYHV��
DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�DQG�
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�
income, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair 
YDOXHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW�DUH�
disclosed in the notes.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Ř� In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
Ř� In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 

market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is 
measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

$�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�D�QRQ�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�WDNHV�LQWR�
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
EHQHŵWV�E\�XVLQJ�WKH�DVVHW�LQ�LWV�KLJKHVW�DQG�EHVW�XVH�RU�E\�
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�DQG�IRU�ZKLFK�VXIŵFLHQW�GDWD�DUH�DYDLODEOH�WR�
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
RU�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�FDWHJRUL]HG�
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
RQ�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�
measurement as a whole:

Ř� /HYHO���Ŏ�4XRWHG��XQDGMXVWHG��PDUNHW�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�
for identical assets or liabilities

Ř� /HYHO���Ŏ�9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�
WKDW�LV�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�LV�GLUHFWO\�RU�
indirectly observable

Ř� /HYHO���Ŏ�9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�
WKDW�LV�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�

    is unobservable

)RU�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that 
LV�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�DV�D�ZKROH��DW�WKH�
end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and 
procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as 
XQTXRWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��DQG�IRU�QRQ�UHFXUULQJ�PHDVXUHPHQW��
such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operation. 

At each reporting date, the management analyzes the 
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be re-measured or reassessed as per the Group’s 
DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��)RU�WKLV�DQDO\VLV��WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�YHULŵHV�
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 
relevant documents.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics, and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 
REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�D�JURXS�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�LV�LPSDLUHG��$�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�D�JURXS�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the 
HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�WKH�JURXS�RI�
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�UHOLDEO\�HVWLPDWHG��

Evidence of impairment may include indications that 
the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing 
VLJQLŵFDQW�ŵQDQFLDO�GLIŵFXOW\��WKH�SUREDELOLW\�WKDW�WKH\�ZLOO�
HQWHU�EDQNUXSWF\�RU�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ��GHIDXOW�
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, and where 
observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease 
LQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV��VXFK�DV�FKDQJHV�LQ�DUUHDUV�
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
)RU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW��WKH�*URXS�ŵUVW�
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment 
H[LVWV�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW��
RU�FROOHFWLYHO\�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�LQGLYLGXDOO\�
VLJQLŵFDQW��,I�WKH�*URXS�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�QR�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�
RI�LPSDLUPHQW�H[LVWV�IRU�DQ�LQGLYLGXDOO\�DVVHVVHG�ŵQDQFLDO�
DVVHW��LW�LQFOXGHV�WKH�DVVHW�LQ�D�JURXS�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�ZLWK�
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses 
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to 
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment 
of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV��H[FOXGLQJ�IXWXUH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�
losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account 
and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated 
income statement. 

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off 
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the 
Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by 

adjusting the allowance account. If a future writeoff is later 
recovered, the recovery is credited to the “Net credit losses” in 
the consolidated income statement. 

7KH�SUHVHQW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�LV�
GLVFRXQWHG�DW�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWőV�RULJLQDO�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest 
rate. The calculation of the present value of the estimated 
IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�RI�D�FROODWHUDOL]HG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�UHŶHFWV�
WKH�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�PD\�UHVXOW�IURP�IRUHFORVXUH�OHVV�FRVWV�
of obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not the 
foreclosure is probable. 

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�JURXSHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�LQWHUQDO�
credit grading system, which considers credit risk characteristics 
such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral 
type, past-due status, and other relevant factors.

)XWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�RQ�D�JURXS�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the 
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk 
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss 
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable 
GDWD�WR�UHŶHFW�WKH�HIIHFWV�RI�FXUUHQW�FRQGLWLRQV�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH�
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of 
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently. 

(VWLPDWHV�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�UHŶHFW��DQG�DUH�
directionally consistent with, changes in related observable 
data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, 
property prices, commodity prices, payment status, or other 
factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the group and 
their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for 
HVWLPDWLQJ�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\�WR�UHGXFH�DQ\�
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

(ii) Renegotiated loans 
Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather 
than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending 
the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan 
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any 
impairment is measured using the original effective interest rate 
DV�FDOFXODWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�PRGLŵFDWLRQ�RI�WHUPV�DQG�WKH�ORDQ�LV�QR�
longer considered past due. The loans continue to be subject 
to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated 
using the loan’s original effective interest rate.

(iii) Collateral repossessed
The Group occasionally acquires properties in settlement of 
loans and advances. Upon initial recognition, those assets are 
measured at fair value as approved by the regulatory authorities. 
Subsequently these properties are measured at the lower of 
carrying value or net realizable value.
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Upon sale of repossessed assets, any gain or loss realized 
is recognized in the consolidated income statement under 
“Other operating income” or “Other operating expenses”. Gains 
resulting from the sale of repossessed assets are transferred to 
œ5HVHUYHV�IRU�FDSLWDO�LQFUHDVHŔ�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�\HDU��

HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage 
exposures to interest rate, foreign currency, and credit risks, 
LQFOXGLQJ�H[SRVXUHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�IRUHFDVW�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�ŵUP�
commitments. In order to manage particular risks, the Group 
applies hedge accounting for transactions which meet the 
VSHFLŵHG�FULWHULD�

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group formally 
documents the relationship between the hedged item and 
the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the 
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, and the 
method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the 
hedging relationship.

At each hedge effectiveness assessment date, a hedge 
relationship must be expected to be highly effective on 
a prospective basis and demonstrate that it was effective 
(retrospective effectiveness) for the designated period in 
order to qualify for hedge accounting. A formal assessment is 
undertaken to ensure the hedging instrument is expected to be 
highly effective in offsetting the designated risk in the hedged 
item, both at inception and at each quarter-end on an ongoing 
basis. A hedge is expected to be highly effective if the changes 
LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RU�FDVK�ŶRZV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKH�KHGJHG�ULVN�GXULQJ�
the period for which the hedge is designated are expected to 
offset in a range of 80% to 125% and are expected to achieve 
such offset in future periods. Hedge ineffectiveness is recognized 
in the consolidated income statement in “Net gain (loss) from 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ��)RU�
situations where that hedged item is a forecast transaction, the 
Group also assesses whether the transaction is highly probable 
DQG�SUHVHQWV�DQ�H[SRVXUH�WR�YDULDWLRQV�LQ�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�FRXOG�
ultimately affect the consolidated income statement.

(i) Fair value hedges
For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative 
change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognized 
in the consolidated income statement in “Net gain (loss) 
IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVVŔ��
Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the 
hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part 
of the carrying value of the hedged item in the consolidated 
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�LV�DOVR�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�œ1HW�
JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�
or loss” in the consolidated income statement.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or 
exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria 
for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued 
prospectively. For hedged items recorded at amortized cost, the 
difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on 
termination and the face value is amortized over the remaining 
term of the original hedge using the recalculated effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. If the hedged item is derecognized, the 
unamortized fair value adjustment is recognized immediately in 
the consolidated income statement.

�LL��&DVK�ŶRZ�KHGJHV
)RU�GHVLJQDWHG�DQG�TXDOLI\LQJ�FDVK�ŶRZ�KHGJHV��WKH�HIIHFWLYH�
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially 
UHFRJQL]HG�GLUHFWO\�LQ�HTXLW\�LQ�WKH�œ&DVK�ŶRZ�KHGJHŔ�UHVHUYH��
The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument is recognized immediately in the consolidated 
income statement.

:KHQ�WKH�KHGJHG�FDVK�ŶRZ�DIIHFWV�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�LQFRPH�
statement, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is 
recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the 
consolidated income statement. When the forecast transaction 
VXEVHTXHQWO\�UHVXOWV�LQ�WKH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�D�QRQ�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�
RU�D�QRQ�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\��WKH�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�SUHYLRXVO\�
recognized in other comprehensive income are removed from 
the reserve and included in the initial cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold, terminated, 
exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in 
other comprehensive income at that time remains in other 
comprehensive income and is recognized when the hedged 
forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in the consolidated 
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer 
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported 
in other comprehensive income is immediately transferred to the 
consolidated income statement.

(iii) Hedge of a net investment 
Hedges of net investments in a foreign operation, including a 
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the 
QHW�LQYHVWPHQW��DUH�DFFRXQWHG�IRU�LQ�D�ZD\�VLPLODU�WR�FDVK�ŶRZ�
hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to 
the effective portion of the hedge are recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income, while any gains or losses relating 
to the ineffective portion are recognized in the consolidated 
income statement. On disposal of the foreign operation, 
the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized 
directly in other comprehensive statement is transferred to the 
consolidated income statement.

Financial StatementsByblos Bank S.A.L.

94



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASING

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it 
contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement 
DQG�UHTXLUHV�DQ�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�ZKHWKHU�WKH�IXOŵOOPHQW�RI�WKH�
DUUDQJHPHQW�LV�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�WKH�XVH�RI�D�VSHFLŵF�DVVHW�RU�DVVHWV�
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as a lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all 
WKH�ULVNV�DQG�EHQHŵWV�LQFLGHQWDO�WR�RZQHUVKLS�RI�WKH�OHDVHG�
items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are 
recognized as an expense in the consolidated income statement 
on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental 
payments payable are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks 
DQG�EHQHŵWV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�RI�WKH�DVVHW�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DV�RSHUDWLQJ�
leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating 
leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned.

RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�ZLOO�ŶRZ�WR�WKH�*URXS�DQG�WKH�UHYHQXH�FDQ�EH�
UHOLDEO\�PHDVXUHG��7KH�IROORZLQJ�VSHFLŵF�UHFRJQLWLRQ�FULWHULD�PXVW�
also be met before revenue is recognized. 
 
(i) Interest and similar income and expense
)RU�DOO�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW��LQWHUHVW�
income or expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
WKURXJK�WKH�H[SHFWHG�OLIH�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�RU�D�VKRUWHU�
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\��7KH�FDOFXODWLRQ�WDNHV�LQWR�
DFFRXQW�DOO�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable 
to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, but not future credit losses. 
 
7KH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RU�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�LV�
adjusted if the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts. 
The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original 
effective interest rate and the change in the carrying amount is 
UHFRUGHG�DV�œ,QWHUHVW�DQG�VLPLODU�LQFRPHŔ�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�
œ,QWHUHVW�DQG�VLPLODU�H[SHQVHŔ�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�
 
2QFH�WKH�UHFRUGHG�YDOXH�RI�D�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW�RQ�D�JURXS�RI�VLPLODU�
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�KDV�EHHQ�UHGXFHG�GXH�WR�DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV��
interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of 

LQWHUHVW�XVHG�WR�GLVFRXQW�WKH�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�
measuring the impairment loss.
 
(ii) Fee and commission income
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse 
range of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can be 
divided into the following categories:

Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain 

period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time 
are accrued over that period. These fees include commission 
income and asset management, custody and other management 
and advisory fees.

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down 
and other credit-related fees are deferred (together with any 
incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the EIR 
on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan will be drawn down, 
the loan commitment fees are recognized over the commitment 
period on a straight line basis.
 
Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation 
of a transaction for a third party, such as the arrangement of 
the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase 
or sale of businesses, are recognized on completion of the 
underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are 
OLQNHG�WR�D�FHUWDLQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�DIWHU�IXOŵOOLQJ�WKH�
corresponding criteria.

Fee and commission income from providing insurance services

Insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged 
for policy administration services, investment management 
services, surrenders, and other contract fees. These fees are 
recognized as revenue over the period in which the related 
services are performed. If the fees are for services provided 
in future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over 
those future periods.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the 
payment is established.

�LY��1HW�JDLQ��ORVV��IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV
5HVXOWV�DULVLQJ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�LQFOXGH�DOO�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�IURP�FKDQJHV�LQ�IDLU�
YDOXH�DQG�UHODWHG�LQFRPH�RU�H[SHQVH�DQG�GLYLGHQGV�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�
DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��7KLV�LQFOXGHV�DQ\�
ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

(v) Insurance revenue
For the insurance subsidiaries, net premiums and accessories 
(gross premiums) are taken to income over the terms of the 
policies to which they relate using the pro rata temporis 
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method for non-marine business and 25% of gross premiums 
for marine business. Unearned premiums reserve represents 
the portion of the gross premiums written relating to the 
unexpired period of coverage.

If the unearned premiums reserve is not considered adequate 
to cover future claims arising on these premiums, a premium 
GHŵFLHQF\�UHVHUYH�LV�FUHDWHG�

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DV�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�WKH�FDVK�ŶRZ�
statement comprise balances with original maturities of a period 
of three months or less, including: cash and balances with 
FHQWUDO�EDQNV��GHSRVLWV�ZLWK�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV��DQG�
GHSRVLWV�GXH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs 
of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property and equipment if the recognition 
FULWHULD�DUH�PHW��:KHQ�VLJQLŵFDQW�SDUWV�RI�SURSHUW\�DQG�
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group 
UHFRJQL]HV�VXFK�SDUWV�DV�LQGLYLGXDO�DVVHWV�ZLWK�VSHFLŵF�XVHIXO�
lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
FULWHULD�DUH�VDWLVŵHG��$OO�RWKHU�UHSDLU�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�FRVWV�DUH�
recognized in the consolidated income statement as incurred. 
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning 
of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective 
asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by 
changing the depreciation period or method, as appropriate, 
and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to 
write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. 
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

  Buildings 50 years

��2IŵFH�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�IXUQLWXUH 6.66-12.5 years

  Computer equipment and software 3.33-5 years

  General installations 5 years

  Vehicles 4 years

Property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when 
QR�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�IURP�LWV�XVH��$Q\�JDLQ�

or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is recognized in “Net gain (loss) on disposal 
RI�ŵ[HG�DVVHWVŔ�LQ�WKH�\HDU�WKH�DVVHW�LV�GHUHFRJQL]HG��

The asset’s residual lives and methods of depreciation are 
UHYLHZHG�DW�HDFK�ŵQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG�DQG�DGMXVWHG�SURVSHFWLYHO\�
if applicable.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date 
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in 
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects 
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree 
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s 
LGHQWLŵDEOH�QHW�DVVHWV��$FTXLVLWLRQ�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�DUH�H[SHQVHG�
and included in administrative expenses.

:KHQ�WKH�*URXS�PDNHV�DQ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�PHHWLQJ�WKH�GHŵQLWLRQ�
RI�D�EXVLQHVV�XQGHU�,)56����LW�DVVHVVHV�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DVVXPHG�IRU�DSSURSULDWH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DQG�
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in 
host contracts by the acquiree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at fair value at 
the acquisition date through the consolidated income statement. 
It is then considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the 
acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition 
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will 
EH�UHFRJQL]HG�HLWKHU�LQ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�RU�DV�D�FKDQJH�WR�RWKHU�
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is 
FODVVLŵHG�DV�HTXLW\��LW�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�UH�PHDVXUHG�XQWLO�LW�LV�ŵQDOO\�
settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest 
KHOG��RYHU�WKH�QHW�LGHQWLŵDEOH�DVVHWV�DFTXLUHG�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of 
the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group reassesses 
ZKHWKHU�LW�KDV�FRUUHFWO\�LGHQWLŵHG�DOO�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�DFTXLUHG�DQG�
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to 
measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If 
the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net 
assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred,  
WKHQ�WKH�JDLQ�LV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, 
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s 
FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLWV�WKDW�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EHQHŵW�IURP�WKH�
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of 
the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part 
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill 
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or 
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this 
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the 
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating 
unit retained.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be 
measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future 
HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�WKDW�DUH�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�LW�ZLOO�ŶRZ�WR�WKH�*URXS�
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired 
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either 
ŵQLWH�RI�LQGHŵQLWH��,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�ZLWK�ŵQLWH�OLYHV�DUH�DPRUWL]HG�
over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the 
DPRUWL]DWLRQ�PHWKRG�IRU�DQ�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHW�ZLWK�D�ŵQLWH�XVHIXO�
OLIH�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DW�OHDVW�DW�HDFK�ŵQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQG��&KDQJHV�LQ�
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
RI�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHŵWV�HPERGLHG�LQ�WKH�DVVHW�DUH�
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, 
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
7KH�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�H[SHQVH�RQ�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�ZLWK�ŵQLWH�OLYHV�LV�
recognized in the consolidated income statement.
 
Amortization is calculated using the straight line method to write 
down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over 
their estimated useful lives as follows:
 

  Key money 10-15 years

,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�ZLWK�LQGHŵQLWH�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DUH�QRW�DPRUWL]HG��
but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at 
WKH�FDVK�JHQHUDWLQJ�XQLW�OHYHO��7KH�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�LQGHŵQLWH�OLIH�
LV�UHYLHZHG�DQQXDOO\�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKH�LQGHŵQLWH�OLIH�
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from 
LQGHŵQLWH�WR�ŵQLWH�LV�PDGH�RQ�D�SURVSHFWLYH�EDVLV�
 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�ZKHQ�WKH�
asset is derecognized.

7KH�*URXS�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�ZLWK�LQGHŵQLWH�
economic lives.
 
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In 
DVVHVVLQJ�YDOXH�LQ�XVH��WKH�HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�DUH�
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
WKDW�UHŶHFWV�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�DVVHVVPHQWV�RI�WKH�WLPH�YDOXH�RI�
PRQH\�DQG�WKH�ULVNV�VSHFLŵF�WR�WKH�DVVHW��,Q�GHWHUPLQLQJ�IDLU�
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other 
available fair value indicators.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at 
each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss 
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in 
future periods.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

,Q�WKH�RUGLQDU\�FRXUVH�RI�EXVLQHVV��WKH�*URXS�JLYHV�ŵQDQFLDO�
guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees and 
acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in 
WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZLWKLQ�œ2WKHU�OLDELOLWLHVŔ��DW�IDLU�YDOXH��
being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
the Group’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the 
higher of the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, 
cumulative amortization recognized in the consolidated income 
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statement, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle 
DQ\�ŵQDQFLDO�REOLJDWLRQ�DULVLQJ�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI��WKH�JXDUDQWHH�

$Q\�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�OLDELOLW\�UHODWLQJ�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHHV�LV�
recorded in the consolidated income statement in “Net credit 
losses”. The premium received is recognized in the consolidated 
income statement on a straight line basis over the life of the 
guarantee in “Net fee and commission income”.
 
PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

7KH�*URXS�RSHUDWHV�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SHQVLRQ�SODQV��ZKLFK�
require contributions to be made to separately administered 
IXQGV��7KH�FRVW�RI�SURYLGLQJ�EHQHŵWV�XQGHU�WKH�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�
plans is determined using the projected unit credit method, 
which involves making actuarial assumptions about discount 
rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, 
mortality rates, and future pension increases. Those assumptions 
are unbiased and mutually compatible. 

Re-measurements, comprised of actuarial gains and losses, 
the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding net interest and the 
return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized 
LPPHGLDWHO\�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�ZLWK�D�
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI 
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not 
UHFODVVLŵHG�WR�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�LQ�VXEVHTXHQW�SHULRGV�

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the 
earlier of:

Ř� The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
Ř� The date that the Group recognizes restructuring- 

related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the 
QHW�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�OLDELOLW\�RU�DVVHW��7KH�*URXS�UHFRJQL]HV�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�QHW�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�REOLJDWLRQ�XQGHU�
“Personnel expenses” in consolidated statement of income:

Ř� Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service 
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non- 
routine settlements

Ř� Net interest expense or income
 
PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and 
LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�DQ�RXWŶRZ�RI�UHVRXUFHV�HPERG\LQJ�HFRQRPLF�
EHQHŵWV�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�REOLJDWLRQ�DQG�D�UHOLDEOH�
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
consolidated income statement net of any reimbursement.
 
TAXES

Taxes are provided for in accordance with regulations and laws 
that are effective in the countries where the Group operates.

(i) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years 
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the 
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
DQG�WKHLU�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�IRU�ŵQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�SXUSRVHV��
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences, except:

Ř� Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
WLPH�RI�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ��DIIHFWV�QHLWKHU�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURŵW�
QRU�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

Ř� In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing 
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
ORVVHV��WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�ZLOO�EH�
available against which the deductible temporary differences, 
and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilized except:

Ř� Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURŵW�QRU�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�RU�ORVV��RU

Ř� In respect of deductible temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax 
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable 
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 
IXWXUH�DQG�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�WKH�
temporary differences can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�DQG�UHGXFHG�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�
WKDW�LW�LV�QR�ORQJHU�SUREDEOH�WKDW�VXIŵFLHQW�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�ZLOO�
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�DQG�DUH�UHFRJQL]HG�WR�WKH�
H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�KDV�EHFRPH�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�ZLOO�
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized 
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of 
ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity are also recognized in equity and not in the 
consolidated income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a 
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

TREASURY SHARES

Own equity instruments of the Group which are acquired by 
it or by any of its subsidiaries (treasury shares) are deducted 
from equity and accounted for at weighted average cost. 
Consideration paid or received on the purchase, sale, issue 
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments is 
recognized directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in 
the consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale, issue 
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

When the Group holds own equity instruments on behalf 
of its clients, those holdings are not included in the Group’s 
FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�

Contracts on own shares that require physical settlement of 
D�ŵ[HG�QXPEHU�RI�RZQ�VKDUHV�IRU�D�ŵ[HG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�DUH�
FODVVLŵHG�DV�HTXLW\�DQG�DGGHG�WR�RU�GHGXFWHG�IURP�HTXLW\��
Contracts on own shares that require net cash settlement 
RU�SURYLGH�D�FKRLFH�RI�VHWWOHPHQW�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DV�WUDGLQJ�
instruments and changes in the fair value are reported in the 
consolidated income statement.

ASSETS HELD IN CUSTODY AND UNDER ADMINISTRATION  

The Group provides custody and administration services that 
result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of its clients. 
Assets held in custody or under administration are not treated as 
DVVHWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�DQG�DFFRUGLQJO\�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DV�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�
position items.

DIVIDENDS ON ORDINARY SHARES

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and 
deducted from equity when they are approved by the Bank’s 
shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when 
they are declared and no longer at the discretion of the Bank. 

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date 
are disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

CUSTOMERS’ ACCEPTANCES

Customers’ acceptances represent term documentary credits 
which the Group has committed to settle on behalf of its clients 
against commitments by those clients (acceptances). The 
commitments resulting from these acceptances are stated as a 
OLDELOLW\�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�IRU�WKH�VDPH�DPRXQW�

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s segmental reporting is based on the following 
operating segments: consumer banking, corporate banking, and 
treasury and capital markets.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
AND JUDGMENTS

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, 
management has made the following judgments, apart from 
WKRVH�LQYROYLQJ�HVWLPDWLRQV��ZKLFK�KDYH�WKH�PRVW�VLJQLŵFDQW�
HIIHFW�LQ�WKH�DPRXQWV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the 
*URXSőV�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�DQG�LV�VDWLVŵHG�
that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the 
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of 
DQ\�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQWLHV�WKDW�PD\�FDVW�VLJQLŵFDQW�GRXEW�XSRQ�
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the 
FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�SUHSDUHG�RQ�
the going concern basis.
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Business model

In making an assessment whether a business model’s objective 
LV�WR�KROG�DVVHWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV��WKH�
Group considers at which level of its business activities such 
assessment should be made. Generally, a business model is 
a matter of fact which can be evidenced by the way business 
is managed and the information provided to management. 
However, in some circumstances it may not be clear whether 
a particular activity involves one business model with some 
infrequent asset sales or whether the anticipated sales indicate 
that there are two different business models. 

In determining whether its business model for managing 
ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�WR�KROG�DVVHWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�
FDVK�ŶRZV�WKH�*URXS�FRQVLGHUV��
Ř� management’s stated policies and objectives for the portfolio 

and the operation of those policies in practice; 
Ř� how management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;
Ř� whether management’s strategy focuses on earning 

contractual interest revenues;
Ř� the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;
Ř� the reason for any asset sales; and
Ř� whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period 

of time relative to their contractual maturity.

&RQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�ŶRZV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
The Group exercises judgment in determining whether the 
FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LW�RULJLQDWHV�RU�DFTXLUHV�
JLYH�ULVH�RQ�VSHFLŵF�GDWHV�WR�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�DUH�VROHO\�SD\PHQWV�
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and so 
may qualify for amortized cost measurement. In making the 
assessment, the Group considers all contractual terms, including 
any prepayment terms or provisions to extend the maturity of 
the assets, terms that change the amount and timing of cash 
ŶRZV��DQG�ZKHWKHU�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�WHUPV�FRQWDLQ�OHYHUDJH�

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that 
KDYH�D�VLJQLŵFDQW�ULVN�RI�FDXVLQJ�D�PDWHULDO�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�
FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�QH[W�ŵQDQFLDO�
year are described below. The Group based its assumptions 
and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated 
ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�SUHSDUHG��([LVWLQJ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�
and assumptions about future developments, however, may 
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond 
WKH�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�*URXS��6XFK�FKDQJHV�DUH�UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�
assumptions when they occur.

)DLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�
:KHUH�WKH�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�
UHFRUGHG�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�FDQQRW�EH�

derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety 
of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical 
models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable 
market data where possible, but where observable market data 
are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. 
The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model 
inputs such as volatility for longer-dated derivatives and discount 
rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset-
backed securities. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
FRXOG�DIIHFW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��

Impairment losses on loans and advances

7KH�*URXS�UHYLHZV�LWV�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�
DW�HDFK�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�GDWH�WR�DVVHVV�ZKHWKHU�DQ�
impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated income 
statement. In particular, judgment by management is required 
LQ�WKH�HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�
when determining the impairment loss. In estimating these 
FDVK�ŶRZV��WKH�*URXS�PDNHV�MXGJPHQWV�DERXW�WKH�ERUURZHUőV�
ŵQDQFLDO�VLWXDWLRQ�DQG�WKH�QHW�UHDOL]DEOH�YDOXH�RI�FROODWHUDO��
These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes 
to the allowance. 

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually 
DQG�IRXQG�QRW�WR�EH�LPSDLUHG�DQG�DOO�LQGLYLGXDOO\�LQVLJQLŵFDQW�
loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups 
of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether 
provision should be made due to incurred loss events for 
which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not 
yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data 
from the loan portfolio (such as credit quality, levels of arrears, 
credit utilization, loan-to-collateral ratios etc.), concentrations 
of risks, and economic data (including levels of unemployment, 
real estate prices indices, country risk, and the performance of 
different individual groups). 

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect to tax losses to 
WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WD[DEOH�SURŵW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�
against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is required 
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future 
WD[DEOH�SURŵWV��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�IXWXUH�WD[�SODQQLQJ�VWUDWHJLHV�

Pension obligations

7KH�FRVW�RI�WKH�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�
using an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves 
making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of 
return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and 
future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these 
SODQV��VXFK�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�VLJQLŵFDQW�XQFHUWDLQW\�
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4. GROUP INFORMATION

7KH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�*URXS�FRPSULVH�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�%\EORV�%DQN�6�$�/��DQG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VXEVLGLDULHV�

Percentage of ownership

Subsidiary
2014

%
2013

% Principal activity
Country of

incorporation

Byblos Bank Europe S.A. 99.95 99.95
%DQNLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�WKURXJK�LWV�KHDG�RIŵFH�LQ�%UXVVHOV�
(Belgium) and two branches in London and Paris

Belgium

Adonis Insurance and 
Reinsurance Co. 
(ADIR) S.A.L. 

64.00 64.00 Insurance Lebanon

Adonis Brokerage 
House S.A.L.

100.00 100.00 Insurance Brokerage Lebanon

Byblos Invest Bank S.A.L. 99.99 99.99 Investment Banking Lebanon

Byblos Bank Africa 56.86 56.86 Commercial Banking Sudan

Byblos Bank Syria  P.J.S.C. 59.87 52.37 Commercial Banking Syria

Byblos Bank 
Armenia C.J.S.C.

65.00 65.00 Commercial Banking Armenia

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Syria 
(ADIR Syria) 

76.00 76.00 Insurance Syria

Byblos Bank RDC S.A.R.L. 
(formerly Solidaire Banque 
Internationale  
[S.B.I. S.A.R.L.])  

66.67 66.67 Banking activities  
Democratic 

Republic of the 
Congo
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6. MATERIAL PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are provided below.

PROPORTION OF EQUITY INTERESTS HELD BY NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:

Name 2014
%

2013
%

Byblos Bank Africa  43.14 43.14

Adonis Insurance and Reinsurance Co. (ADIR) S.A.L. 36.00
36.00

Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C. 35.00 35.00

Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C. 40.13 47.63

5. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of additional interest in Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C.
Effective 1 January 2014, the Group acquired an additional 7.5% interest in the voting shares of Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C., increasing 
its ownership interest to 59.87%. A cash consideration of LBP 10,553 million was paid to the non-controlling interest shareholders. The 
carrying value of the additional interest acquired was LBP 5,384 million. Following is a schedule of additional interest acquired in Byblos 
Bank Syria P.J.S.C.:

LBP Million

Cash consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders 10,553

Carrying value of additional interest in Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C. (5,384)

Difference recognized within equity 5,169
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LBP Million
Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank Syria 

P.J.S.C.

Net interest income (expense) 16,325 5,528 3,419 (709)

Net fee and commission income 5,074 2,383 156 2,493

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�
IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

1,996 2,722 1,751 24,287

Other operating income 605 15,711 220 367

Net credit losses (2,705) (160) (4,714) (8,160)

Total operating expenses (8,870) (9,920) (4,771) (6,504)

Income tax expense (3,775) (873) (55) (3,389)

3URŵW��ORVV��IRU�WKH�\HDU 8,650 15,391 (3,994) 8,385

Attributable to non-controlling interests 3,732 5,541 (1,398) 3,365

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1,710 2,379 - -

SUMMARIZED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2014:

LBP Million
Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank Syria 

P.J.S.C.

Net interest income 13,629  2,869 6,055 442

Net fee and commission income 6,929  1,944 163 3,140

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�
IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

2,363 4,197 192 41,293

Other operating income 350 15,612  26 1,157

Net credit losses (1,586) (1,000) (2,676) (40,083)

Total operating expenses  (10,694) (9,503)  (5,049) (10,382)

Income tax expense (2,743) (847)  - 9,185

3URŵW��ORVV��IRU�WKH�\HDU 8,248 13,272  (1,289) 4,752

Attributable to non-controlling interests  3,558 4,784 (451) 2,263

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  1,198 1,803 - -

SUMMARIZED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2013:

7KH�VXPPDUL]HG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�SURYLGHG�EHORZ��7KLV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�EDVHG�RQ�DPRXQWV�EHIRUH�LQWHU�
company eliminations:
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LBP Million
Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank Syria 

P.J.S.C.

Cash and balances with banks 92,344 19,294 63,426 232,535

Balances with Parent and Group entities 49,651 140,584 539 36,108

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- 25,429 - -

Net loans and advances at amortized cost 107,396 1,816 90,138 95,143

Financial assets at amortized cost 35,442 103,988 9,677 15,376

Property and equipment 16,850 2,028 3,271 7,498

Other assets 17,314 48,373 1,502 27,263

Due to banks (29,704) - (24,194) (20,120)

Due to Parent and Group entities (77,673) - (12,403) -

Deposits at amortized cost (132,614) (176,685) (107,265) (331,836)

Other liabilities (23,588) (104,134) (499) (1,489)

Total equity 55,418 60,693 24,192 60,478

Attributable to non-controlling interests 14,209 21,850 - 24,270

SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014:
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Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank Syria 

P.J.S.C.

Cash and balances with banks 65,844 21,173 49,397 231,749

Balances with Parent and Group entities 79,136 134,861 591 64,598

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- 22,373 - -

Net loans and advances at amortized cost 133,155 2,994 89,671 121,839

Financial assets at amortized cost 43,539 74,677 11,847 22,962

Property and equipment 19,454 2,149 3,991 10,451

Other assets 8,134 43,885 2,134 35,782

Due to banks (60,745) - (25,873) (56,076)

Due to Parent and Group entities (70,104) - (7,724) -

Deposits at amortized cost (147,623) (151,239) (90,726) (327,033)

Other liabilities (16,965) (98,971) (803) (32,490)

Total equity 53,825 51,902 32,505 71,782

Attributable to non-controlling interests 13,801 18,711 - 34,190

Put options granted to the holders of non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries Byblos Bank Africa and Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C. 
were estimated at a fair value of  LBP 13,213 million and  LBP 9,212 million respectively as at 31 December 2014 (2013: LBP 11,774 million 
and LBP 14,221 million respectively) (note 36). These were recorded through partial recognition of non-controlling interests.

SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013:
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LBP Million
Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank 
Syria P.J.S.C.

Operating 36,907 16,909 (18,368) 51,892

Investing 4,767 (13,017) (365) 6,606

Financing (37,323) (2,852) - -

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 4,351 1,040 (18,733) 58,498

LBP Million
Byblos Bank Africa

Adonis Insurance 
and Reinsurance Co. 

(ADIR) S.A.L.
Byblos Bank 

Armenia C.J.S.C.
Byblos Bank 
Syria P.J.S.C.

Operating (59,704) 17,058 (2,587) (60,792)

Investing (9,989) (5,364) (169) 10,553

Financing 15,266 (1,332) - -

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents (54,427) 10,362 (2,756) (50,239)

SUMMARIZED CASH FLOW INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014:

SUMMARIZED CASH FLOW INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013:
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For management purposes, the Group is organized into three 
operating segments based on products and services as follows:

RETAIL BANKING�SURYLGHV�D�GLYHUVLŵHG�UDQJH�RI�SURGXFWV�DQG�
VHUYLFHV�WR�PHHW�WKH�SHUVRQDO�EDQNLQJ�DQG�FRQVXPHU�ŵQDQFH�
needs of individuals. The range includes deposits, housing loans, 
consumer loans, credit cards, fund transfers, foreign exchange, 
and other branch-related services.

CORPORATE BANKING provides a comprehensive product 
and service offering to corporate and institutional customers, 
including loans and other credit facilities, deposits and current 
DFFRXQWV��WUDGH�ŵQDQFH��DQG�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�RSHUDWLRQV�

TREASURY AND CAPITAL MARKETS is mostly responsible for 
the liquidity management and market risk of the Group, as well 
as managing the Group’s own portfolio of stocks, bonds and 
RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKLV�VHJPHQW�SURYLGHV�
treasury and investment products and services to investors and 
other institutional customers. 

Management monitors the operating results of its business units 
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource 
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 
LV�HYDOXDWHG�EDVHG�RQ�RSHUDWLQJ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�ZKLFK�LQ�FHUWDLQ�
UHVSHFWV�LV�PHDVXUHG�GLIIHUHQWO\�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�LQ�
WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��,QFRPH�WD[HV�DUH�PDQDJHG�RQ�D�*URXS�
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Interest income is reported net as management primarily relies 
on net interest revenue as a performance measure, not the gross 
income and expense amounts. 

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s 
length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�SUHVHQWV�QHW�RSHUDWLQJ�LQFRPH��SURŵW�DQG�
total assets and liabilities information in respect of the Group’s 
operating segments:

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

2014
LBP Million

Retail  
banking 

Corporate 
banking 

Treasury and
capital

markets Other1 Total

Net interest income 186,799 114,430 58,476 3,992 363,697

Net fee and commission income 66,626 62,594 376 6,268 135,864

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- - 66,942 - 66,942

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�VDOH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW� - - 104,818 - 104,818

5HYHQXH�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
through other  comprehensive income

- - 2,736 - 2,736

Other operating income - - - 21,859 21,859

Net credit losses (8,004) (35,197) 3,773 - (39,428)

Net operating income 245,421 141,827 237,121 32,119 656,488

¹ Other includes all non-banking activities.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR INFORMATION
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2013
LBP Million

Retail  
banking 

Corporate 
banking 

Treasury and
capital

markets Other1 Total

Net interest income 180,406 109,440 49,403 6,595 345,844

Net fee and commission income 65,508 65,661 2,037 5,787 138,993

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- - 86,098 - 86,098

1HW�JDLQ�IURP�VDOH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW� - - 79,862 - 79,862

5HYHQXH�IURP�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�
through other  comprehensive income

- - 1,144 - 1,144

Other operating income - - - 23,542 23,542

Net credit losses (16,025) (64,423) 1,316 - (79,132)

Net operating income 229,889 110,678 219,860 35,924 596,351

2014
LBP Million

Retail  
banking 

Corporate 
banking 

Treasury and
capital

markets Other1 Total

Total assets 2,418,690 5,011,446 20,883,916 380,486 28,694,538

Total liabilities  22,165,961 1,524,642 1,847,712 612,271 26,150,586

2013
LBP Million

Retail  
banking 

Corporate 
banking 

Treasury and
capital

markets Other1 Total

Total assets 2,393,029 4,853,510 20,231,474 388,255 27,866,268

Total liabilities  20,755,502 1,479,159 2,365,984 780,037 25,380,682

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION
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2013
LBP Million

Lebanon Europe Other Total

Total operating income 527,279 53,675 94,529 675,483

Net credit losses (30,617) (6,191) (42,324) (79,132)

Net operating income2 496,662 47,484 52,205 596,351

Non-current assets3 218,880 8,994 52,546 280,420

2 Net operating income is attributed to the geographical segment on the basis of the location of the branch/subsidiary responsible for 

reporting the results or advancing the funds.

3�1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FRQVLVW�RI�SURSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV��DQG�FHUWDLQ�RWKHU�DVVHWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DQG�
deferred taxes) expected to be recovered in more than twelve months after the reporting date.

2014
LBP Million

Lebanon Europe Other Total

Total operating income 563,786 50,145 81,985 695,916

Net credit losses (20,054) (6,886) (12,488) (39,428)

Net operating income2 543,732 43,259 69,497 656,488

Non-current assets3 222,089 7,400 44,219 273,708

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Group operates in three geographical segments, Lebanon, Europe and Other countries. The following table shows the distribution 
of the Group’s net operating income and non-current assets.

LBP Million
 2014 2013 

Balances with central banks 199,375 162,273

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 18,035 14,233

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� 13,230 13,474

Financial assets given as collateral 477 517

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 488,449 457,584

Loans and advances to related parties at amortized cost 1,319 1,121

Financial assets at amortized cost 692,349 646,757

1,413,234 1,295,959

8. INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME
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LBP Million
2014 2013 

Due to central banks 986 1,809

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 22,481 27,503

Customers’ deposits at amortized cost 949,321 843,637

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost 13,175 11,334

Debt issued and other borrowed funds 32,227 34,849

Subordinated debt 31,347 30,747

Other equity instruments - 236

1,049,537 950,115

9. INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE

10. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

LBP Million
2014 2013

Fee and commission income

  Loans and advances 23,618 24,849

  Letters of guarantee 15,861 15,357

  Acceptances 9,258 9,857

  Letters of credit 27,867 31,285

  Credit cards 14,207 12,457

  Domiciled bills 2,554 2,185

  Checks for collection 3,038 3,084

  Maintenance of accounts 13,305 13,080

  Transfers 9,797 9,912

  Safe rental 1,116 946

  Portfolio commission 3,808 4,321

  Commission on insurance-related activities 8,210 8,593

  Refund of banking services 12,316 12,820

  Other commissions 4,676 5,294

149,631 154,040

Fee and commission expense (13,767) (15,047)

Net fee and commission income 135,864 138,993
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11. NET GAIN FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Interest and similar income from debt instruments

  Lebanese government bonds 6,802 16,499

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 10 700

  Other foreign government bonds  231 115

  Other debt securities 596 200

7,639 17,514

Gain (loss) from sale of debt instruments

  Lebanese government bonds 3,439 (3,004)

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 2 (873)

  Other foreign government bonds 388 21

  Other debt securities 76 39

3,905 (3,817)

Unrealized gain (loss) from revaluation of debt instruments

  Lebanese government bonds 1,490 (1,189)

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 16 556

  Other foreign government bonds (38) -

  Other debt securities 322 (105)

1,790 (738)

Net gain from debt instruments 13,334 12,959

Equity instruments

  Gain from sale 213 362

  Unrealized gain from revaluation 2,784 5,258

  Dividend income 557 571

Net gain from equity instruments 3,554 6,191

  Unrealized gain from revaluation of structural position of a subsidiary 23,758 39,748

  Foreign exchange 26,296 27,200

66,942 86,098

Foreign exchange income includes gains and losses from spot and forward contracts, other currency derivatives, and the revaluation of 
the daily open trading position.
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12. NET GAIN FROM SALE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

7KH�*URXS�GHUHFRJQL]HV�VRPH�GHEW�LQVWUXPHQWV�FODVVLŵHG�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW�GXH�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHDVRQV�
Ř� Deterioration of the credit rating below the ceiling allowed in the Group’s investment policy;
Ř� Liquidity gap and yield management;
Ř� ([FKDQJH�RI�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�E\�WKH�/HEDQHVH�&HQWUDO�%DQN��
Ř� Currency risk management as a result of change in the currency base of deposits; or
Ř� Liquidity for capital expenditures.

7KH�VFKHGXOH�EHORZ�GHWDLOV�WKH�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�DULVLQJ�IURP�WKH�GHUHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

2014
LBP Million

Gains Losses Net

Lebanese government bonds 61,457 - 61,457

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 42,072 (632) 41,440

Other foreign government bonds 185 - 185

Other debt securities 1,736 - 1,736

105,450 (632) 104,818

2013
LBP Million

Gains Losses Net

Lebanese government bonds 27,575 (280) 27,295

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 31,309 - 31,309

Other foreign government bonds 2,527 - 2,527

Other debt securities 3,623 (56) 3,567

Bank placements at the Central Bank of  Lebanon 15,164 - 15,164

80,198 (336) 79,862

During 2013, the Group discounted placements at the Central Bank of Lebanon which resulted in a gain of LBP 15,164 million.
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13. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

14. NET CREDIT LOSSES

LBP Million
2014 2013

Net gain from sale of assets obtained in settlement of debt 2,190 5,791

Rental income from assets obtained in settlement of debt 1,424 895

Write-back of provisions for risks and charges (note 37 (b)) 751 145

Other operating income from insurance-related activities 12,891 13,003

Others 4,603 3,708

21,859 23,542

LBP Million
2014 2013

Charge for the year

  Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost (note 25) 74,568 115,097

  Financial assets at amortized cost (note 26) 513 1,000

  Bad debts written off 178 80

75,259 116,177

Recoveries during the year: 

  Loans and advances to customers (note 25) (25,128) (25,566)

  Unrealized interest on loans and advances to customers (note 25) (6,257) (9,163)

  Financial assets at amortized cost (note 26) (4,000) (1,419)

  Doubtful banks (note 20) (446) (897)

(35,831) (37,045)

39,428 79,132
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15. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

16. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

LBP Million
2014 2013

Salaries and related charges 139,670 135,695

Social security contributions 19,401 17,727

3URYLVLRQ�IRU�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV��QRWH�����D�� 8,546 8,804

167,617 162,226

LBP Million
2014 2013

Taxes on interest 3,508 3,721

Taxes and duties 6,546 7,522

Contribution to deposit guarantee fund 11,185 9,951

Rent and related charges 7,297 7,862

Professional fees 8,397 8,414

Telecommunications and postage expenses 8,339 8,418

Board of Directors attendance fees 998 998

Maintenance and repairs 15,358 14,052

Electricity and fuel 6,165 6,732

Travel and entertainment 3,601 3,907

Publicity and advertising 11,839 11,829

Subscriptions 4,876 3,594

Bonuses 20,883 15,623

Legal expenses 3,566 3,273

Insurance 1,869 1,857

Guarding fees 1,996 2,085

Printings and stationery 3,207 3,159

Provisions for risks and charges (note 37 (b)) 645 4,190

Donations 3,228 2,624

Others 8,538 7,150

132,041 126,961
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

LBP Million
2014 2013

Current income tax expense 55,475 45,168

Deferred tax related to origination and reversal of temporary differences 2,839 (9,185)

Other taxes 8,963 8,376

67,277 44,359

The tax rates applicable to the parent and subsidiaries vary from 0% to 40% in accordance with the income tax laws of the countries 
where the Group operates. For the purpose of determining the taxable results of the subsidiaries for the year, the accounting results 
have been adjusted for tax purposes. Such adjustments include items relating to both income and expense and are based on the 
current understanding of the existing tax laws and regulations and tax practices.

7KH�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�SURŵW�EHIRUH�WD[��DQG�WKH�GLIIHUHQFHV�EHWZHHQ�LQFRPH�WD[�H[SHQVH�UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
and the amounts calculated at the Lebanese tax rate, are shown in the table below:

LBP Million
2014 2013

2SHUDWLQJ�SURŵW�EHIRUH�WD[ 331,809 279,808

Of which Lebanese banks 266,563 237,994

Of which insurance companies 22,524 16,440

Of which foreign banks 42,722 25,374

Income tax at Lebanese tax rate 15% 49,771 41,971

Impact of increase resulting from:

Different tax rates 5,149 1,036

Non-deductible expenses 4,119 2,799

Carried forward taxable losses of a subsidiary - 5,513

9,268 9,348

Impact of decrease resulting from:

Revenues previously subject to tax - (188)

Unrealized gain from revaluation of structural position of a subsidiary (3,564) (5,963)

(3,564) (6,151)

Income tax 55,475 45,168

Effective income tax rate 16.72% 16.14%
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The movement of current tax liabilities during the year is as follows: 

'HIHUUHG�WD[HV�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�UHVXOW�IURP�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LWHPV�

LBP Million
2014 2013

Balance at 1 January 42,275 36,519

Charge for the year 64,438 53,544

106,713 90,063

Less taxes paid:

  Current year tax liability* (27,380) (24,522)

  Prior years tax liabilities (29,114) (23,266)

(56,494) (47,788)

Balance at 31 December (note 36 (a)) 50,219 42,275

2014
LBP Million

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

)DLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� - 3,369

Carried forward taxable losses of a subsidiary 7,583 -

7,583 3,369

2013
LBP Million

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

)DLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 925 2,748

Carried forward taxable losses of a subsidiary 14,361 -

15,286 2,748

�
��5HSUHVHQWV�WD[HV�SDLG�RQ�LQWHUHVW�UHFHLYHG�IURP�WUHDVXU\�ELOOV�DQG�FHQWUDO�EDQNVő�FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

%DVLF�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�WKH�QHW�SURŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS�E\�WKH�
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

'LOXWHG�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�LV�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�WKH�QHW�SURŵW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�RUGLQDU\�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS��DIWHU�DGMXVWLQJ�
for interest on the convertible instruments net of tax) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would have been issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential 
shares into ordinary shares.

The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share calculation:

LBP Million
2014 2013

1HW�SURŵW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�SDUHQW� 252,792 224,683

(Less): proposed dividends to preferred shares (48,480) (48,480)

1HW�SURŵW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�SDUHQW 204,312 176,203

Basic earnings per share in LBP 363.21 313.68

LBP Million
2014 2013

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year (*) 562,510,901 561,731,039

(*) The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted for the computation of basic earnings per share takes into account the 

weighted average number of treasury shares, excluding treasury shares held against other equity instruments (note 43).
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DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table shows the income and share data used in the diluted earnings per share calculation:

LBP Million
2014 2013

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share  562,510,901 561,731,039

Effect of dilution:

Convertible subordinated debt 117,200,000 117,200,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 679,710,901 678,931,039

LBP Million
2014 2013

1HW�SURŵW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�SDUHQW 204,312 176,203

Interest on convertible debt 31,347 30,747

Less: income tax (4,702) (4,612)

1HW�SURŵW�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�HTXLW\�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�SDUHQW�DGMXVWHG�IRU�WKH�HIIHFW�RI�FRQYHUWLEOH�
debt

230,957 202,338

Diluted earnings per share in LBP 339.79 298.02

There were no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of the 
FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�FRQVROLGDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�UHTXLUH�WKH�UHVWDWHPHQW�RI�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�
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19. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Cash on hand 228,866 273,430

Balances with the Central Bank of Lebanon:

  Current accounts 637,817 578,304

  Time deposits 5,710,490 4,461,128

6,348,307 5,039,432

Balances with central banks in other countries:

  Current accounts 406,648 428,564

   Time deposits 15,490 23,000

422,138 451,564

Accrued interest receivable 49,474 45,504

7,048,785 5,809,930

OBLIGATORY RESERVES:

Ř� In accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon’s rules and regulations, banks operating in Lebanon are required to deposit 
with the Central Bank of Lebanon an obligatory reserve calculated on the basis of 25% of sight commitments and 15% of term 
commitments denominated in Lebanese Pounds. This is not applicable for investment banks, which are exempt from obligatory 
reserve requirements on commitments denominated in Lebanese Pounds. Additionally, all banks operating in Lebanon are required 
to deposit with the Central Bank of Lebanon interest-bearing placements representing 15% of total deposits in foreign currencies 
regardless of nature. Obligatory reserve requirements for banks operating in Lebanon and the related covering time deposits and 
current accounts amounted to LBP 2,476,029 million and LBP 2,557,673  million respectively as at 31 December 2014 (2013: LBP 
2,349,275 million and LBP 2,390,356 million respectively).

Ř� Subsidiary banks and branches operating in foreign countries are also subject to obligatory reserve requirements determined 
based on the banking rules and regulations of the countries in which they operate. As of 31 December 2014, obligatory reserve 
requirements for banks operating in foreign countries and the related covering time deposits, current accounts and cash on hand 
amounted to LBP 102,090 million (2013: LBP 119,680 million).
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20. DUE FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Banks

  Current accounts 1,506,564 987,038

  Time deposits 1,385,453 2,310,245

  Accrued interest receivable 834 917

  Doubtful bank accounts 2,038 2,377

  Provision for doubtful bank accounts (2,038) (2,377)

2,892,851 3,298,200

Financial institutions

  Current accounts 9,982 52,243

  Cash margins - 710

9,982 52,953

Registered exchange companies:

  Current accounts 8,027 665

  Doubtful exchange companies accounts 1,922 2,259

  Provision for doubtful exchange companies accounts (1,922) (2,259)

8,027 665

Brokerage companies

  Current accounts 2,419 1,496

2,913,279 3,353,314

2014 2013

LBP Million
Banks

Registered 
exchange 

companies Total Banks

Registered 
exchange 

companies Total

Balance at 1 January 2,377 2,259 4,636 3,193 2,259 5,452

Write-back (note 14) (109) (337) (446) (897) - (897)

Exchange difference (230) - (230) 81 - 81

Balance at 31 December 2,038 1,922 3,960 2,377 2,259 4,636

DOUBTFUL BANKS AND REGISTERED EXCHANGE COMPANIES

Following is the movement in the provisions for doubtful banks and registered exchange companies during the year:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. LOANS TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND REVERSE REPURCHASE 
AGREEMENTS

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS GIVEN AS COLLATERAL

LBP Million
2014 2013

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 359,000 583,163

Accrued interest receivable 993 2,395

359,993 585,558

Discounted acceptances 34,890 31,286

Interest received in advance (1,171) (1,978)

33,719 29,308

393,712 614,866

LBP Million
2014 2013

Treasury bills mortgaged in favor of the Central Bank of Lebanon, 
at amortized cost

6,915 6,915

Accrued interest receivable  90 90

7,005 7,005

The balance represents treasury bills pledged as collateral for loans obtained from the Central Bank of Lebanon during 2010 (note 32).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VKRZV�WKH�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�GHULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��UHFRUGHG�DV�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKHLU�QRWLRQDO�
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis 
upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at 
the year-end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit risk.
 
&UHGLW�ULVN�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�GHULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DULVHV�IURP�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IRU�D�FRXQWHUSDUW\�WR�GHIDXOW�RQ�LWV�FRQWUDFWXDO�
obligations and is limited to the positive market value of instruments that are favorable to the Group.

FORWARDS

)RUZDUGV�DUH�FRQWUDFWXDO�DJUHHPHQWV�WR�EX\�RU�VHOO�D�VSHFLŵHG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�DW�D�VSHFLŵF�SULFH�DQG�GDWH�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��)RUZDUGV�
are customized contracts transacted in the over-the-counter market. 

SWAPS

6ZDSV�DUH�FRQWUDFWXDO�DJUHHPHQWV�EHWZHHQ�WZR�SDUWLHV�WR�H[FKDQJH�VWUHDPV�RI�SD\PHQWV�RYHU�WLPH�EDVHG�RQ�VSHFLŵHG�QRWLRQDO�
DPRXQWV��LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�D�VSHFLŵHG�XQGHUO\LQJ�LQGH[�VXFK�DV�DQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH��IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�UDWH��RU�HTXLW\�LQGH[��

,Q�D�FXUUHQF\�VZDS��WKH�*URXS�SD\V�D�VSHFLŵHG�DPRXQW�LQ�RQH�FXUUHQF\�DQG�UHFHLYHV�D�VSHFLŵHG�DPRXQW�LQ�DQRWKHU�FXUUHQF\��&XUUHQF\�
swaps are mostly gross-settled. 

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD OR ISSUED FOR TRADING PURPOSES

Most of the Group’s derivative trading activities relate to deals with customers that are normally offset by transactions with other 
FRXQWHUSDUWLHV��$OVR�LQFOXGHG�XQGHU�WKLV�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�DUH�DQ\�GHULYDWLYHV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�IRU�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SXUSRVHV�WKDW�GR�QRW�PHHW�
the hedge accounting criteria.

2014 2013

LBP Million
Assets Liabilities Notional Assets Liabilities Notional 

Held for trading

Currency swaps 167 155 315,869 1,684 1,673 308,670

Forward foreign exchange contracts 6,548 5,272 304,771 2,140 1,390 154,549

6,715  5,427  620,640  3,824  3,063  463,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25. NET LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AT AMORTIZED COST

LBP Million
2014 2013

Lebanese government bonds 113,672 104,979

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 3,190 329

Other debt securities 2,068 19,175

Quoted equity instruments 35,942 32,964

Other foreign government bonds 710 -

155,582 157,447

LBP Million
2014 2013

Commercial loans 5,173,799 4,942,009

Consumer loans 2,393,641 2,260,967

7,567,440 7,202,976

Less

Individual impairment allowances (222,680) (213,603)

Collective impairment allowances (148,135) (130,669)

Unrealized interest (97,462) (81,854)

7,099,163 6,776,850

%DG�ORDQV�DQG�UHODWHG�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�XQUHDOL]HG�LQWHUHVW�ZKLFK�IXOŵOO�FHUWDLQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�
accounts. The gross balance of these loans amounted to LBP 60,912 million as of 31 December 2014 (2013: LBP 59,817 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Movement of unrealized interest on substandard, doubtful, and bad loans during the year was as follows:

2014
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 81,565 289 81,854

Add (less)

Unrealized interest for the year 30,850 35 30,885

$PRXQWV�WUDQVIHUUHG�IURP�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ 114 - 114

Recoveries (note 14) (6,257) - (6,257)

Amounts written off (3,714) - (3,714)

Difference of exchange (5,341) (79)   (5,420)

Balance at 31 December 97,217 245 97,462

2013
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 70,963 385 71,348

Add (less)

Unrealized interest for the year 29,104 82 29,186

$PRXQWV�WUDQVIHUUHG�IURP�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ 4,125 - 4,125

Recoveries (note 14) (9,163) - (9,163)

Amounts written off (8,771) - (8,771)

Difference of exchange (4,693) (178) (4,871)

Balance at 31 December 81,565 289 81,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Movement of the individual impairment allowances during the year was as follows:

2014
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 168,202 45,401 213,603

Add (less)

- Charge for the year (note 14) 16,428 8,316 24,744

- Amounts written off (1,685) (42) (1,727)

- Recoveries (note 14) (18,951) (4,427) (23,378)

��7UDQVIHU�IURP�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�� 592 - 592

- Transfer from collective impairment allowances (108) 25,377 25,269

- Difference of exchange (15,185) (1,238) (16,423)

Balance at 31 December 149,293 73,387 222,680

Gross amount of loans individually 
determined to be impaired 312,251 105,382 417,633

2013
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 136,364 31,414 167,778

Add (less)

- Charge for the year (note 14) 70,670 16,987 87,657

- Amounts written off (5,203) (296) (5,499)

- Recoveries (note 14) (23,621) (1,945) (25,566)

��7UDQVIHU�IURP�RII�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ 2,588 120 2,708

- Transfer from collective impairment allowances 4,330 - 4,330

- Difference of exchange (16,926) (879) (17,805)

Balance at 31 December 168,202 45,401 213,603

Gross amount of loans individually 
determined to be impaired 304,077 54,443 358,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Movement of the collective impairment allowances during the year was as follows:

2014
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 98,413 32,256 130,669

Add (less)

- Charge for the year (note 14) 45,726 4,098 49,824

- Amounts written off (447) - (447)

- Recoveries (note 14) (1,750) - (1,750)

- Transfer to individual impairment allowances 108 (25,377) (25,269)

- Difference of exchange (4,772) (120) (4,892)

Balance at 31 December 137,278 10,857 148,135

2013
LBP Million

Commercial loans Consumer loans Total

Balance at 1 January 81,191 31,542 112,733

Add (less)

- Charge for the year (note 14) 26,536 904 27,440

- Transfer from commercial to consumer (795) 795 -

- Transfer to individual impairment allowances (4,330) - (4,330)

- Difference of exchange (4,189) (985) (5,174)

Balance at 31 December 98,413 32,256 130,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movement in the collective impairment allowances during the year was as follows:

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

LBP Million
2014 2013

Lebanese government bonds 5,673,700 5,185,252

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ 3,913,360 4,239,042

Other foreign government bonds 134,667 129,695

Other debt securities 539,966 649,266

10,261,693 10,203,255

Less: collective impairment allowances (1,574) (5,062)

10,260,119 10,198,193

2014
LBP Million

Other debt 
securities Total

Balance at 1 January 5,062 5,062

Write-back during the year (note 14) (4,000) (4,000)

Charge for the year (note 14) 513 513

Exchange difference (1) (1)

Balance at 31 December 1,574 1,574

2013
LBP Million

Other debt 
securities Total

Balance at 1 January 5,487 5,487

Write-back during the year (note 14) (1,419) (1,419)

Charge for the year (note 14) 1,000 1,000

Exchange difference (6) (6)

Balance at 31 December 5,062 5,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Quoted shares 50,986 43,405

Unquoted shares 47,732 43,490

98,718 86,895

2014 2013

LBP Million

Carrying 
amount

Cumulative 
fair value 
changes

Dividend 
income

Carrying 
amount

Cumulative 
fair value 
changes

Dividend 
income

Unquoted shares:

 Banque de l’Habitat S.A.L. 24,430 19,242 458 22,508 17,320 454

 Intra Investment Company S.A.L. 17,591 4,567 - 17,591 4,567 583

 Interbank Payment Network 
(IPN) S.A.L.

1,345 342 85 1,345 342 106

 Arab Trade Financing Program 2,118 626 - 1,492 - -

 Liquidity Management Fund Bank 1,431 - - - - -

 Others 817 368 - 554 105 1

Quoted shares:

 Jordan Ahli Bank 50,986 (29,428) 2,193 43,405 (37,009) -

98,718 (4,283) 2,736 86,895 (14,675) 1,144

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�GHWDLOV�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU�

Dividend income amounted to LBP 2,736 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: LBP 1,144 million) and resulted from 
equity instruments held at year-end (2013: the same).
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2014
LBP Million

Buildings
Motor

vehicles
Furniture and 

equipment Deposits
Advance

payments Total

Cost:

  At 1 January 2014 238,467 2,824 219,077 719 579 461,666

  Additions 10,015 145 12,633 1 1,040 23,834

  Transfers - - 70 3 (73) -

  Disposals - (157) (3,897) - - (4,054)

  Foreign exchange difference (5,288) (123) (4,094) (20) - (9,525)

  At 31 December 2014 243,194 2,689 223,789 703 1,546 471,921

Depreciation:

  At 1 January 2014 50,126 2,401 165,909 -   -   218,436

  Depreciation during the year 5,036 185 19,661 - - 24,882

  Related to disposals - (83) (3,809) - - (3,892)

  Foreign exchange difference (593) (113) (3,178) - - (3,884)

  At 31 December 2014 54,569 2,390 178,583 - - 235,542

Net carrying value:

  At 31 December 2014 188,625 299 45,206 703 1,546 236,379

28. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2013
LBP Million

Buildings
Motor

vehicles
Furniture and

equipment Deposits
Advance

payments Total

Cost:

  At 1 January 2013 246,383 3,512 209,667 686 3,535 463,783

  Additions 71 7 17,970 26 600 18,674

  Transfers 3,707 -   24 - (3,731) -

  Disposals -   (459) (1,082) - (13) (1,554)

  Foreign exchange difference (11,694) (236) (7,502) 7 188 (19,237)

  At 31 December 2013 238,467 2,824 219,077 719 579 461,666

Depreciation:

  At 1 January 2013 45,729 2,683 149,977 - - 198,389

  Depreciation during the year 5,278 234 21,706 -   -   27,218

  Related to disposals - (357) (981) - - (1,338)

  Foreign exchange difference (881) (159) (4,793) -   -   (5,833)

  At 31 December 2013 50,126 2,401 165,909 -   -   218,436

Net carrying value:

  At 31 December 2013 188,341 423 53,168 719 579 243,230

The cost of buildings at 31 December 2014 and 2013 includes the revaluation differences of properties valued during prior years in 
accordance with Law 282 dated 30 December 1993, and approved by the Central Committee of the Bank of Lebanon.

5HYDOXDWLRQ�GLIIHUHQFHV�RQ�SURSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�UHŶHFWHG�DV�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�RI�UHDO�HVWDWH�LQ�HTXLW\�DPRXQWHG�WR�/%3�������
milion as at 31 December 2014 (2013: the same) (note 44).
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Advance payments received in connection with future sale transactions for the above assets amounted to LBP 2,220 million as of 31 
December 2014 (2013: LBP 1,246 million) (note 36).

29. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

30. ASSETS OBTAINED IN SETTLEMENT OF DEBT

LBP Million
2014 2013

Cost:

  At 1 January and 31 December 2,303 2,303

Accumulated amortization:

  At 1 January 1,492 1,333

  Amortization expense for the year 159 159

  At 31 December 1,651 1,492

Net carrying value:

  At 31 December 652 811

LBP Million
2014 2013

Cost:

  At 1 January 41,538 38,361

  Additions 2,563 5,687

  Disposals (2,265) (2,510)

  At 31 December 41,836 41,538

Impairment:

At 1 January and 31 December (5,159) (5,159)

Net carrying value:

  At 31 December 36,677 36,379
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a) Obligatory deposits consist of deposits at a percentage of the share capital of subsidiary banks that were blocked at 
incorporation as a guarantee with the authorities. These deposits shall be returned to the subsidiary banks without any interest 
upon liquidation of their activities.

b) Other assets are comprised of the following:

31. OTHER ASSETS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Obligatory deposits (a) 16,047 16,658

Other assets (b) 83,150 75,891

Deferred tax assets (note 17) 7,583 15,286

Doubtful debtor accounts                       37 37

106,817 107,872

Less: Allowance for credit losses (37) (37)

106,780 107,835

LBP Million
2014 2013

Prepaid rent 2,585 3,778

Printings and stationery 2,746 3,835

Credit card balances due from customers 14,947 13,071

Insurance premiums receivable 3,687 3,558

Reinsurers’ share of technical reserves of subsidiary insurance companies 32,918 27,709

Receivables from the National Social Security Fund 8,672 6,692

Other debit balances 17,595 17,248

83,150 75,891
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LOANS DUE TO THE CENTRAL BANK OF LEBANON:

Ř� During 2013, the Bank signed a credit agreement with the Central Bank of Lebanon based on the provisions of Decision No. 6116, 
dated 7 March 1996, relating to the facilities which can be granted by the Central Bank of Lebanon to banks. The loan amounted to 
LBP 53,725 million as of 31 December 2013) 2014: LBP 35,030�PLOOLRQ���7KH�%DQN�SOHGJHG�DV�FROODWHUDO�DJDLQVW�WKLV�ORDQ��FHUWLŵFDWHV�
of representation signed by the Bank’s customers. 

Ř� During 2010��WKH�%DQN�REWDLQHG�WKUHH�ORDQV�IURP�WKH�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ�WR�ŵQDQFH�FXVWRPHUV�DIIHFWHG�E\�-XO\�$XJXVW�2006 
war. These loans were originally granted in the amount of LBP 8,814 million, out of which LBP 1,895 matured during 2013. These 
loans are secured by the pledge of Lebanese treasury bills amounting to LBP 6,915�PLOOLRQ�LQFOXGHG�XQGHU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�JLYHQ�DV�
collateral as of 31 December 2013) 2014: LBP 6,915 million) (note 22).

32. DUE TO CENTRAL BANKS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Current accounts 2,905 1,058

Time deposits 6,370 6,736

Loans due to the Central Bank of Lebanon 60,640 41,945

Loan due to the Central Bank of Armenia 1,160 1,314

Accrued interest payable 71 449

71,146 51,502
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33. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Banks:

- Current accounts 140,805 187,405

- Time deposits 309,787 673,911

- Term loans 164,164 165,929

- Cash margins 80,099 129,748

- Accrued interest payable 4,170 5,370

699,025 1,162,363

Financial institutions:

- Current accounts 5,597 3,993

- Term loans 167,107 198,095

- Time deposits 29,871 25,879

- Accrued interest payable 1,323 1,959

203,898 229,926

Registered exchange companies: 

- Current accounts 1,272 108

- Time deposits 6,747 131

- Accrued interest payable 7 -

8,026 239

Brokerage institutions:

- Current accounts 224 34

911,173 1,392,562
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34. CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS AT AMORTIZED COST

35. DEBT ISSUED AND OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

LBP Million
2014 2013

Current accounts 3,264,135 3,353,030

Term deposits 18,986,964 17,458,400

Cash margins 1,004,709 1,044,999

Accrued interest payable 121,981 113,756

23,377,789 21,970,185

Maturity Interest rate
%

2014
LBP Million

2013
LBP Million

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�

,VVXH������Ŏ�6HFRQG�6HULHV 31/03/2014 7.25 - 60,978

Accrued interest payable - - - 12

60,990

Bonds (*)

Issue 2011 24/06/2021 7.00 444,771 444,884

Accrued interest payable 616 615

445,387 445,499

445,387 506,489

Customers’ deposits include coded deposit accounts amounting to LBP 31,106 million as  of 31 December 2014 (2013: LBP 
35,696 million).

(*) The Bank has undertaken not to use any of the proceeds of the issue in Sudan, Syria or the Democratic Republic of the Congo. The 

Bank shall pay interest on the bonds without deduction or withholding for taxes. The bonds are redeemable, in whole or in part, at the 

RSWLRQ�RI�WKH�%DQN�DW�DQ\�WLPH�DIWHU�WKH�ŵUVW�DQQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�LVVXH�GDWH��LQ�WKH�HYHQW�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�/HEDQHVH�WD[�ODZ�WKDW�ZLOO�UHVXOW�
in taxes on interest on the bonds in excess of the current applicable tax rate.
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36. OTHER LIABILITIES

LBP Million
2014 2013

Accrued expenses 36,854 40,179

Fixed-asset suppliers 674 2,637

Unearned commission and interest 5,531 6,283

Cash margins related to companies under establishment 1,653 1,854

Insurance premiums received in advance 2,735 2,760

Payables to the National Social Security Fund 1,989 1,939

Advance payments linked to assets obtained in settlement of debt (note 30) 2,220 1,246

Current tax liability (a) 63,996 54,142

Deferred tax liability (note 17) 3,369 2,748

Bankers’ checks - 27,135

Put options on non-controlling interests (note 6) 22,425 25,995

Other creditors 22,457 28,786

163,903 195,704

LBP Million
2014 2013

Income tax due (note 17) 50,219 42,275

Withholding tax on salaries  2,026 2,132

Withholding tax on interest earned by customers  8,224 7,121

Value added tax 170 386

Other taxes 3,357 2,228

63,996 54,142

(a) Current tax liability
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�D��(PSOR\HHVő�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV
7KH�%DQN�KDV�WZR�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SODQV�FRYHULQJ�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV��7KH�ŵUVW�UHTXLUHV�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�EH�PDGH�WR�WKH�
1DWLRQDO�6RFLDO�6HFXULW\�)XQG��7KH�HQWLWOHPHQW�WR�DQG�OHYHO�RI�WKHVH�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV�SURYLGHG�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKH�HPSOR\HHVő�
length of service, the employees’ salaries, contributions paid to the National Social Security Fund, and other requirements outlined in 
WKH�/HEDQHVH�/DERU�/DZ��8QGHU�WKH�VHFRQG�SODQ��QR�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�PDGH��KRZHYHU�D�ŵ[HG�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�OXPS�VXP�
DPRXQW�VKRXOG�EH�SDLG�IRU�ORQJ�VHUYLFH�HPSOR\HHV��7KH�HQWLWOHPHQW�WR�DQG�OHYHO�RI�WKHVH�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV�SURYLGHG�GHSHQGV�
on the employees’ length of service, the employees’ salaries, and other requirements outlined in the Workers’ Collective Agreement. 
(QG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV�IRU�HPSOR\HHV�DW�IRUHLJQ�EUDQFKHV�DQG�VXEVLGLDULHV�DUH�DFFUXHG�IRU�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�
of the respective countries in which the branches and subsidiaries are located.

0RYHPHQW�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HHVő�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�

37. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

LBP Million
2014 2013

Technical reserves of insurance subsidiaries 90,074 84,916

(PSOR\HHVő�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV��D� 46,320 40,606

Other provisions (b) 9,035 12,853

145,429 138,375

LBP Million
2014 2013

Balance at 1 January 40,606 38,286

Costs charged to the income statement (note 15):

Service costs 5,324 3,574

Past service costs - 1,976

Net interest 3,222 3,254

8,546 8,804

Re-measurement (gains) losses in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial changes arising from changes in economic assumptions - 420

Experience adjustments (977) (3,161)

(977) (2,741)

(QG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵWV�SDLG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU (1,816) (3,748)

Foreign exchange (39) 5

Balance at 31 December 46,320 40,606
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2014 2013

Economic assumptions

Discount rate 8.5% 8.5%

Future salary increase 5.5% 5.5%

Future expected return on contributions 5.0% 5.0%

Bonus Last 2 years average Last 2 years average

as a % of basic as a % of basic

Demographic assumptions

Retirement age
Earliest of 64 or completion 

of 20 contribution years
Earliest of 64 or completion of 

20 contribution years

Mortality rate None None

Turnover rate 2.0% 2.0%

Discount rate Future salary increase
Future expected return 

on contributions

LBP Million
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

,PSDFW�RQ�QHW�GHŵQHG�
EHQHŵW�REOLJDWLRQV

2014 (1,421) 1,531 2,763 (2,611) (1,195) 1,154

2013 (1,390) 1,501 2,663 (2,514) (1,127) 1,087

'HŵQHG�EHQHŵW�SODQV�LQ�/HEDQRQ�FRQVWLWXWH�PRUH�WKDQ�����RI�WKH�*URXSőV�UHWLUHPHQW�REOLJDWLRQV��7KH�SULQFLSDO�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�LQ�
GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�HQG�RI�VHUYLFH�EHQHŵW�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKHVH�SODQV�DUH�VKRZQ�EHORZ�

7KH�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VHV�DERYH�KDYH�EHHQ�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�D�PHWKRG�WKDW�H[WUDSRODWHV�WKH�LPSDFW�RQ�QHW�GHŵQHG�EHQHŵW�
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

$�TXDQWLWDWLYH�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�DQ�LQFUHDVH�GHFUHDVH�RI����EDVLV�SRLQWV�LQ�WKH�VLJQLŵFDQW�DVVXPSWLRQV�DV�DW����'HFHPEHU�
2014 is shown as below:
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(b) Other provisions
Movement in other provisions during the year was as follows:

2Q����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�%DQN�VLJQHG�D�86'�����PLOOLRQ�VXERUGLQDWHG�ORDQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�DQ�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQ��
whereby the latter acted as an issuer of USD 300 million subordinated notes convertible into Byblos Bank S.A.L. shares or Global 
Depository Receipts (GDRs) according to the following terms:

Number of notes:  30,000

Note’s issue price:  USD 10,000

Note’s nominal value: USD 10,000

Date of issue:  21 December 2012

Maturity:   21 December 2022, subject to the earlier conversion of these notes, in  whole or in part, into Byblos Bank             
                                                   S.A.L. shares or GDRs at a price of USD 2.50 per share or USD 125 per GDR

Interest rate:  Contractual interest rate of 6.5% payable semi-annually

Rights of holders:  The noteholder has the right to convert all or a portion of the subordinated notes into Byblos Bank S.A.L. 
                                                   shares or GDRs at a conversion price of USD 2.50 per share or USD 125 per GDR.

LBP Million
2014 2013

At 1 January 12,853 10,338

Charge for the year (note 16) 645 4,190

Write-back during the year (note 13) (751) (145)

Writeoff during the year (2,641) -

Foreign exchange (1,071) (1,530)

At 31 December 9,035 12,853

38. SUBORDINATED DEBT

LBP Million
2014 2013

Nominal value 441,520 441,697

Unamortized discount (27,022) (29,405)

Accrued interest payable 82 76

414,580 412,368
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LBP Million
2014

Nominal value of convertible bonds 441,520

Equity component (31,618)

Liability component 409,902

The convertible subordinated loan (net of subordinated notes held by a consolidated subsidiary) were recorded at issuance as follows:

The equity component of the convertible subordinated loan is recorded in equity under “non-distributable reserves” (note 40).

The capital of the Bank is divided into 569,515,040 shares of LBP 1,210 each fully paid (2013: the same).

39. SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013

No. of 
shares

Share 
capital

LBP Million

Share 
premium

LBP Million
No. of 
shares

Share 
capital

LBP Million

Share
premium

LBP Million

Common shares 565,515,040 684,273 229,014 565,515,040 684,273 229,014

565,515,040 684,273 229,014 565,515,040 684,273 229,014

Preferred shares

-  Series 2008 2,000,000 2,420 295,154 2,000,000 2,420 295,154

-  Series 2009 2,000,000 2,420 295,929 2,000,000 2,420 293,517

4,000,000 4,840 591,083 4,000,000 4,840 588,671

PREFERRED SHARES

i) Series 2008 Preferred Shares
On 15 August 2008, and based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 18 July 2008, the Bank issued Series 
2008 Preferred Shares according to the following terms:

Number of shares:  2,000,000

Share’s issue price: USD 100

Share’s nominal value: LBP 1,200

Issue premium:  USD (000) 195,790 (equivalent to LBP 295,154 million) calculated in USD as the difference between the 
                                                   total issue of USD (000) 200,000 and the total par value of the issue amounting to LBP 2,400 million and 
                                                   after deducting issuance commission for the issue amounting to USD (000) 2,618.
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%HQHŵWV��� � 1RQ�FXPXODWLYH�DQQXDO�GLYLGHQGV�RI�86'������SHU�VKDUH��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�QRQ�FRQVROLGDWHG��
� � � GLVWULEXWDEOH�QHW�SURŵWV��

Repurchase right:  Redeemable (at a date subsequent to the approval of 2013 accounts by the general assembly) at the   
   Bank’s option at the issue price plus any declared but unpaid distributions for all the years preceding the  
   year of the call, with the condition that at least 25% of the original number of the preferred shares are   
   called each time.

In 2009, the par value of Series 2008 Preferred Shares was increased from LBP 1,200 to LBP 1,210.

ii) Series 2009 Preferred Shares
On 4 September 2009, and based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 1 August 2009, the Bank issued 
Series 2009 Preferred Shares according to the following terms: 

Number of shares:  2,000,000

Share’s issue price: USD 96

Share’s nominal value: LBP 1,210

Issue premium:  USD (000) 188,313 (equivalent to LBP 283,881 million) calculated in USD as the difference between the 
                                                   total issue of USD (000) 192,000 and the total par value of the issue amounting to LBP 2,420 million and 
                                                   after deducting issuance commissions of USD (000) 2,082.

%HQHŵWV��� � 1RQ�FXPXODWLYH�DQQXDO�GLYLGHQGV�RI�86'������SHU�VKDUH��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�QRQ�FRQVROLGDWHG�
���������������������������������������������������GLVWULEXWDEOH�QHW�SURŵWV�

Repurchase right:                  Redeemable (at a date subsequent to the approval of 2014 accounts by the general assembly) at the 
                                                   Bank’s option at USD 100 plus any declared but unpaid distributions for all the years preceding the year 
                                                   of the call, with the condition that at least 25% of the original number of the preferred shares are called 
                                                   each time.

During 2014, the Bank transferred LBP 2,412 million from retained earnings to the share premium on Series 2009 Preferred Shares 
(2013: LBP 2,412 million) for the difference between the redemption price and the issue price.

LBP Million
Stock exchange 2014 2013

Ordinary shares Beirut 502,644,196 501,304,190

Global Depository Receipts (*) 
London SEAQ 

and Beirut
1,257,417 1,284,217

Preferred shares Beirut 4,000,000 4,000,000

LISTING OF SHARES

As of 31 December the Bank’s shares were listed as follows:

(*) Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) can be issued at a ratio of 50 common shares per one GDR.
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40. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

LBP Million

Legal
reserve

Reserves
for capital

increase

Equity 
component of 

convertible
subordinated

debt

Reserve for 
general 

banking
risks

Other
reserves Total

Balance at 1 January 2014 225,923 54,659 31,618 209,994 150,124 672,318

Appropriation from retained earnings 21,443 7,334 - 34,131 13,856 76,764

Net loss on sale of treasury shares - (203) - - - (203)

Balance at 31 December 2014 247,366 61,790 31,618 244,125 163,980 748,879

Balance at 1 January 2013 200,820 49,645 31,618 179,994 106,068 568,145

Appropriation from retained earnings 25,103 5,289 - 30,000 44,056 104,448

Net loss on sale of treasury shares - (275) - - - (275)

Balance at 31 December 2013 225,923 54,659 31,618 209,994 150,124 672,318

LEGAL RESERVE

According to the Lebanese Code of Commerce and to the Code of Money and Credit, the Bank is required to transfer 10% of its 
DQQXDO�QHW�SURŵW�WR�D�OHJDO�UHVHUYH��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��VXEVLGLDULHV�DQG�EUDQFKHV�DUH�DOVR�VXEMHFW�WR�OHJDO�UHVHUYH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�
rules and regulations of the countries in which they operate. This reserve cannot be distributed as dividends.

'XULQJ�������WKH�*URXS�DSSURSULDWHG�/%3��������PLOOLRQ�IURP������SURŵWV�WR�WKH�OHJDO�UHVHUYH��������/%3��������PLOOLRQ��

RESERVES FOR CAPITAL INCREASE

This represents regulatory reserves constituted in accordance with circulars issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and the Banking 
Control Commission. These reserves cannot be distributed as dividends and comprise the following:

LBP Million
2014 2013

Reserve equivalent to gain on sale of assets acquired in settlement of debt 29,595 23,971

Reserve equivalent to provisions recovered 9,737 9,737

Reserve against assets obtained in settlement of debt 12,833 11,123

5HVHUYH�DJDLQVW�UHDOL]HG�JDLQ�IURP�OLTXLGDWLRQ�RI�ŵ[HG�SRVLWLRQ� 8,870 8,870

Others 755 958

61,790 54,659
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41. DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

RESERVE FOR GENERAL BANKING RISKS

$FFRUGLQJ�WR�&HQWUDO�%DQN�RI�/HEDQRQ�UHJXODWLRQV��EDQNV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�DSSURSULDWH�IURP�WKHLU�DQQXDO�QHW�SURŵW�D�PLQLPXP�RI�
�����DQG�D�PD[LPXP�RI������RI�WRWDO�ULVN�ZHLJKWHG�DVVHWV�DQG�RII�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�LWHPV�EDVHG�RQ�UDWHV�VSHFLŵHG�E\�
the Central Bank of Lebanon to cover general banking risks. The consolidated ratio should not be less than 1.25% of these risks at 
the end of year ten (2017) and 2% at the end of year twenty (2027). This reserve cannot be distributed as dividends. 

7KH�DSSURSULDWLRQ�LQ������IURP�WKH�SURŵWV�RI�WKH�\HDU������DPRXQWHG�WR�/%3��������PLOOLRQ��������/%3��������PLOOLRQ��

OTHER RESERVES

Other reserves consist of the following:

Ř� During 2013, the Group transferred an amount of LBP 31,077 million from retained earnings to other reserves related to the 
subordinated debt. 

Ř� Non-distributable reserves of subsidiaries appropriated from retained earnings as required by the laws applicable in the countries 
in which they operate. During 2014, the Group transferred an amount of LBP 13,856 million from retained earnings to other 
reserves in this respect (2013: LBP 12,979 million).

As of 31 December 2014, “Other reserves” include reserves of LBP 87,932 million maintained by the subsidiary Byblos Bank Europe to 
meet several legal limits and requirements (2013: LBP 82,534 million).

LBP Million
2014 2013

General reserves 90,521 91,831

Other capital reserves 5,422 5,422

95,943 97,253
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GENERAL RESERVES 

The Group appropriates general reserves from its retained earnings to strengthen its equity. The movement in general reserves during 
the year was as follows:

OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES

LBP Million
2014 2013

At 1 January 91,831 94,237

Appropriation to/from retained earnings (2,309) 3,346

Impact from derecognition of non-controlling interests (note 6) 999 (5,752)

At 31 December 90,521 91,831

LBP Million
2014 2013

Premium on capital increase of Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C.                         1,026 1,026

Premium on capital increase of Byblos Bank Africa                                       4,396 4,396

5,422 5,422

42. OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 

On 12 July 2010, Byblos Bank S.A.L. issued three-year notes (3 Years Byblos Bank Note) for a total amount of USD 9,936,000 
(equivalent to LBP 14,979 million) according to the following terms:

Number of notes:  46

Principal of one note: USD 216,000

Issuing price:  100%

Total issue:  USD 9,936,000 (equivalent to LBP 14,979 million)

Annual return:  3% per year payable on a monthly basis plus any dividend paid on Byblos Bank common shares during the 
                                                   period preceding the payments of the notes on the basis of 120,000 shares per note.

Maturity:   12 July 2013  

Prepayment:                            The Bank has the right to redeem the notes before maturity on an annual basis, but only within 30 days 
                                                   following the Annual Ordinary General Assembly of Shareholders. In such case, the Bank shall pay in 
                                                   addition to the principal amount of the Note and the return, a bonus of 6% on the principal of the notes.

Settlement:                              At maturity, and at its discretion, the Bank shall either settle 120,000 Byblos Bank common shares per note 
                                                   (calculated on the basis of a strike price of USD 1.80 per share) or the principal amount of the note in 
                                                   addition to a bonus of 6%.

At maturity, on 12 July 2013, the Bank settled the notes through a transfer of 5,520,000 treasury common shares (note 43).
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43. TREASURY SHARES

0RYHPHQW�RI�WUHDVXU\�VKDUHV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDUV�2014 and 2013 was as follows:

Common shares Global Depository Receipts

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

No. of 
shares

Amount
USD(000)

No. of 
shares

Amount
USD(000)

At 1 January 2014 3,022,602 5,418 14,812 1,252

Acquisitions of treasury shares 88,940 143 2,061 155

Sales of treasury shares (1,064,116) (1,909) (9,600) (797)

At 31 December 2014 2,047,426 3,652 7,273 610

Total treasury shares in LBP million 6,425

Common shares Global Depository Receipts

Year ended 31 December 2013

No. of 
shares

Amount
USD(000)

No. of 
shares

Amount
USD(000)

At 1 January 2013 8,609,221 15,633 13,407 1,151

Acquisitions of treasury shares 253,919 386 1,405 101

Sales of treasury shares (320,538) (573) - -

Settlement of other equity instruments (note 42) (5,520,000) (10,028) - -

At 31 December 2013 3,022,602 5,418 14,812 1,252

Total treasury shares in LBP million 10,054
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44. REVALUATION RESERVE OF REAL ESTATE

46. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

45. CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LBP Million
2014 2013

Revaluation reserve accepted in Tier II capital 1,978 1,978

Revaluation reserve not accepted in Tier II capital 3,711 3,711

5,689 5,689

LBP Million
2014 2013

Cash and balances with central banks 2,414,186 2,144,861

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� 2,798,622 3,276,123

5,212,808 5,420,984

/HVV��'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV (551,625) (956,992)

Less: Due to central banks (9,940) (8,207)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 4,651,243 4,455,785

LBP Million
2014 2013

At 1 January (16,644) (23,634)

Net changes in fair values during the year 10,392 8,222

Net changes in deferred taxes (1,546) (1,232)

Difference on exchange 265 -

Balance at 31 December (7,533) (16,644)

0RYHPHQW�RI�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�
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LBP Million
2014 2013

Loans and advances 28,033 23,732

Deposits 312,813 264,477

Debt issued and other borrowed funds 2,025 2,312

Subordinated debt 19,672 19,672

Guarantees received 15,627 11,411

Guarantees given 8 8

Commitments (including acceptances) 6,756 8,068

LBP Million
2014 2013

Interest income on loans 1,319 1,121

Interest expense on deposits 13,175 11,334

Interest expense on debt issued and other borrowed funds 142 162

Interest expense on subordinated debt 1,265 1,265

Rent expense 544 544

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to 
FRQWURO�WKH�RWKHU�SDUW\�RU�H[HUFLVH�VLJQLŵFDQW�LQŶXHQFH�RYHU�WKH�
RWKHU�SDUW\�LQ�PDNLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�RU�RSHUDWLRQDO�GHFLVLRQV��RU�RQH�
RWKHU�SDUW\�FRQWUROV�ERWK��7KH�GHŵQLWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�VXEVLGLDULHV��
key management personnel and their close family members, as 
well as entities controlled or jointly controlled by them.

A list of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is shown in note 4. 
Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries meet the 
GHŵQLWLRQ�RI�UHODWHG�SDUW\�WUDQVDFWLRQV��+RZHYHU��ZKHUH�WKHVH�
are eliminated on consolidation, they are not disclosed in the 
*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

.H\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�DUH�GHŵQHG�DV�WKRVH�SHUVRQV�
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, 
LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�WKH�2IŵFHUV�RI�WKH�*URXS��

Loans to related parties (a) were made in the ordinary course 
of business; (b) were made on substantially the same terms, 
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the 
same time for comparable transactions with others; and (c) did 
not involve more than a normal risk of collectability or present 
other unfavorable features.

5HODWHG�SDUW\�EDODQFHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�*URXSőV�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DUH�DV�IROORZV�DV�RI�31 December:

Related party transactions included in the Group’s income statement are as follows for the years ended 31 December:
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In addition to the above:

Ř� 'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�LQFOXGHV�ORDQV�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�/%3��������PLOOLRQ�DV�RI����'HFHPEHU�
2014 (2013: LBP 69,357 million) on which interest of LBP 2,139 million (2013: LBP 2,158 million) was paid.

Ř� 'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�LQFOXGHV�EDODQFHV�ZLWK�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�/%3��������PLOOLRQ�DV�RI����
December 2014 (2013: nil)

Ř� /RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHYHUVH�UHSXUFKDVH�DJUHHPHQWV�LQFOXGH�ORDQV�WR�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�/%3�
9,986 million as of 31 December 2014 (2013: nil) on which interest and commissions of LBP 145 million (2013: nil) were received.

COMPENSATION OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP

LBP Million
2014 2013

6KRUW�WHUP�EHQHŵWV1 17,407 11,945

2014
LBP Million

 Banks Customers Total

Guarantees and contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees - 185,758 185,758

Other guarantees 356,209 993,718 1,349,927

356,209 1,179,476 1,535,685

Commitments

Documentary credits 328,749 236,000 564,749

Loan commitments - 2,354,802 2,354,802

328,749 2,590,802 2,919,551

1�6KRUW�WHUP�EHQHŵWV�FRPSULVH�VDODULHV��ERQXVHV��SURŵW�VKDULQJ��DWWHQGDQFH�IHHV�DQG�RWKHU�VKRUW�WHUP�EHQHŵWV�WR�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO�

48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS AND LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

CREDIT-RELATED COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

7R�PHHW�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�QHHGV�RI�FXVWRPHUV��WKH�*URXS�HQWHUV�LQWR�YDULRXV�FRPPLWPHQWV��JXDUDQWHHV�DQG�RWKHU�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV��
ZKLFK�DUH�PDLQO\�FUHGLW�UHODWHG�LQVWUXPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�DQG�RWKHU�JXDUDQWHHV�DQG�FRPPLWPHQWV�WR�H[WHQG�FUHGLW��(YHQ�WKRXJK�
WKHVH�REOLJDWLRQV�PD\�QRW�EH�UHFRJQL]HG�RQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��WKH\�GR�FRQWDLQ�FUHGLW�ULVN�DQG�DUH�WKHUHIRUH�SDUW�RI�
the overall risk of the Group. The table below discloses the nominal principal amounts of credit-related commitments and contingent 
liabilities. Nominal principal amounts represent the amount at risk should the contracts be fully drawn upon and clients default. As a 
VLJQLŵFDQW�SRUWLRQ�RI�JXDUDQWHHV�DQG�FRPPLWPHQWV�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�H[SLUH�ZLWKRXW�EHLQJ�ZLWKGUDZQ��WKH�WRWDO�RI�WKH�QRPLQDO�SULQFLSDO�
amount is not indicative of future liquidity requirements. 
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2013
LBP Million

Banks Customers Total

Guarantees and contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees - 172,986 172,986

Other guarantees 413,441 1,065,181 1,478,622

413,441 1,238,167 1,651,608

Commitments

Documentary credits 442,552 342,448 785,000

Loan commitments - 2,080,962 2,080,962

442,552 2,423,410 2,865,962

GUARANTEES 

Guarantees are given as security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. The main types of guarantees provided are: 

Ř� )LQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHHV�JLYHQ�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�FXVWRPHUV�WR�VHFXUH�ORDQV��RYHUGUDIWV��DQG�RWKHU�EDQNLQJ�
facilities; and

Ř� Other guarantees provided include mainly performance guarantees, advance payment guarantees and tender guarantees.

DOCUMENTARY CREDITS

Documentary credits commit the Group to make payments to third parties, on production of documents, which are usually reimbursed 
immediately by customers. 

LOAN COMMITMENTS

/RDQ�FRPPLWPHQWV�DUH�GHŵQHG�DPRXQWV��XQXWLOL]HG�FUHGLW�OLQHV�RU�XQGUDZQ�SRUWLRQV�RI�FUHGLW�OLQHV��DJDLQVW�ZKLFK�FOLHQWV�FDQ�ERUURZ�
PRQH\�XQGHU�GHŵQHG�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�

LEGAL CLAIMS 

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Group has formal controls 
and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, 
WKH�*URXS�PDNHV�DGMXVWPHQWV�WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�DQ\�DGYHUVH�HIIHFWV�ZKLFK�WKH�FODLPV�PD\�KDYH�RQ�LWV�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDQGLQJ��$W�\HDU�HQG��WKH�
Group had several unresolved legal claims. Based on advice from legal counsel, management believes that legal claims will not result 
LQ�DQ\�ŵQDQFLDO�ORVV�WR�WKH�*URXS�

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Operating leases – Group as lessee 
7KH�*URXS�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�FRPPHUFLDO�OHDVHV�RQ�SUHPLVHV��7KHVH�OHDVHV�KDYH�DQ�DYHUDJH�OLIH�RI�EHWZHHQ�ŵYH�DQG�WHQ�\HDUV��7KHUH�DUH�
no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

OTHER CONTINGENCIES  

7D[�OHJLVODWLRQ�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�YDU\LQJ�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�ZKHQ�EHLQJ�DSSOLHG�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�DFWLYLWLHV��)LVFDO�\HDUV�IURP�2012 to 
2014 remain open to review by the authorities.

During the past four years, Syria has witnessed a period of political and civil unrest together with adverse events which can affect the 
economic environment of future periods. As part of its collective provisioning process, management performed a stress test on the 
loan portfolio exposed to the Syrian market risks and, as a result, the necessary provisions were booked. The Group’s management 
continues to monitor its loan portfolio and evaluate the impact of these events on a regular basis.

ASSETS HELD IN CUSTODY AND UNDER ADMINISTRATION

&XVWRG\�LV�WKH�VDIHNHHSLQJ�DQG�VHUYLFLQJ�RI�VHFXULWLHV�DQG�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�FOLHQWV��$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�WKH�
SURYLVLRQ�RI�YDULRXV�VXSSRUW�IXQFWLRQV�DFWLYLWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�SRUWIROLRV�RI�VHFXULWLHV�DQG�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�
clients, which complements the custody business. 

LBP Million
2014 2013

Within one year 3,084 3,276

$IWHU�RQH�\HDU�EXW�QRW�PRUH�WKDQ�ŵYH�\HDUV 9,212 10,480

0RUH�WKDQ�ŵYH�\HDUV 11,257 12,545

23,553 26,301

LBP Million
2014 2013

Assets held in custody and under administration 3,196,496 3,216,525

49. ASSETS HELD IN CUSTODY AND UNDER ADMINISTRATION
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50. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 

7KH�IDLU�YDOXHV�LQ�WKLV�QRWH�DUH�VWDWHG�DW�D�VSHFLŵF�GDWH�DQG�PD\�
be different from the amounts which will actually be paid on the 
maturity or settlement dates of the instrument. In many cases, it 
would not be possible to realize immediately the estimated fair 
values given the size of the portfolios measured. Accordingly, 
these fair values do not represent the value of these instruments 
to the Group as a going concern.

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�D�
KLHUDUFK\�WKDW�UHŶHFWV�WKH�VLJQLŵFDQFH�RI�REVHUYDEOH�PDUNHW�
inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
GHŵQHG�EHORZ��

QUOTED MARKET PRICES – LEVEL 1

)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DV�/HYHO�1 if their value is 
observable in an active market. Such instruments are valued 
by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets 
or liabilities in active markets where the quoted price is readily 
available, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. An active market 

LV�RQH�LQ�ZKLFK�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RFFXU�ZLWK�VXIŵFLHQW�YROXPH�DQG�
frequency to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

VALUATION TECHNIQUE USING OBSERVABLE INPUTS – 
LEVEL 2
)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FODVVLŵHG�DV�/HYHO�2 have been valued 
XVLQJ�PRGHOV�ZKRVH�PRVW�VLJQLŵFDQW�LQSXWV�DUH�REVHUYDEOH�
in an active market. Such valuation techniques and models 
incorporate assumptions about factors observable in an active 
market, and which other market participants would use in their 
valuations, including interest rate yield curves, exchange rates, 
volatilities, and prepayment and default rates. 

VALUATION TECHNIQUE USING SIGNIFICANT 
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS – LEVEL 3

)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�DV�/HYHO�3 if their valuation 
LQFRUSRUDWHV�VLJQLŵFDQW�LQSXWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�EDVHG�RQ�REVHUYDEOH�
market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation input is 
considered observable if it can be directly observed from 
transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external 
evidence demonstrating an executable exit price. Unobservable 
input levels are generally determined based on observable 
inputs of a similar nature, historical observations, or other 
analytical techniques.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY OF THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE:

2014 Valuation techniques

Quoted market price Observable inputs Unobservable inputs

LBP Million
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV

  Currency swaps - 167 - 167

  Forward foreign exchange contracts - 6,548 - 6,548

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

  Lebanese government bonds 85,811 27,861 - 113,672

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�
  the Central Bank of Lebanon

- 3,190 - 3,190

  Other debt securities 2,068 - - 2,068

  Other foreign government bonds 710 - - 710

  Quoted equity instruments 35,942 - - 35,942

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

50,986 - 47,732 98,718

LIABILITIES

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�

  Currency swaps - 155 - 155

  Forward foreign exchange contracts - 5,272 - 5,272
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2013 Valuation techniques

Quoted market price Observable inputs Unobservable inputs

LBP Million
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV

  Currency swaps - 1,684 - 1,684

  Forward foreign exchange contracts - 2,140 - 2,140

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

  Lebanese government bonds 103,144 1,835 - 104,979

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
  Central Bank of Lebanon

- 329 - 329

  Other debt securities 19,175 - - 19,175

  Quoted equity instruments 32,964 - - 32,964

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 43,405 - 43,490 86,895

LIABILITIES

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�

  Currency swaps - 1,673 - 1,673

  Forward foreign exchange contracts - 1,390 - 1,390

There were no transfers between levels during 2014 (2013: the same).
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE USING A VALUATION TECHNIQUE WITH SIGNIFICANT OBSERVABLE  
INPUTS (LEVEL 2)

Derivatives
Derivative products are valued using a valuation technique with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation 
techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs, 
including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, and interest rate curves.

*RYHUQPHQW�ERQGV��FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�DQG�RWKHU�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV
7KH�*URXS�YDOXHV�WKHVH�XQTXRWHG�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV�XVLQJ�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ŶRZ�YDOXDWLRQ�PRGHOV�ZKHUH�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�
VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�HQWLUH�PHDVXUHPHQW�LV�REVHUYDEOH�LQ�DQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHW��7KHVH�LQSXWV�LQFOXGH�DVVXPSWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�FXUUHQW�UDWHV�RI�
interest, implied volatilities, credit spreads and broker statements. 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE USING A VALUATION TECHNIQUE WITH SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS (LEVEL 3)

(TXLW\�VKDUHV�RI�QRQ�OLVWHG�HQWLWLHV
7KH�*URXSőV�VWUDWHJLF�LQYHVWPHQWV�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�DQG�DUH�QRW�WUDGHG�
LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV��7KHVH�DUH�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�SULYDWH�FRPSDQLHV��IRU�ZKLFK�WKHUH�LV�QR�RU�RQO\�OLPLWHG�VXIŵFLHQW�UHFHQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�
GHWHUPLQH�IDLU�YDOXH��7KH�*URXS�GHWHUPLQHG�WKDW�FRVW�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHŶHFW�WKH�LQYHVWHHőV�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�UHVXOWV�VLQFH�LQLWLDO�
recognition represents the best estimate of fair value. 

RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS IN UNQUOTED EQUITY SHARES:

LBP Million
2014 2013

Balance at 1 January 43,490 36,994

Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income 4,242 6,496

47,732 43,490
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COMPARISON OF CARRYING AND FAIR VALUES FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT HELD AT FAIR VALUE:

The fair values included in the table below were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The fair valuation techniques and assumptions 
GHVFULEHG�EHORZ�UHODWH�RQO\�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��2WKHU�LQVWLWXWLRQV�PD\�
use different methods and assumptions for their fair value estimations, and therefore such fair value disclosures cannot necessarily be 
compared from one institution to another.

2014 2013

LBP Million

Fair 
value

Carrying 
value

Fair
 value

Carrying
value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 7,048,785 7,048,785 5,809,930 5,809,930

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� 2,913,279 2,913,279 3,353,314 3,353,314

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHYHUVH�
repurchase agreements

394,072 393,712 614,970 614,866

Financial assets given as collateral 7,048 7,005 7,097 7,005

Net loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 7,096,291 7,099,163 6,770,954 6,776,850

Net loans and advances to related parties at 
amortized cost

28,033 28,033 23,732 23,732

Financial assets at amortized cost

  Lebanese government bonds 5,714,885 5,673,700 5,204,674 5,185,252

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
  Central Bank of Lebanon

3,952,369 3,913,360 4,290,091 4,239,042

  Other foreign government bonds 140,834 134,667 132,762 129,695

  Other debt securities 553,230 538,392 666,459 644,204

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to central banks 71,146 71,146 51,502 51,502

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 911,175 911,173 1,392,457 1,392,562

Customers’ deposits at amortized cost 23,445,040 23,377,789 22,061,710 21,970,185

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost 318,235 312,813 268,115 264,477

Debt issued and other borrowed funds 449,909 445,387 512,295 506,489

Subordinated debt 414,580 414,580 412,368 412,368
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'HSRVLWV�ZLWK�EDQNV�DQG�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�WR�EDQNV
For the purpose of this disclosure there is minimal difference 
EHWZHHQ�IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�WKHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�
as they are short-term in nature or have interest rates that re-
price frequently. The fair value of deposits with longer maturities 
DUH�HVWLPDWHG�XVLQJ�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ŶRZV�DSSO\LQJ�PDUNHW�UDWHV�
for counterparties with similar credit quality.

*RYHUQPHQW�ERQGV��FHUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�DQG�RWKHU�
debt securities
The Group values these unquoted debt securities using 
GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ŶRZ�YDOXDWLRQ�PRGHOV�ZKHUH�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�
LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLŵFDQW�WR�WKH�HQWLUH�PHDVXUHPHQW�LV�REVHUYDEOH�
in an active market. These inputs include assumptions regarding 
current rates of interest, implied volatilities, credit spreads and 
broker statements. 

Loans and advances to customers
For the purpose of this disclosure, in many cases, the fair value 
disclosed approximates carrying value because these advances 

are short-term in nature or have interest rates that re-price 
frequently. The fair value of loans and advances to customers 
with long-term maturities is estimated using discounted cash 
ŶRZV�E\�DSSO\LQJ�FXUUHQW�UDWHV�IRU�QHZ�ORDQV�JUDQWHG�GXULQJ�
2014 with similar characteristics.

'HSRVLWV�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�FXVWRPHUV
In many cases, the fair value disclosed approximates carrying 
YDOXH�EHFDXVH�WKHVH�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�VKRUW�WHUP�LQ�QDWXUH�
or have interest rates that re-price frequently. The fair value for 
deposits with long-term maturities, such as time deposits, are 
HVWLPDWHG�XVLQJ�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ŶRZV��DSSO\LQJ�HLWKHU�PDUNHW�
rates or current rates for deposits of similar characteristics.

'HEW�LVVXHG�DQG�RWKHU�ERUURZHG�IXQGV�DQG�VXERUGLQDWHG�GHEW
)DLU�YDOXHV�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�XVLQJ�GLVFRXQWHG�FDVK�ŶRZ�YDOXDWLRQ�
models where the inputs used are estimated by comparison with 
quoted prices in an active market for similar instruments.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR WHICH FAIR VALUE IS DISCLOSED USING A VALUATION TECHNIQUE WITH SIGNIFICANT 
OBSERVABLE INPUTS (LEVEL 2) AND/OR SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS (LEVEL 3)
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Valuation techniques

2014 Quoted market price Observable inputs Unobservable inputs

LBP Million
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS FOR WHICH FAIR VALUES 
ARE DISCLOSED

Cash and balances with central banks 228,866 6,819,919 - 7,048,785

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

- 2,913,279 - 2,913,279

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

- 394,072 - 394,072

Financial assets given as collateral - 7,048 - 7,048

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

- - 7,096,291 7,096,291

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

- - 28,033 28,033

Financial assets at amortized cost:

  Lebanese government bonds 2,489,495 3,225,390 - 5,714,885

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH����
  Central Bank of Lebanon

7,920 3,944,449 - 3,952,369

  Other foreign government bonds 140,834 - - 140,834

  Other debt securities 553,230 - - 553,230

LIABILITIES FOR WHICH FAIR 
VALUES ARE DISCLOSED

Due to central banks - 71,146 - 71,146

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV - 911,175 - 911,175

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

- 23,445,040 - 23,445,040

Deposits from related parties at 
amortized cost

- 318,235 - 318,235

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- 449,909 - 449,909

Subordinated debt - 414,580 - 414,580
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Valuation techniques

2013 Quoted market price Observable inputs Unobservable inputs

LBP Million
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS FOR WHICH FAIR VALUES 
ARE DISCLOSED

Cash and balances with central banks 273,430 5,536,500 - 5,809,930

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

- 3,353,314 - 3,353,314

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

- 614,970 - 614,970

Financial assets given as collateral - 7,097 - 7,097

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

- - 6,770,954 6,770,954

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

- - 23,732 23,732

Financial assets at amortized cost:

  Lebanese government bonds 2,500,673 2,704,001 - 5,204,674

��&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH��
  Central Bank of Lebanon

227,837 4,062,254 - 4,290,091

  Other foreign government bonds 77,835 54,927 - 132,762

  Other debt securities 666,459 - - 666,459

LIABILITIES FOR WHICH FAIR VALUES 
ARE DISCLOSED

Due to central banks - 51,502 - 51,502

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV - 1,392,457 - 1,392,457

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

- 22,061,710 - 22,061,710

Deposits from related parties at 
amortized cost

- 268,115 - 268,115

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- 512,295 - 512,295

Subordinated debt - 412,368 - 412,368
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51.1. INTRODUCTION

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities, yet it is managed 
WKURXJK�D�SURFHVV�RI�RQJRLQJ�LGHQWLŵFDWLRQ��PHDVXUHPHQW�
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing 
SURŵWDELOLW\��DQG�HDFK�LQGLYLGXDO�ZLWKLQ�WKH�*URXS�LV�DFFRXQWDEOH�
for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The 
Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is 
also subject to various operational risks.

7KH�*URXSőV�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW�SURFHVV�LQYROYHV�LGHQWLŵFDWLRQ��
measurement, monitoring and controlling risks to ensure that: 
 
Ř� Individuals who take or manage risks clearly understand it;
Ř� The organization’s risk exposure is within the limits established 

by the Board of Directors (Board); 
Ř� Risk taking decisions are in line with the business strategy and 

objectives set by the Board of Directors;
Ř� The expected payoffs compensate for the risks taken;
Ř� Risk-taking decisions are explicit and clear; and
Ř� 6XIŵFLHQW�FDSLWDO�LV�DYDLODEOH�WR�DFW�DV�D�EXIIHU�IRU�ULVNV�WDNHQ��

The independent risk control process does not include business 
risks such as changes in the environment, technology and 
industry. The Group’s policy is to monitor those business risks 
through the Bank’s strategic planning process.

GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for establishing/
approving the Group’s strategic direction and approving the 
nature and levels of risk the Group is willing to take. The Board 
has established two committees to assist in carrying out 
its responsibilities:

Risk, Anti-Money Laundering and Compliance Committee 
(BRC): provides oversight of Senior Management’s activities 
in managing capital adequacy, credit, market, liquidity, 
operational, Anti-Money Laundering, compliance, reputational 
and other risks of the Group. The BRC also oversees ICAAP and 
approves risk policies. 

Audit Committee: monitors the Group’s accounting practices 
and external reporting, and reviews the audit reports covering 
the Group’s operations and takes appropriate actions/decisions.

The above Board Committees are composed of mostly 
independent/non-executive members satisfying the 
applicable best practice requirements. In addition, the Board 

delegates its day-to-day risk management activities to Senior 
Management, through the following diverse committees that 
have been established:

Executive Committee: acts under the supervision of the 
Chairman to ensure execution of all strategic directives 
stipulated by the Board and to propose new strategic projects 
and plans to the Board. Membership is assigned to the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman, the Head of the Group Consumer Banking 
Division, the Head of the Group Financial Markets and Financial 
Institutions Division, the Head of the Group Commercial Banking 
Division, and the Head of the Group Risk Management Division.

Central Credit Committee (CCC): is the highest credit authority 
in the Group after the Board. Its mission is to review and approve 
high-value amount credit proposals. The internal lending limit 
is set at 10% of capital, which requires the joint approval of 
the Chairman and the CCC. Credit proposals exceeding the 
internal lending limit are referred to the Board (or any delegated 
committee) for approval. The CCC delegates approval authority 
for lower amount credit proposals to various sub-committees. 

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO): is responsible for 
PDQDJLQJ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�
the main objectives of the Group, in terms of growth, liquidity 
and interest income. Its role encompasses the review, approval 
and implementation of the Group’s strategies regarding liquidity 
and interest rates, foreign exchange and trading activities 
through decisions on size and duration of mismatched positions 
and on pricing.

Risk Committee: is tasked with formulating and enforcing 
guidelines and standards with regard to capital adequacy and 
risk measurement and management. It also reviews reports 
DQG�ŵQGLQJV�LGHQWLŵHG�E\�*URXS�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�LVVXHV�
related to the implementation of Basel II/Basel III projects. The 
Committee discusses and approves the risk policies, the risk 
measurement tools such as rating and scoring, and risk-based 
processes, including stress testing, economic capital, and risk-
EDVHG�SURŵWDELOLW\��,W�RYHUVHHV�WKH�ULVN�UHSRUWV�SUHSDUHG�DQG�
ICAAP framework before submission to the Board. 

The Group also established two other committees concerned 
with risk management and compliance, these being the 
Operational Risk Management Committee and the Compliance 
and Anti-Money Laundering Committee. The Operational Risk 
Management Committee’s mission is to provide oversight for the 
Group’s operational risk function, the processes and the systems 
developed to assess, monitor and mitigate operational risks. 
The mission of the Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering 
Committee is to ensure that the Group is in compliance with 
anti-money laundering laws and internationally administered 
sanctions laws, and to oversee implementation of the Group’s 
Know-your-customer and sanction policies.

51. RISK MANAGEMENT
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Group Internal Audit Division: is responsible for providing 
an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 
designed to add value and improve the Group’s operations. 
It helps the Group accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined and risk-based approach to evaluate 
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, 
and governance processes. Its role within the Group is to 
ensure that adequate internal controls are maintained and 
WKDW��ZKHUH�ZHDNQHVVHV�DUH�LGHQWLŵHG��WKH\�DUH�UHSRUWHG�WR�
Senior Management and the Audit Committee along with 
recommendations for improvement. The GIA assesses all new 
products and procedures and changes in systems and reports its 
recommendations accordingly. 

The GIA also ensures that the Group is in compliance with the 
rules and regulations in different jurisdictions where the Group 
is operating, the Central Bank and Banking Control Commission 
requirements, Board of Directors and management directives, 
and implemented policies and procedures. 

RISK MANAGEMENT – BASEL PERSPECTIVE

The Group’s risk management function follows the prudential 
rules and regulations set forth by the Basel Committee in the Core 
Principles for Effective Banking Supervision document (September 
2012) and Basel Capital Accord texts (Basel II/III) to measure 
DQG�DVVHVV�WKH�ULVNV�LGHQWLŵHG�XQGHU�3LOODUV�,�DQG�,,��L�H��WKH�FUHGLW��
operational, and market risks, as well as the interest rate risk in the 
banking book, the liquidity risk, and  credit concentration.

With regard to Basel recommendations relating to best practices 
in risk management and its objective of capital measurement 
and capital adequacy, the Group adopts a phased approach 
to take  more sophisticated steps toward credit risk and make 
XVH�RI�LQWHUQDO�UDWLQJV�EDVHG�PHWKRGRORJ\�Ŏ�RU�œ,5%�$SSURDFKŔ�
Ŏ�WR�FDOFXODWH�H[SHFWHG�FUHGLW�ORVV�DQG�XOWLPDWHO\�FDSLWDO�
requirements for credit risk. In addition to the market risk capital 
charge, an explicit capital charge for operational risk is being 
accounted for. 

As for addressing the capital management issue in the context of 
Basel II, the Group develops annually a comprehensive Internal 
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) document, 
disclosing the risk appetite statement and covering all risks to 
which the Group is or may be exposed, as well as risk factors 
emanating from the environment in which it operates.

The overall responsibility for the monitoring and the analytical 
management of risk is effectively assigned to the Group Risk 
Management Division (GRM). The GRM reports to the Vice-
Chairman and General Manager through the head of the GRM 
Division. Risk issues and reports are submitted to the Board 
regularly through the Board Risk, Anti-Money Laundering and 
Compliance Committee. 

The GRM has a dedicated team, the Financial and Operational 
5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�'HSDUWPHQW��WKDW�IXOŵOV�WKH�DQDO\WLFDO�SDUW�RI�
risk management and is thereby in direct charge of identifying, 
measuring, monitoring and controlling Pillar 1 and 2 risks faced 
by the Group. The department is split into three main functions: 

Risk Policies and Analytics is responsible for the preparation 
and reporting of Basel II regulatory CAR reports, the 
development of stress testing scenarios, and the write-up 
of risk reports and ICAAP documents. It handles as well 
the measurement of PD (probability of default), LGD (loss 
given default), EL (expected credit loss) and UL (unexpected 
ORVV���7KH�XQLWV�GHYHORS�DQG�VXSSRUW�ULVN�EDVHG�SURŵWDELOLW\�
measurements, risk measurement tools (retail scoring and 
commercial rating), and risk-related policies.

Market Risk VHWV�WKH�ŵUP�ZLGH�IUDPHZRUN�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�
LGHQWLŵFDWLRQ��PHDVXUHPHQW�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�PDUNHW�ULVN�
across the Group, including developing policies, procedures, 
and risk measurement methodologies. Market Risk is also in 
charge of monitoring the Group’s limits regarding liquidity, 
interest rate risk and securities investment positions, stress tests, 
and reports on breaches to Senior Management. 

Operational Risk Management is responsible for establishing the 
necessary framework for identifying, measuring and managing 
RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�DFURVV�WKH�*URXS��LQFOXGLQJ�FOHDU�GHŵQLWLRQ�RI�
risks, developing ORM policies, and enhancing ORM programs 
and tools.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Risk Management Framework is based on a set of principles 
adopted by the Board through the Risk Charter. These principles 
are reviewed annually in order to be aligned with the changes 
related to the internal and external environment of the Group. 
The set of basic principles that governs the Risk Management 
Framework of the Group are developed based on the following:

Business Line Accountability: Business lines are accountable 
for managing the risks associated with their activities and 
establishing tolerances for risk taking. The accountability 
exists notwithstanding the presence of any support functions 
dedicated to risk management activities. 

Strategic Level Risk Management: encompasses the risk 
management functions performed by Senior Management 
DQG�WKH�%RDUG��,W�LQFOXGHV�GHŵQLQJ�WKH�*URXSőV�ULVN�DSSHWLWH��
formulating strategy and policies for managing risks, and 
establishing adequate systems and controls to ensure that the 
*URXSőV�DJJUHJDWH�ULVN�SURŵOH�LV�ZLWKLQ�DFFHSWDEOH�
tolerance levels. 
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Analytical Level Risk Management: encompasses the risk 
management functions, within the authority delegated by the 
Strategic Level to identify, measure, monitor and report the risks 
taken by the Group in a consistent manner across all business 
lines and operational units. 

Tactical Level Risk Management: encompasses risk management 
activities performed by individuals who take risk on the Group’s 
EHKDOI��VXFK�DV�WKH�IURQW�RIŵFH�DQG�ORDQ�RULJLQDWLRQ�IXQFWLRQV��

7KH�5LVN�&KDUWHU�LV�FRPSOHPHQWHG�E\�ULVN�VSHFLŵF�SROLFLHV�
DQG�SURFHGXUHV�HQDEOLQJ�WKH�XQLŵFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ULVN�FXOWXUH�
and practice. Risk management is applied through the 
implementation of these risk policies/limits, which are approved 
by the Board and put in place by the risk management function 
in cooperation with the business lines. Monitoring of individual 
risks is handled upon the initiation and renewal of the risk 
through a clear decision-making process documented in a 
written procedure.

51.2. CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its 
customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual 
obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by 
setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for 
individual counterparties and for geographical and industry 
concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to
such limits.

CREDIT INITIATION 

Target markets and customers and product strategy are 
LGHQWLŵHG�LQ�WKH�\HDUO\�EXVLQHVV�SODQ�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�
medium-term plan. They are submitted to and discussed with 
management and the Board by different business lines. The 
process of initiating and approving credit proposals is governed 
by the Group’s Credit Policies and Procedures Manual (CPPM). 
The CPPM consolidates the principles for the credit origination 
and follow-up process based on early warning signals, and 
includes the credit committee approval authorities, the roles and 
responsibilities of credit personnel, the credit administration 
function, and the structuring of credit packages. 

Commercial lending is handled by the Commercial Banking 
Division, which oversees business origination related to 
corporate customers, middle market and international lending. 
The assessment of a credit request requires an evaluation of the 
borrower’s creditworthiness through an in-depth analysis of a 
VHULHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO��PDQDJHPHQW��EXVLQHVV�DQG�PDUNHW�FULWHULD�
translated into an overall credit risk rating. This assessment 
process is applicable to both new and existing clients. 

The Financial Institutions Department (FI) is a separate business 
line that sets the strategy for banks’ limits and manages 
the relationships with banks. The function is determined by 
OLTXLGLW\�WDUJHWV�DQG�E\�SURŵW�JHQHUDWLRQ�WKURXJK�D�G\QDPLF�\HW�
GLYHUVLŵHG�WUDGH�ŵQDQFH�EXVLQHVV��

The Consumer Banking Division is responsible for designing 
and implementing the strategy and documenting the program 
for consumer loans, housing loans, revolving credit cards, small 
business loans and Kafalat-guaranteed loans. 

CREDIT APPROVAL

The review of credit proposals is assigned to the credit risk 
analysis team within the GRM Division, acting independently 
from the origination units. Every non-retail lending transaction is 
subject to a thorough risk assessment by the credit risk analysis 
team prior to being submitted to the appropriate 
approving authority.

7KH�FUHGLW�ULVN�DQDO\VLV�WHDP�LV�RUJDQL]HG�LQWR�ŵYH�GHSDUWPHQWV��
each servicing a different business segment (corporate, 
LQWHUQDWLRQDO��PLGGOH�PDUNHW��ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHWDLO���
,Q�WKH�FDVH�RI�UHWDLO�OHQGLQJ��ULVN�DVVHVVPHQW�RFFXUV�ŵUVW�DW�WKH�
level of the product design and is followed up with a post-
approval review on a sampling basis. The primary function of 
the risk analysis team is to ensure that the extension of credit is 
consistent with the Group’s risk acceptance criteria and CPPM.

LOAN FOLLOW-UP AND MONITORING

Each business line manager who originated the loan remains 
vested with the responsibility of monitoring the exposure and 
UHYLHZLQJ�WKH�ŵOH�RQ�DQ�DQQXDO�EDVLV�RU�PRUH�IUHTXHQWO\�LI�
needed. Annual reviews consist of a full update of the credit 
package and follow the same process as the initiation 
of the loan. 

Outstanding loans are subject as well to a constant monitoring 
by the GRM Division based on a series of reports. The aim 
of such monitoring is to ensure problem recognition, and 
to follow up on the prompt and remedial management of 
VSRWWHG�GHWHULRUDWLRQV�LQ�ERUURZHUVő�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQV��YDOXH�RI�
collateral and related sector/industry. Early warning signals are 
derived from a set of system-generated reports. 

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 

For accounting purposes, the Group uses an incurred loss 
PRGHO�IRU�WKH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�ORVVHV�RQ�LPSDLUHG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV��
This means that losses can only be recognized when objective 
HYLGHQFH�RI�D�VSHFLŵF�ORVV�HYHQW�KDV�EHHQ�REVHUYHG��7ULJJHULQJ�
events include the following:
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Ř� 6LJQLŵFDQW�ŵQDQFLDO�GLIŵFXOW\�RI�WKH�FXVWRPHU�
Ř� A breach of contract such as a default of payment;
Ř� Where the Group grants the customer a concession due to 
WKH�FXVWRPHU�H[SHULHQFLQJ�ŵQDQFLDO�GLIŵFXOW\�

Ř� It becomes probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy 
RU�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ��DQG

Ř� Observable data that suggests that there is a decrease in the 
HVWLPDWHG�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�ORDQV�

In measuring credit risk at a counterparty level, the Group 
UHŶHFWV�WKUHH�FRPSRQHQWV��WKH�œSUREDELOLW\�RI�GHIDXOWŔ��3'��E\�
the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; the 
Group’s current exposure to the counterparty and its likely future 
development, from which the Group derives the “exposure at 
default” (EAD); and the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted 
obligations to give the “loss given default” (LGD). 

INDIVIDUALLY ASSESSED ALLOWANCES

The Group determines the allowances appropriate for each 
LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW�ORDQ�RU�DGYDQFH�RQ�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�
basis, including any overdue payments of interests, credit 
rating downgrades, or infringement of the original terms of 
the contract. Items considered when determining allowance 
amounts include the sustainability of the counterparty’s business 
SODQ��LWV�DELOLW\�WR�LPSURYH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RQFH�D�ŵQDQFLDO�GLIŵFXOW\�
has arisen, projected receipts and the expected payout should 
EDQNUXSWF\�HQVXH��WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�RWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�VXSSRUW��WKH�
realizable value of collateral, and the timing of the expected 
FDVK�ŶRZV��,PSDLUPHQW�DOORZDQFHV�DUH�HYDOXDWHG�DW�HDFK�
reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstances require more 
careful attention.

COLLECTIVELY ASSESSED ALLOWANCES

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans and 
advances and for debt instruments at amortized cost that are 
QRW�LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW��LQFOXGLQJ�FUHGLW�FDUGV��UHVLGHQWLDO�
mortgages and unsecured consumer lending) and for 
LQGLYLGXDOO\�VLJQLŵFDQW�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�DQG�GHEW�LQVWUXPHQWV�
at amortized cost that have been assessed individually and 
found not to be impaired.

The Group generally bases its analyses on historical 
H[SHULHQFH��+RZHYHU��ZKHQ�WKHUH�DUH�VLJQLŵFDQW�PDUNHW�
developments, regional and/or global, the Group would include 

macroeconomic factors within its assessments. These factors 
include, depending on the characteristics of the individual 
or collective assessment: unemployment rates, current 
levels of bad debts, changes in laws, changes in regulations, 
bankruptcy trends, and other consumer data. The Group may 
use the aforementioned factors as appropriate to adjust the 
impairment allowances.

Allowances are evaluated separately at each reporting date with 
each portfolio. The collective assessment is made for groups 
of assets with similar risk characteristics, in order to determine 
whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events 
for which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which 
are not yet evident in the individual loans assessments. The 
collective assessment takes account of data from the loan 
portfolio (such as historical losses on the portfolio, levels of 
arrears, credit utilization, loan-to-collateral ratios, and expected 
receipts and recoveries once impaired). The approximate 
delay between the time a loss is likely to have been incurred 
DQG�WKH�WLPH�LW�ZLOO�EH�LGHQWLŵHG�DV�UHTXLULQJ�DQ�LQGLYLGXDOO\�
assessed impairment allowance is also taken into consideration. 
Local management is responsible for deciding the length 
of this period, which can extend for as long as one year. The 
impairment allowance is then reviewed by credit management 
to ensure alignment with overall Group policy. 

&UHGLW�UHODWHG�FRPPLWPHQWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHHV�DUH�
assessed and provisions are made in a similar manner as for 
loans.

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV
&UHGLW�ULVN�DULVLQJ�IURP�GHULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�LV��DW�DQ\�
time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on 
WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�

With gross-settled derivatives, the Group is also exposed 
to a settlement risk, being the risk that the Group honors its 
obligation but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter-value.

&UHGLW�UHODWHG�FRPPLWPHQWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHH�ULVNV�
The Group makes available to its customers guarantees which 
may require that the Group makes payments on their behalf and 
enters into commitments to extend credit lines to secure their 
liquidity needs. Such commitments expose the Group to similar 
risks to loans and are mitigated by the same control processes 
and policies.
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2014
LBP Million

 
Maximum 
exposure Cash Securities

Letters 
of credit/ 

guarantees
Real 

estate
Net credit 
exposure

Balances with central banks 6,819,919 - - - - 6,819,919

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

2,913,279 (663) - - - 2,912,616

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

393,712 (11,567) - - - 382,145

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - - - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 6,715 - - - - 6,715

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

119,640 - - - - 119,640

Net loans and advances to 
customers at amortized cost:

  Commercial loans 4,790,011 (449,073) (117,564) (94,971) (1,021,599) 3,106,804

  Consumer loans 2,309,152 (222,697) - - (1,079,004) 1,007,451

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

28,033 (10,353) - - (3,082) 14,598

Financial assets at amortized cost 10,260,119 - - - - 10,260,119

27,647,585 (694,353) (117,564) (94,971) (2,103,685) 24,637,012

Financial guarantees 185,758 (17,539) - - - 168,219

Documentary credits
(including acceptances)

867,688 (62,973) - - - 804,715

28,701,031 (774,865) (117,564) (94,971) (2,103,685) 25,609,946

Utilized collateral (774,865) (117,564) (94,971) (2,103,685)

Surplus of collateral before 
undrawn credit lines

(85,130) (327,231) (72,991) (1,646,979)

Guarantees received from banks, 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�FXVWRPHUV (859,995) (444,795) (167,962) (3,750,664)

The surplus of collateral mentioned above is presented before offsetting additional credit commitments given to customers amounting 
to LBP 2,354,802 million as at 31 December 2014.

ANALYSIS OF MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK AND COLLATERAL AND OTHER CREDIT ENHANCEMENTS

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH�VKRZV�WKH�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�E\�FODVV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW��,W�IXUWKHU�VKRZV�WKH�WRWDO�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�
collateral, capped to the maximum exposure to which it relates and the net exposure to credit risk.
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2013
LBP Million

 
Maximum 
exposure Cash Securities

Letters 
of credit/ 

guarantees
Real 

estate
Net credit 
exposure

Balances with central banks 5,536,500 - - - - 5,536,500

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

3,353,314             (710) - - - 3,352,604

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

614,866 (2,615) - - - 612,251

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - - - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 3,824 - - - - 3,824

Financial assets at fair value through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

124,483 - - - - 124,483

Net loans and advances to 
customers at amortized cost:

  Commercial loans 4,593,829 (457,074) (108,525) (11,907) (786,179) 3,230,144

  Consumer loans 2,183,021 (222,619) - - (1,025,604) 934,798

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

23,732 (9,069) -   - (2,241) 12,422

Financial assets at amortized cost 10,198,193 - -   - - 10,198,193

26,638,767 (692,087) (108,525) (11,907) (1,814,024) 24,012,224

Financial guarantees 172,986 (9,589) -   - - 163,397 

Documentary credits 
(including acceptances)

1,230,957 (64,848) -   -   -   1,166,109

28,042,710 (766,524) (108,525) (11,907) (1,814,024) 25,341,730

Utilized collateral (766,524) (108,525) (11,907) (1,814,024)

Surplus of collateral before 
undrawn credit lines

(86,924) (192,397) (156,055) (1,506,506)

Guarantees received from banks, 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�FXVWRPHUV (853,448) (300,922) (167,962) (3,320,530)

The surplus of collateral mentioned above is presented before offsetting additional credit commitments given to customers amounting 
to LBP 2,080,962 million as at 31 December 2013.
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COLLATERAL AND OTHER CREDIT ENHANCEMENTS

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an 
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are 
implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral 
and valuation parameters. Management requests additional 
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement, and 
monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its 
review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. 
The main types of collateral obtained are as follows: 

Securities:
The balances shown above represent the fair value of the 
securities.

Letters of credit/guarantees:
The Group holds in some cases guarantees, letters of credit and 
VLPLODU�LQVWUXPHQWV�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�ZKLFK�

enable it to claim settlement in the event of default on the part 
of the counterparty. The balances shown represent the notional 
amount of these types of guarantees held by the Group.

Real estate (commercial and residential):
7KH�*URXS�KROGV�LQ�VRPH�FDVHV�D�ŵUVW�GHJUHH�PRUWJDJH�RYHU�
residential property (for housing loans) and commercial property 
�IRU�FRPPHUFLDO�ORDQV���7KH�YDOXH�VKRZQ�DERYH�UHŶHFWV�WKH�IDLU�
value of the property limited to the related mortgaged amount. 

Other:
In addition to the above, the Group also obtains from its 
clients proxy to mortgage a residential or commercial 
property, guarantees from parent companies for loans to their 
subsidiaries, personal guarantees for loans to companies owned 
by individuals, and assignments of proceeds and revenues, 
ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�DERYH�WDEOH��
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2014 Neither past due nor impaired

LBP Million

 High
grade

Standard 
grade

Past due but 
not impaired

Individually
impaired Total 

Balances with central banks 6,436,888 383,031 - - 6,819,919

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,623,543 289,736 - 3,960 2,917,239

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse
repurchase agreements

86,022 307,690 - - 393,712

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 6,715 - - - 6,715

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

Lebanese government bonds 113,672 - - - 113,672

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
Central Bank of Lebanon

3,190 - - - 3,190

Other debt securities 2,068 - - - 2,068

Other foreign government bonds 710 - - - 710

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost:

  Commercial loans 4,465,167 264,382 131,999 312,251 5,173,799

  Consumer loans 2,093,810 22,310 172,139 105,382 2,393,641

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

28,033 - - - 28,033

Debtors by acceptances 292,101 10,838 - - 302,939

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Lebanese government bonds 5,673,700 - - - 5,673,700

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
Central Bank of Lebanon

3,913,360 - - - 3,913,360

Other foreign government bonds 75,240 59,427 - - 134,667

Other debt securities 420,533 119,433 - - 539,966

26,241,757 1,456,847 304,138 421,593 28,424,335

CREDIT QUALITY PER CLASS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VKRZV�WKH�FUHGLW�TXDOLW\�E\�FODVV�RI�DVVHW�IRU�DOO�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�H[SRVHG�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�*URXSőV�LQWHUQDO�
credit rating system. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.
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2013 Neither past due nor impaired

LBP Million

 High
grade

Standard 
grade

Past due but 
not impaired

Individually
impaired Total 

Balances with central banks 5,121,166 415,334 - 5,536,500

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,794,667 558,647 - 4,636 3,357,950

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse
repurchase agreements

31,226 583,640 - - 614,866

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 3,824 - - - 3,824

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

Lebanese government bonds 104,979 - - - 104,979

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
Central Bank of Lebanon

329 - - - 329

Other debt securities 19,175 - - - 19,175

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost:

  Commercial loans 4,347,292 198,737 91,903 304,077 4,942,009

  Consumer loans 1,992,037 16,227 198,260 54,443 2,260,967

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

23,732 - - - 23,732

Debtors by acceptances 440,652 5,305 - - 445,957

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Lebanese government bonds 5,185,252 -   - - 5,185,252

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�
Central Bank of Lebanon

4,239,042 - - - 4,239,042

Other foreign government bonds 78,588 51,107 - - 129,695

Other debt securities 439,164 210,102 - - 649,266

24,828,130 2,039,099 290,163 363,156 27,520,548
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$JLQJ�DQDO\VLV�RI�SDVW�GXH�EXW�QRW�LPSDLUHG�ORDQV�SHU�FODVV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�

2014
LBP Million

Less than 90 days
91 to 180 

days
More than
 181 days Total

Loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost:

- Commercial loans 59,243 42,885 29,871 131,999

- Consumer loans 141,627 20,143 10,369 172,139

200,870 63,028 40,240 304,138

2013
LBP Million

Less than 90 days
91 to 180 

days
More than
 181 days Total

Loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost:

- Commercial loans 57,127 20,022 14,754 91,903

- Consumer loans 145,570 24,277 28,413 198,260

        202,697 44,299 43,167 290,163
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Financial assetsimpaired Loans and advances to customers

External credit rating
 
Supervisory rating Characteristics

High grade Lebanese Sovereign
AAA to A-

Regular

Regular and timely payment of dues. 
$GHTXDF\�RI�FDVK�ŶRZV��7LPHO\�
ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��6XIŵFLHQW�

collateral/guarantee (if required).

Follow-up
Lack of documentation related to 

borrower’s activity.

Standard grade BBB+ and below unrated
Follow-up and 
regularization

Creditworthy borrower showing 
ZHDNQHVVHV��LQVXIŵFLHQW�LQDGHTXDWH�

FDVK�ŶRZV��KLJKO\�OHYHUDJHG��
deterioration in economic sector or 

country where the facility is used; 
FRQŶLFW�EHWZHHQ�SDUWQHUV�RU�RWKHU�

lawsuits; loan rescheduling since 
initiation; excess utilization above limit.

Individually impaired Impaired Substandard

Signals of incapacity to repay from 
LGHQWLŵHG�FDVK�ŶRZV��IXOO�UHSD\PHQW�

supposes the liquidation of assets/
collateral; recurrent late payments; late 
interests; losses incurred for over three 

years.

Doubtful

Full repayment is questioned even 
after asset liquidation; account 

stagnation and inability to repay 
restructured loans.

Bad
1R�RU�OLWWOH�H[SHFWHG�LQŶRZV�IURP�

business or assets; borrower is 
unreachable; insolvency status.

MAPPING TO EXTERNAL CREDIT RATING
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7KH�FODVVLŵFDWLRQ�RI�ORDQV�DQG�DGYDQFHV�WR�FXVWRPHUV�DQG�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�DW�DPRUWL]HG�FRVW��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UDWLQJV�RI�&HQWUDO�
Bank of Lebanon Circular 58 are as follows:

2014
LBP Million

Gross 
balance 

Unrealized 
 interest 

 
Impairment
 allowances

Net
 balance 

Regular 6,251,227 - - 6,251,227

Follow-up 532,598 - - 532,598

Follow-up and regularization 365,982 - - 365,982

Substandard 30,618 (1,260) - 29,358

Doubtful 138,017 (13,661) (56,223) 68,133

Bad 248,998 (82,541) (166,457) -

7,567,440 (97,462) (222,680) 7,247,298

Collective impairment (148,135) - - (148,135)

7,419,305 (97,462) (222,680) 7,099,163

2013
LBP Million

Gross 
balance 

Unrealized 
 interest 

 
Impairment
 allowances

Net
 balance 

Regular 6,253,909 - - 6,253,909

Follow-up 314,135 - - 314,135

Follow-up and regularization 276,412 - - 276,412

Substandard 3,486 (917) - 2,569

Doubtful 124,545 (14,491) (49,560) 60,494

Bad 230,489 (66,446) (164,043) -

7,202,976 (81,854) (213,603) 6,907,519

Collective impairment (130,669) - - (130,669)

7,072,307 (81,854) (213,603) 6,776,850
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RENEGOTIATED LOANS 

Restructuring activity aims to manage customer relationships, maximize collection opportunities and, if possible, avoid foreclosure 
RU�UHSRVVHVVLRQ��6XFK�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH�H[WHQGHG�SD\PHQW�DUUDQJHPHQWV��GHIHUULQJ�IRUHFORVXUH��PRGLŵFDWLRQ��ORDQ�UHZULWHV�DQG�RU�
deferral of payments pending a change in circumstances.

Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of local management, indicate that 
repayment will probably continue. The application of these policies varies according to the nature of the market and the type 
of the facility.  

LBP Million
2014 2013

Commercial loans 24,449 26,381

ANALYSIS OF RISK CONCENTRATION

The Group’s concentrations of risk are managed by client/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. The maximum 
credit exposure to any client or counterparty as of 31 December 2014 was LBP 98,570 million (2013: LBP 80,464 million) before taking 
account of collateral or other credit enhancements and LBP 98,570 million (2013: LBP 80,464 million) net of such protection.

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOHV�VKRZ�WKH�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�IRU�WKH�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�
derivatives, by geography of counterparty before the effect of mitigation through the use of netting and collateral agreements.
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GEOGRAPHIC ANALYSIS

2014
LBP Million

Lebanon Europe Other Total

Balances with central banks 6,397,781 41,073 381,065 6,819,919

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

126,607 880,144 1,906,528 2,913,279

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

14,694 97,344 281,674 393,712

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 4,401 2,252 62 6,715

Financial assets at fair value through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

Lebanese government bonds 113,672 - - 113,672

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�
the Central Bank of Lebanon

3,190 - - 3,190

Other debt securities - 385 1,683 2,068

Other foreign government bonds - - 710 710

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

Commercial loans 3,891,820 185,725 712,466 4,790,011

Consumer loans 2,168,812 48,025 92,315 2,309,152

Net loans and advances to 
related parties at amortized cost

24,175 568 3,290 28,033

Debtors by acceptances 215,144 1,827 85,968 302,939

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Lebanese government bonds 5,673,700 - - 5,673,700

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�
the Central Bank of Lebanon

3,913,360 - - 3,913,360

Other foreign government bonds - 72,975 61,692 134,667

Other debt securities 33,147 190,760 314,485 538,392

22,587,508 1,521,078 3,841,938 27,950,524
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2013
LBP Million

Lebanon Europe Other Total

Balances with central banks 5,084,934 37,310 414,256 5,536,500

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

121,767 2,291,098 940,449 3,353,314

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

16,866 308,022 289,978 614,866

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - -   7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 1,241 1,873 710 3,824

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
SURŵW�RU�ORVV�

Lebanese government bonds 104,979 -   -   104,979

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�
the Central Bank of Lebanon

329 -   -   329

Other debt securities -   377 18,798 19,175

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

Commercial loans 3,626,925 242,818 724,086 4,593,829

Consumer loans 2,058,507 43,510 81,004 2,183,021

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

22,830 -   902 23,732

Debtors by acceptances 233,298 4,042 208,617 445,957

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Lebanese government bonds 5,185,252 -   -   5,185,252

&HUWLŵFDWHV�RI�GHSRVLW�LVVXHG�E\�
the Central Bank of Lebanon

4,239,042 -   -   4,239,042

Other foreign government bonds -   61,092 68,603 129,695

Other debt securities 29,466 289,123 325,615 644,204

20,732,441 3,279,265 3,073,018 27,084,724
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51.3 LIQUIDITY RISK AND FUNDING MANAGEMENT 

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�GHŵQHG�DV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�ZLOO�HQFRXQWHU�GLIŵFXOW\�LQ�PHHWLQJ�REOLJDWLRQV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�
WKDW�DUH�VHWWOHG�E\�GHOLYHULQJ�FDVK�RU�DQRWKHU�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHW��/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�DULVHV�EHFDXVH�RI�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�PLJKW�EH�
unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management 
KDV�DUUDQJHG�GLYHUVLŵHG�IXQGLQJ�VRXUFHV�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�LWV�FRUH�GHSRVLW�EDVH��DQG�DGRSWHG�D�SROLF\�RI�PDQDJLQJ�DVVHWV�ZLWK�OLTXLGLW\�
LQ�PLQG�DQG�RI�PRQLWRULQJ�IXWXUH�FDVK�ŶRZV�DQG�OLTXLGLW\�RQ�D�GDLO\�EDVLV��7KH�*URXS�KDV�GHYHORSHG�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�SURFHVVHV�DQG�
FRQWLQJHQF\�SODQV�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN��7KLV�LQFRUSRUDWHV�DQ�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ŶRZV�DQG�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�KLJK�
grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Group maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be liquidated in the event of an unforeseen 
LQWHUUXSWLRQ�RI�FDVK�ŶRZ��$V�SHU�DSSOLFDEOH�UHJXODWLRQV��WKH�*URXS�PXVW�UHWDLQ�REOLJDWRU\�UHVHUYHV�ZLWK�WKH�FHQWUDO�EDQNV�ZKHUH�WKH�
Group entities operate.

The liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both 
WKH�PDUNHW�LQ�JHQHUDO�DQG�VSHFLŵFDOO\�WR�WKH�*URXS��7KH�*URXS�PDLQWDLQV�D�VROLG�UDWLR�RI�KLJKO\�OLTXLG�QHW�DVVHWV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQFLHV�WR�
deposits and commitments in foreign currencies taking market conditions into consideration. 

7KH�*URXS�VWUHVVHV�WKH�LPSRUWDQFH�RI�FXVWRPHU�GHSRVLWV�DV�D�VRXUFH�RI�IXQGV�WR�ŵQDQFH�LWV�OHQGLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV��7KLV�LV�PRQLWRUHG�E\�
using the loans-to-deposits ratio, which compares loans and advances to customers as a percentage of deposits from customers.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY REMAINING CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VXPPDUL]HV�WKH�PDWXULW\�SURŵOH�RI�WKH�*URXSőV�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�31 December 2014 and 2013 based 
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given 
immediately. However, the Group expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date the Group could be 
UHTXLUHG�WR�SD\��7KH�WDEOH�GRHV�QRW�UHŶHFW�WKH�H[SHFWHG�FDVK�ŶRZV�WKDW�DUH�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�*URXSőV�GHSRVLW�UHWHQWLRQ�KLVWRU\�

2014 2013

Loans to deposits

Year-end 30.08% 30.59%

Maximum 30.68% 30.59%

Minimum 30.08% 29.25%

Average 30.34% 29.71%
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2014
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Cash and balances with central banks 2,412,387 26,749 631,903 2,523,953 3,593,026 9,188,018

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,573,021 225,691 114,868 - - 2,913,580

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse 
repurchase agreements

114,348 131,768 116,499 35,830 - 398,445

Financial assets given as collateral - - 7,005 - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 3,914 768 2,033 - - 6,715

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

408 2,033 7,217 51,777 148,378 209,813

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

3,044,456 588,427 1,193,239 1,842,754 1,063,796 7,732,672

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

19,364 1,050 818 4,206 3,455 28,893

Debtors by acceptances 105,505 116,814 80,620 - - 302,939

Financial assets at amortized cost 178,432 424,976 1,280,962 6,312,566 5,346,804 13,543,740

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

- - - - 98,718 98,718

7RWDO�XQGLVFRXQWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV 8,451,835 1,518,276 3,435,164 10,771,086 10,254,177 34,430,538

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Due to central banks 9,394 547 10,739 34,554 18,247 73,481

Due to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

374,240 182,403 128,338 188,316 77,872 951,169

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 4,150 327 950 - - 5,427

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

13,724,877 2,823,203 5,084,265 2,182,138 74,048 23,888,531

Deposits from related parties at 
amortized cost

292,080 3,985 6,297 29,855 - 332,217

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- - 31,658 126,630 492,257 650,545

Engagements by acceptances 105,505 116,814 80,620 - - 302,939

Subordinated debt - 7,349 22,047 117,585 501,952 648,933

Total undiscounted 
ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�� 14,510,246 3,134,628 5,364,914 2,679,078 1,164,376 26,853,242

1HW�XQGLVFRXQWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�
assets/(liabilities) (6,058,411) (1,616,352) (1,929,750) 8,092,008 9,089,801 7,577,296
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2013
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Cash and balances with central banks 1,818,052  383,241 655,977 3,103,515  366,218 6,327,003 

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,956,303 321,656  72,747  4,587      -   3,355,293 

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions and reverse
repurchase agreements

65,550 142,552 405,226  5,648           -       618,976 

Financial assets given as collateral  -    -    -   7,005 -         7,005 

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�  3,270 312 243  -   -         3,825 

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

 349 181 7,580 43,359 156,436    207,905 

Net loans and advances to customers 
at amortized cost

2,926,054 454,689 1,075,349 1,873,906 1,010,628 7,340,626

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

16,755 1,109   374    1,740   4,690       24,668 

Debtors by acceptances  195,762 158,039 89,994 2,104 58      445,957 

Financial assets at amortized cost 390,706 287,021 1,522,758 6,200,964 5,036,636  13,438,085 

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

        -    -    -    -   86,895     86,895

7RWDO�XQGLVFRXQWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�� 8,372,801 1,748,800 3,830,248 11,242,828 6,661,561  31,856,238 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Due to central banks 8,235 59 473  12,662 31,997       53,426 

Due to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

 618,080 345,204 117,452 201,629 148,697    1,431,062 

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 2,878 179  6  -             -            3,063 

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

13,197,571 2,667,924  4,376,187  1,966,639  52,187  22,260,508 

Deposits from related parties 
at amortized cost

 226,314 14,361 15,150 21,028 932       277,785 

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- 62,068  31,658 126,630 524,027 744,383 

Engagements by acceptances  195,762 158,039  89,994  2,104 58 445,957 

Subordinated debt -  7,186  22,210 117,422 529,300 676,118 

Total undiscounted 
ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�� 14,248,840 3,255,020 4,653,130 2,448,114 1,287,198  25,892,302 

1HW�XQGLVFRXQWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�
assets/(liabilities) (5,876,039) (1,506,220) (822,882) 8,794,714 5,374,363 5,963,936
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The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Group’s contingent liabilities and commitments. Each undrawn loan 
commitment is included in the time band containing the earliest date it can be drawn down. 

The Group expects that not all of the contingent liabilities or commitments will be demanded before maturity. 

51.4. MARKET RISK

0DUNHW�ULVN�LV�GHŵQHG�DV�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�ORVV�LQ�ERWK�RQ�EDODQFH�VKHHW�DQG�RII�EDODQFH�VKHHW�SRVLWLRQV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�PRYHPHQWV�LQ�
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. 

7KH�PDUNHW�ULVN�JRYHUQDQFH�KDV�EHHQ�GHŵQHG�LQ�WKH�6HFXULW\�,QYHVWPHQW�3ROLF\��ZKLFK�GHŵQHV�WKH�UROHV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�NH\�
stakeholders of market risk management, including the Board, the ALCO committee, the business lines and risk functions.

It is the responsibility of the ALCO to manage the Group’s investment portfolio under the terms of the Security Investment Policy. While 
striving to maximize portfolio performance, the ALCO shall keep the management of the portfolio within the bounds of good banking 
practices, satisfy the Group’s liquidity needs, and ensures compliance with both regulatory and internally set limits and requirements.

7KH�*URXS�5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW�'LYLVLRQ�VHWV�WKH�IUDPHZRUN�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�LGHQWLŵFDWLRQ��PHDVXUHPHQW�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�PDUNHW�ULVN�

INTEREST RATE RISK

,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�DULVHV�IURP�WKH�SRVVLELOLW\�WKDW�FKDQJHV�LQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�ZLOO�DIIHFW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXHV�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��7KH�*URXS�LV�
exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of interest rate re-pricing of assets and liabilities. The Group manages the risk 
by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities through risk management strategies. Positions are monitored on a daily basis by 
management and, whenever possible, hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within established limits.

2014
LBP Million

Less than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

1 to 5
years

More than
 5 years Total

Financial guarantees 302 755 112,135 72,566 - 185,758

Documentary credits 36,488 249,786 262,180 16,295 - 564,749

Commitments to lend 2,354,802 - - - - 2,354,802

2,391,592 250,541 374,315 88,861 - 3,105,309

2013
LBP Million

Less than 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

1 to 5
years

More than
 5 years Total

Financial guarantees 752 10,055 104,183 57,167  829 172,986 

Documentary credits 34,796 406,030 327,355 16,819 -   785,000 

Commitments to lend 2,080,962 -   -    -    -   2,080,962 

2,116,510 416,085  431,538   73,986        829 3,038,948 
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2014 2013

Currency In basis points
 Effect on net 

interest income
LBP Million

Effect on net 
interest income

LBP Million

LBP 50 basis point (20,492) (16,433)

USD 50 basis point 159 648

EUR 50 basis point (1,078) (238)

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table shows the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the 
Group’s income statement.

7KH�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�WKH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�LV�WKH�HIIHFW�RI�WKH�DVVXPHG�FKDQJHV�LQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�RQ�WKH�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�IRU�D�\HDU��EDVHG�RQ�
WKH�ŶRDWLQJ�UDWH�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�WR�WKH�UHLQYHVWPHQW�RU�UHIXQGLQJ�RI�ŵ[HG�UDWHG�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�
at the assumed rates. The change in interest income is calculated over a one-year period. The impact also incorporates the fact that 
VRPH�PRQHWDU\�LWHPV�GR�QRW�LPPHGLDWHO\�UHVSRQG�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV�DQG�DUH�QRW�SDVVHG�WKURXJK�LQ�IXOO��UHŶHFWLQJ�VWLFN\�
interest rate behavior. The pass-through rate and lag in response time are estimated based on historical statistical analysis and are 
UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�RXWFRPH��
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2014
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years

Non- 
interest-
bearing 

items Total

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 1,269,880 - 376,875 1,581,375 2,635,580 1,185,075 7,048,785

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

1,046,034 225,532 114,528 - - 1,527,185 2,913,279

Loans to banks 
DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
and reverse  repurchase agreements

165,960 87,997 107,305 32,450 - - 393,712

Financial assets given as collateral - - 6,915 - - 90 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� - - - - - 6,715 6,715

Financial assets at fair value 
WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- - - - - 155,582 155,582

Net loans and advances to 
customers at amortized cost

3,235,005 743,263 2,072,263 962,736 134,388 (48,492) 7,099,163

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

26,217 - - - 1,816 - 28,033

Debtors by acceptances - - - - - 302,939 302,939

Financial assets at amortized cost 147,952 351,006 798,345 4,556,327 4,267,055 139,434 10,260,119

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

- - - - - 98,718 98,718

Total 5,891,048 1,407,798 3,476,231 7,132,888 7,038,839 3,367,246 28,314,050

LIABILITIES

Due to central banks 32 1 5,697 8,712 47,357 9,347 71,146

Due to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

186,596 176,569 99,805 134,151 160,657 153,395 911,173

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV - - - - - 5,427 5,427

Customers’ deposits 
at amortized cost

10,975,572 2,737,367 4,874,817 1,944,739 68,655 2,776,639 23,377,789

Deposits from related parties 
at amortized cost

253,422 1,431 6,984 12,461 - 38,515 312,813

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- - - - 444,771 616 445,387

Engagements by acceptances - - - - - 302,939 302,939

Subordinated debt - - - - 414,498 82 414,580

Total 11,415,622 2,915,368 4,987,303 2,100,063 1,135,938 3,286,960 25,841,254

Total interest sensitivity gap (5,524,574) (1,507,570) (1,511,072) 5,032,825 5,902,901 80,286 2,472,796

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s interest sensitivity position based on the contractual re-pricing date at 31 December was as follows:
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2013
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months 

 3 months
to 1 year

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years

Non- 
interest-
bearing 

items Total

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 879,537 339,188 572,754 2,747,090 300,000 971,361 5,809,930

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

1,940,071 293,398 72,151 4,625 - 1,043,069 3,353,314

Loans to banks 
DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
and reverse repurchase agreements

65,009 142,026 402,080 5,300 - 451 614,866

Financial assets given as collateral - - - 6,915 - 90 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� - - - - - 3,824 3,824

Financial assets at fair value through 
SURŵW�RU�ORVV

- - - - - 157,447 157,447

Net loans and advances 
to customers at amortized cost

3,166,381 580,034 1,748,082 1,096,037 268,340 (82,024) 6,776,850

Net loans and advances to related 
parties at amortized cost

20,738 - - 2,798 196 23,732

Debtors by acceptances - - - - - 445,957 445,957

Financial assets at amortized cost 292,177 161,621 985,906 4,496,418 4,109,974 152,097 10,198,193

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

- - - - - 86,895 86,895

Total 6,363,913 1,516,267 3,780,973 8,356,385 4,681,112 2,779,363 27,478,013

LIABILITIES

Due to central banks - 2 - 11,490 31,730 8,280 51,502

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�
institutions

419,159 346,692 109,963 174,143 143,256 199,349 1,392,562

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV - - - - - 3,063 3,063

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

10,440,533 2,618,299 4,234,875 1,789,000 48,600 2,838,878 21,970,185

Deposits from related parties at 
amortized cost

168,941 12,765 9,604 13,041 - 60,126 264,477

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- 60,978 - - 444,883 628 506,489

Engagements by acceptances - - - - - 445,957 445,957

Subordinated debt - - - - 412,286 82 412,368

Total 11,028,633 3,038,736 4,354,442 1,987,674 1,080,755 3,556,363 25,046,603

Total interest sensitivity gap (4,664,720) (1,522,469) (573,469) 6,368,711 3,600,357 (777,000) 2,431,410
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CURRENCY RISK

Foreign exchange (or currency) risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio will fall as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 
PDMRU�VRXUFHV�RI�WKLV�W\SH�RI�PDUNHW�ULVN�DUH�LPSHUIHFW�FRUUHODWLRQV�LQ�WKH�PRYHPHQWV�RI�FXUUHQF\�SULFHV�DQG�ŶXFWXDWLRQV�LQ�LQWHUHVW�
rates. Therefore, exchange rates and relevant interest rates are acknowledged as distinct risk factors. 

In addition to regulatory limits, the Board has set limits on positions by currency. These positions are monitored constantly to 
ensure they are maintained within established limits.
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2014
LBP Million

Local currencies Foreign currencies Total

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 1,558,455 5,490,330 7,048,785

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV� 41,233 2,872,046 2,913,279

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
and reverse repurchase agreements

3,852 389,860 393,712

Financial assets given as collateral 7,005 - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV� 4,656 2,059 6,715

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV 31,051 124,531 155,582

Net loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 1,643,551 5,455,612 7,099,163

Net loans and advances to related parties at amortized cost 2,335 25,698 28,033

Debtors by acceptances - 302,939 302,939

Financial assets at amortized cost 7,099,440 3,160,679 10,260,119

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 26,309 72,409 98,718

Property and equipment 185,643 50,736 236,379

Intangible assets 652 - 652

Assets obtained in settlement of debt (9,346) 46,023 36,677

Other assets 58,859 47,921 106,780

TOTAL ASSETS 10,653,695 18,040,843 28,694,538

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Due to central banks 61,724 9,422 71,146

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV 22,996 888,177 911,173

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV 5,010 417 5,427

Customers’ deposits at amortized cost 9,238,897 14,138,892 23,377,789

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost 85,003 227,810 312,813

Debt issued and other borrowed funds - 445,387 445,387

Engagement by acceptances - 302,939 302,939

Other liabilities 103,553 60,350 163,903

Provisions for risks and charges 133,146 12,283 145,429

Subordinated debt - 414,580 414,580

TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,650,329 16,500,257 26,150,586

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)ROORZLQJ�LV�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�31 December 2014 detailed in Lebanese Pounds (LBP) and foreign 
currencies, translated into LBP.
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2014
LBP Million

Local currencies Foreign currencies Total

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV 684,273 - 684,273

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV� 4,840 - 4,840

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV - 229,014 229,014

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV - 591,083 591,083

Non-distributable reserves 563,839 185,040 748,879

Distributable reserves 76,482 19,461 95,943

Treasury shares - (6,425) (6,425)

Retained earnings 7,486 32,413 39,899

Revaluation reserve of real estate 5,689 - 5,689

&KDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�RWKHU�
comprehensive income

16,986 (24,519) (7,533)

1HW�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�SHULRG�Ŏ�SURŵW 228,664 24,128 252,792

Foreign currency translation reserves (164,357) - (164,357)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 21,886 47,969 69,855

TOTAL EQUITY 1,445,788 1,098,164 2,543,952

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  11,096,117 17,598,421 28,694,538
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)ROORZLQJ�LV�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�31 December 2013 detailed in Lebanese Pounds (LBP) and foreign 
currencies, translated into LBP.

2013
LBP Million

Local currencies Foreign currencies Total

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 1,362,175 4,447,755 5,809,930

'XH�IURP�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�            54,960        3,298,354        3,353,314 

/RDQV�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�UHYHUVH�
repurchase agreements

             5,370           609,496           614,866 

Financial assets given as collateral              7,005                     -                 7,005 

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�              2,552               1,272               3,824 

)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV              1,835           155,612           157,447 

Net loans and advances to customers at amortized cost       1,529,035        5,247,815        6,776,850 

Net loans and advances to related parties at amortized cost              2,586             21,146             23,732 

Debtors by acceptances                    -             445,957           445,957 

Financial assets at amortized cost       6,617,392        3,580,801      10,198,193 

Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

24,087 62,808             86,895 

Property and equipment          183,032             60,198           243,230 

Intangible assets                 811                     -                    811 

Assets obtained in settlement of debt            (8,403)             44,782             36,379 

Other assets            50,583             57,252           107,835 

TOTAL ASSETS 9,833,020 18,033,248      27,866,268 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Due to central banks            42,492               9,010             51,502 

'XH�WR�EDQNV�DQG�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV            17,386        1,375,176        1,392,562 

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV              2,247                  816               3,063 

Customers’ deposits at amortized cost       8,542,280      13,427,905      21,970,185 

Deposits from related parties at amortized cost            79,684           184,793           264,477 

Debt issued and other borrowed funds                    -             506,489           506,489 

Engagement by acceptances                    -             445,957           445,957 

Other liabilities          101,474             94,230           195,704 

Provisions for risks and charges          122,765             15,610           138,375 

Subordinated debt                    -             412,368           412,368 

TOTAL LIABILITIES       8,908,328      16,472,354      25,380,682 
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2013
LBP Million

Local currencies Foreign currencies Total

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV          684,273                     -             684,273 

6KDUH�FDSLWDO�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV�              4,840                     -                 4,840 

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�FRPPRQ�VKDUHV                    -             229,014           229,014 

6KDUH�SUHPLXP�Ŏ�SUHIHUUHG�VKDUHV                    -             588,671           588,671 

Non-distributable reserves          513,377           158,941           672,318 

Distributable reserves            71,907             25,346             97,253 

Treasury shares                     1           (10,055)           (10,054)

Retained earnings            23,950             28,168             52,118 

Revaluation reserve of real estate              5,689                     -                 5,689 

&KDQJH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�
other comprehensive income

14,888 (31,532)           (16,644)

1HW�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�SHULRG�Ŏ�SURŵW          199,818             24,865           224,683 

Foreign currency translation reserves        (123,650)                     -           (123,650)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS            18,711             58,364             77,075 

TOTAL EQUITY 1,413,804 1,071,782        2,485,586 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  10,322,132 17,544,136      27,866,268 

Group’s sensitivity to currency exchange rates

7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VKRZV�WKH�FXUUHQFLHV�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�*URXS�KDG�VLJQLŵFDQW�H[SRVXUH�DW�31 December on its monetary assets and 
OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�LWV�IRUHFDVWHG�FDVK�ŶRZV��7KH�DQDO\VLV�FDOFXODWHV�WKH�HIIHFW�RI�D�UHDVRQDEO\�SRVVLEOH�PRYHPHQW�RI�WKH�FXUUHQF\�UDWH�
against the Lebanese Pound, with all other variables held constant, on the income statement (due to the potential change in fair value 
of currency-sensitive monetary assets and liabilities) and equity (due to the impact of currency translation gains/losses of consolidated 
VXEVLGLDULHV���$�QHJDWLYH�DPRXQW�UHŶHFWV�D�SRWHQWLDO�QHW�UHGXFWLRQ�LQ�LQFRPH��ZKLOH�D�SRVLWLYH�DPRXQW�UHŶHFWV�D�QHW�SRWHQWLDO�

2014 2013

Currency
Change in 

currency rate
 Effect 

RQ�SURŵW�
before tax 

Effect on 
equity

(IIHFW�RQ�SURŵW�
before tax

Effect on equity
 %

USD 1+ 826 - 22 -

EUR 1+ 27 1,341 18 1,409

SYP 1+ - 718 - 869
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EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities 
decreases as a result of changes in the level of equity indices 
and individual stocks. Equity price risk exposure arises from 
HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�FODVVLŵHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�RU�ORVV�
and at fair value through other comprehensive income. A 5% 
increase in the value of the Group’s equities at 31 December 
2014 would have increased other comprehensive income by 
LBP 2,549 million and net income by LBP 1,797 million (2013: 
LBP 2,170 million and LBP 1,648 million respectively). An 
equivalent decrease would have resulted in an equivalent but 
opposite impact. 

PREPAYMENT RISK

3UHSD\PHQW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�*URXS�ZLOO�LQFXU�D�ŵQDQFLDO�
loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request 
UHSD\PHQW�HDUOLHU�RU�ODWHU�WKDQ�H[SHFWHG��VXFK�DV�ŵ[HG�UDWH�
mortgages when interest rates fall.

Market risks that lead to prepayments are not material 
with respect to the markets where the Group operates. 
Accordingly, the Group considers prepayment risk on net 
SURŵWV�DV�QRW�PDWHULDO�DIWHU�FRQVLGHULQJ�DQ\�SHQDOWLHV�DULVLQJ�
from prepayments.

51.5. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate 
or failed internal processes, people, systems, or external 
events (including legal risks). When controls fail to perform, 
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or 
UHJXODWRU\�LPSOLFDWLRQV��RU�OHDG�WR�ŵQDQFLDO�ORVVHV��

To reduce operational risk, the Group has developed an 
Operational Risk Management framework with the objective 
of ensuring that operational risks within the component of the 
framework is a set of core operational risk policies designed to 

ensure that operational risk has proper governance, and that it 
is maintained at an acceptable level with a controlled and sound 
operating environment. The operational risk publications and 
guidelines have been placed on the Bank’s intranet site for quick 
access and referrals. Critical operational risk issues are handled 
by a separate Operational Risk Committee, which meetings are 
attended by senior managers of business lines, including the 
&KLHI�5LVN�2IŵFHU�DQG�WKH�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU�

The framework for managing and controlling operational 
risks encompasses various tools, including Risk and Control 
Assessment (RCA), operational risk event and key risk indicators. 
The RCA is used by each business and support unit to identify 
key operational risks and assess the degree of effectiveness 
of internal controls. Inadequate controls are subject to action 
SODQV�WKDW�ZLOO�KHOS�WUDFN�DQG�WLPHO\�UHVROYH�GHŵFLHQFLHV��7KLV�
tool is subject to a proactive approach to minimize operational 
ULVN�ORVV��7KLV�LV�UHŶHFWHG�LQ�WKH�RSHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�
new products/activities/systems, protective information security 
and Business Continuity Planning, granular risk analysis for its 
operating/existing activities, and continuous awareness sessions.

2SHUDWLRQDO�ULVN�HYHQWV�DUH�FODVVLŵHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�%DVHO�
VWDQGDUGV�DQG�LQFOXGH�VLJQLŵFDQW�LQFLGHQWV�WKDW�PD\�LPSDFW�
WKH�*URXSőV�SURŵWV�DQG�UHSXWDWLRQV�IRU�IXUWKHU�PLWLJDWLRQ�DQG�
avoidance. As to key risk indicators, they are employed to 
facilitate the operational risk monitoring in a forward-looking 
PDQQHU�ZLWK�SUH�GHŵQHG�HVFDODWLRQ�WULJJHUV�

The Group’s operational risk mitigation program involves both 
business continuity management and insurance management 
programs. The former oversees the business continuity of 
essential business service during unforeseen events, mainly 
EXVLQHVV�GLVUXSWLRQ�DQG�V\VWHP�IDLOXUH�HYHQWV�Ŏ�ZLWK�HQWHUSULVH�
ZLGH�LPSDFW�Ŏ�DORQJ�ZLWK�QDWXUDO�GLVDVWHUV�DQG�WHUURULVP�
vandalism events. As to the latter, the Group purchases Group-
ZLGH�LQVXUDQFH�SROLFLHV�WR�PLWLJDWH�VLJQLŵFDQW�ORVVHV��7KHVH�
policies cover fraud, property damage and general liability, and 
'LUHFWRUVő�DQG�RIŵFHUVő�OLDELOLW\��
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52. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Less than 12 months Over 12 months 

2014
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year Total

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and balances with 
central banks

2,403,232 10,953 407,122 2,821,307 1,583,336 2,644,142 4,227,478 7,048,785

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,572,980 225,641 114,658 2,913,279 - - - 2,913,279

Loans to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
and reverse repurchase 
agreements

114,299 131,270 115,693 361,262 32,450 - 32,450 393,712

Financial assets given 
as collateral

- - 7,005 7,005 - - - 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments 

3,914 768 2,033 6,715 - - - 6,715

Financial assets at fair 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�
or loss

190 756 746 1,692 24,062 129,828 153,890 155,582

Net loans and advances 
to customers at 
amortized cost

3,031,407 552,847 1,084,448 4,668,702 1,562,682 867,779 2,430,461 7,099,163

Net loans and advances 
to related parties at 
amortized cost

19,352 1,005 748 21,105 3,896 3,032 6,928 28,033

Debtors by acceptances 105,505 116,814 80,620 302,939 - - - 302,939

Financial assets at 
amortized cost

173,758 389,994 811,538 1,375,290 4,578,409 4,306,420 8,884,829 10,260,119

Financial assets at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income

- - - - - 98,718 98,718 98,718

Property and equipment - - - - - 236,379 236,379 236,379

Intangible assets - - - - - 652 652 652

Assets obtained in 
settlement of debt

- - - - - 36,677 36,677 36,677

Other assets 4,780 26 61,827 66,633 - 40,147 40,147 106,780

TOTAL ASSETS 8,429,417 1,430,074 2,686,438 12,545,929 7,784,835 8,363,774 16,148,609 28,694,538
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Less than 12 months Over 12 months 

2014
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year Total

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total TOTAL

LIABILITIES 

Due to central banks 9,394 546 10,226 20,166 33,358 17,622 50,980 71,146

Due to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

370,047 181,578 120,623 672,248 166,351 72,574 238,925 911,173

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments

4,150 327 950 5,427 - - - 5,427

Customers’ deposits 
at amortized cost

13,667,419 2,766,219 4,918,081 21,351,719 1,956,827 69,243 2,026,070 23,377,789

Deposits from 
related parties
at amortized cost

291,393 1,852 7,068 300,313 12,500 - 12,500 312,813

Debt issued and 
other borrowed funds

- - 616 616 - 444,771 444,771 445,387

Engagements by 
acceptances 

105,505 116,814 80,620 302,939 - - - 302,939

Other liabilities 50,898 1,652 85,078 137,628 22,439 3,836 26,275 163,903

Provisions for risks 
and charges 

- - - - - 145,429 145,429 145,429

Subordinated debt - 82 - 82 - 414,498 414,498 414,580

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,498,806 3,069,070 5,223,262 22,791,138 2,191,475 1,167,973 3,359,448 26,150,586

Net (6,069,389) (1,638,996) (2,536,824) (10,245,209) 5,593,360 7,195,801 12,789,161 2,543,952
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Less than 12 months Over 12 months 

2013
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year Total

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and balances with 
central banks

1,804,864 339,997 573,392 2,718,253 2,781,312 310,365 3,091,677 5,809,930

Due from banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�

2,955,137 320,986 72,605 3,348,728 4,586 - 4,586 3,353,314

Loans to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�
and reverse repurchase 
agreements

65,444 142,388 401,664 609,496 5,370 - 5,370 614,866

Financial assets given 
as collateral

- - - - 7,005 - 7,005 7,005

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments 

3,270 312 242 3,824 - - - 3,824

Financial assets at fair 
YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURŵW�
or loss

5 83 1,066 1,154 17,281 139,012 156,293 157,447

Net loans and advances 
to customers at 
amortized cost

2,913,113 424,569 976,028 4,313,710 1,618,209 844,931 2,463,140 6,776,850

Net loans and advances 
to related parties at 
amortized cost

16,741 1,084 300 18,125 1,339 4,268 5,607 23,732

Debtors by acceptances 195,762 158,039 89,993 443,794 2,104 59 2,163 445,957

Financial assets at 
amortized cost

337,297 203,445 1,022,345 1,563,087 4,508,671 4,126,435 8,635,106 10,198,193

Financial assets at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income

- - - - - 86,895 86,895 86,895

Property and equipment - - - - - 243,230 243,230 243,230

Intangible assets - - - - - 811 811 811

Assets obtained in 
settlement of debt

- - - - - 36,379 36,379 36,379

Other assets 14,380 404 51,117 65,901 5 41,929 41,934 107,835

TOTAL ASSETS 8,306,013 1,591,307 3,188,752 13,086,072 8,945,882 5,834,314 14,780,196 27,866,268
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Less than 12 months Over 12 months 

2013
LBP Million

Up to
1 month

1 to 3 
 months

 3 months
to 1 year Total

1 to 5
years

Over
 5 years Total TOTAL

LIABILITIES 

Due to central banks 8,205 2 10 8,217 11,555 31,730 43,285 51,502

Due to banks and 
ŵQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV

615,573 344,211 109,638 1,069,422 178,104 145,036 323,140 1,392,562

'HULYDWLYH�ŵQDQFLDO�
instruments

2,878 179 6 3,063 - - - 3,063

Customers’ deposits at 
amortized cost

13,204,057 2,646,685 4,270,055 20,120,797 1,800,184 49,204 1,849,388 21,970,185

Deposits from 
related parties 
at amortized cost

225,405 13,332 12,175 250,912 13,565 - 13,565 264,477

Debt issued and other 
borrowed funds

- 60,990 - 60,990 - 445,499 445,499 506,489

Engagements 
by acceptances 

195,762 158,039 89,993 443,794 2,104 59 2,163 445,957

Other liabilities 73,132 1,861 90,620 165,613 26,014 4,077 30,091 195,704

Provisions for risks and 
charges 

- - - - - 138,375 138,375 138,375

Subordinated debt - - - - - 412,368 412,368 412,368

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,325,012 3,225,299 4,572,497 22,122,808 2,031,526 1,226,348 3,257,874 25,380,682

Net (6,018,999) (1,633,992) (1,383,745) (9,036,736) 6,914,356 4,607,966 11,522,322 2,485,586
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53. CAPITAL

%\�PDLQWDLQLQJ�DQ�DFWLYHO\�PDQDJHG�FDSLWDO�EDVH��WKH�*URXSőV�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�FRYHU�ULVNV�LQKHUHQW�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV��WR�UHWDLQ�VXIŵFLHQW�
ŵQDQFLDO�VWUHQJWK�DQG�ŶH[LELOLW\�WR�VXSSRUW�QHZ�EXVLQHVV�JURZWK��DQG�WR�PHHW�QDWLRQDO�DQG�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�UHJXODWRU\�FDSLWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�
at all times. The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the 
Central Bank of Lebanon according to the provisions of Basic Circular No. 44. These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing 
WKH�*URXSőV�HOLJLEOH�FDSLWDO�ZLWK�LWV�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ŵQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DVVHWV�DQG�RII�EDODQFH�VKHHW�FRPPLWPHQWV�DW�D�ZHLJKWHG�DPRXQW�WR�
UHŶHFW�WKHLU�UHODWLYH�ULVN��

To satisfy Basel III capital requirements, the Central Bank of Lebanon requires maintaining the following ratios of total regulatory capital 
to risk-weighted assets to be achieved gradually by year-end 2015 as follows: 

%

Common Tier 1 
capital ratio Tier 1 capital ratio Total capital ratio

Year ended 31 December 2013 6.0% 8.5% 10.5%

Year ended 31 December 2014 7.0% 9.5% 11.5%

Year ended 31 December 2015 8.0% 10.0% 12.0%

LBP Million
2014 2013

Risk-weighted assets 15,810,239 16,139,378

RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, risk-weighted assets are as follows:

REGULATORY CAPITAL

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, regulatory capital consists of the following:

([FOXGLQJ�SURŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
,QFOXGLQJ�SURŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�OHVV�
proposed dividends

LBP Million
2014 2013 2014 2013

Common Tier 1 capital 1,568,174 1,534,004 1,659,415 1,597,136

Additional Tier 1 capital 601,580 601,286 601,580 601,286

Tier 2 capital 463,616 464,967 463,616 464,967

Total capital 2,633,370 2,600,257 2,724,611 2,663,389
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, capital adequacy ratio is as follows:

([FOXGLQJ�SURŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
,QFOXGLQJ�SURŵW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�
less proposed dividends

LBP Million
2014 2013 2014 2013

Common Tier 1 capital 9.92% 9.50% 10.50% 9.90%

Total Tier 1 capital ratio 13.72% 13.23% 14.30% 13.62%

Total capital ratio 16.66% 16.11% 17.23% 16.50%

LBP Million
2014 2013

Dividends paid during the year

Equity dividends on ordinary shares LBP 200 per share 113,103 113,103

Distributions to Series 2008 Preferred Shares: USD 8.00 per share 24,224 24,224

Distributions to Series 2009 Preferred Shares:  USD 8.00 per share 24,224 24,224

161,551 161,551

Less: dividends on treasury shares (539) (714)

161,012 160,837

Proposed for approval at Annual General Assembly 
 (not recognized as a liability as at 31 December)

Equity dividends on ordinary shares LBP 200 per share 113,103 113,103

Distributions to Series 2008 Preferred Shares: USD 8.00 per share 24,224 24,224

Distributions to Series 2009 Preferred Shares:  USD 8.00 per share 24,224 24,224

161,551 161,551

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend 
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies 
and processes from previous years; however, these are under constant scrutiny of the Board.

54. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED
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RESOLUTIONS OF THE ANNUAL ORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

HELD ON 15 MAY 2015

FIRST RESOLUTION 

The General Assembly approves the reports of the Board 
of Directors and the Statutory Auditors and approves all the 
elements of the consolidated and stand-alone balance sheets 
DQG�SURŵW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQWV�RI�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDU������

SECOND RESOLUTION

The General Assembly decides to allocate the non-consolidated 
SURŵWV��LQ�/%3�PLOOLRQ��RI�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDU�������DV�VXJJHVWHG�E\�
the Board of Directors, as follows:

2014 Non-Consolidated Net Income 223,036

Legal Reserves (22,586)

Reserves for General Banking Risks 2014 (28,085)

Reserves for Retail Loan Portfolio (2,695)

Reserves for Capital Increase (1,081)

Net Reserves for Foreclosed Properties (2,246)

Unrealized Gains on Portfolio Held at Fair 
Value through P&L

441

3URŵWV�&DUULHG�)RUZDUG�IURP�3UHYLRXV�<HDUV 1,717

Net Income Available for Appropriation 168,501

'LYLGHQGV�Ŏ�3UHIHUUHG�6KDUHV�6HULHV�2008 24,224

'LYLGHQGV�Ŏ�3UHIHUUHG�6KDUHV�6HULHV�2009 24,224

'LYLGHQGV�Ŏ�&RPPRQ�6KDUHV 113,103

3URŵW�&DUULHG�)RUZDUG�IRU�2014 6,950

THIRD RESOLUTION

The General Assembly decides to grant discharge to the 
&KDLUPDQ�DQG�%RDUG�PHPEHUV�IRU�WKHLU�GXWLHV�GXULQJ�WKH�ŵVFDO�
year 2014.

FOURTH RESOLUTION

The General Assembly decides to elect the following persons 
as members of the Bank’s Board of Directors for three years 
expiring at the holding of the Annual Ordinary General Assembly 
PHHWLQJ�WKDW�ZLOO�DSSURYH�WKH�ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI������

Dr. François S. Bassil, Semaan F. Bassil, Bassam A. Nassar, Faisal 
M. Ali El Tabsh, Arthur G. Nazarian, Ahmad T. Tabbara, Alain 
C. Tohmé, Dr. Henry T. Azzam, Baron Dr. Guy Quaden, Des S. 
O’Shea and Yves R. Jacquot.

The elected Directors accepted the mandate assigned to them 
and thanked the shareholders for their trust.

FIFTH RESOLUTION

The General Assembly decides on the following points, after 
reviewing the special reports of each of the Board of Directors 
and the Statutory Auditors:

Ř� To approve the credits effectively used during the year 2014 
by some Board members and/or main shareholders and/or 
VHQLRU�RIŵFHUV�DW�%\EORV�%DQN�6�$�/��DQG�RU�FRPSDQLHV�WKH\�
belong to, as detailed in the reports of the Board of Directors 
and the Statutory Auditors.

����7KH�$VVHPEO\�DOVR�FRQŵUPV�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�%DQN����
    and the companies some board members belong to, as shown   
    in the special reports of the  Board of Directors and the 
    Statutory Auditors.

Ř� To grant the special authorization referred to in article /152/ of 
the Code of Money and Credit and in article /158/ of the Code 
RI�&RPPHUFH�IRU�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDU������WR�HDFK�%RDUG�PHPEHU�
DQG�RU�PDLQ�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�RU�VHQLRU�RIŵFHUV�DW�%\EORV�
Bank S.A.L. and/or companies they belong to, as shown in the 
special report of the Board of Directors.

Ř� To grant the special authorization referred to in article /159/ 
of the Code of Commerce to allow members of the Board of 
Directors to accept the chairmanship of, or Board membership 
in, other companies having similar business. 
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SIXTH RESOLUTION

The General Assembly approves the setting of annual lump-sum 
emoluments for the members of the Board of Directors at 480 
million Lebanese Pounds for the year 2015, to be distributed 
equally among the members, each one of them being entitled to 
10 million Lebanese Pounds as attendance fees for each meeting 
with a maximum of 40 million Lebanese Pounds per year.

SEVENTH RESOLUTION

The General Assembly approves the terms of collaboration 
with Dr. François S. Bassil in the event he is elected as Chairman 
and General Manager of Byblos Bank S.A.L. or eventually as 
Chairman of Byblos Group, and with Mr. Semaan Bassil as 
General Manager or eventually as Chairman and General 
Manager of Byblos Bank S.A.L., as described in the special 
report, and to grant them on this basis for 2015 the authorization 
mentioned in article /152/ of the Code of Money and Credit and 
article /158/ of the Code of Commerce.

7KH�*HQHUDO�$VVHPEO\�DSSURYHV�WKH�VDODULHV�DQG�RWKHU�EHQHŵWV�
SDLG�WR�WKH�VHQLRU�RIŵFHUV�RI�WKH�%DQN�IRU�WKH�\HDU�������
as mentioned in the Board of Directors special report, and 
approves as well to pay them the amounts mentioned in the 
same report for 2015.

The General Assembly approves the fees paid to the members 
and chairmen of the Board Audit and Risk committees for 2014, 
and approves that said members and chairmen receive fees 
IRU�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDU�������DV�PHQWLRQHG�LQ�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
special report.

EIGHTH RESOLUTION

The General Assembly decides to set the fees of the External 
Auditors, Messrs. BDO Semaan Gholam & Co. and Messrs. 
(UQVW�	�<RXQJ��IRU�WKH�ŵVFDO�\HDUV������������DQG�������DQG�
determine their fees for 2015 at 1,250 million Lebanese Pounds 
for auditing and reviewing the stand-alone and consolidated 
ŵQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV

RESOLUTIONS OF THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

FIRST RESOLUTION 

The Extraordinary General Assembly decides to amend the 
Articles of Association by adding “Article 34 bis” as follows:

Article 34 bis: Group Subsidiaries:

The Board of Directors shall supervise the activities of the 
subsidiaries in which the Bank owns, directly or indirectly, 
the majority of the capital or the voting rights or the power 
of management. The Bank and these subsidiaries shall 
form together Byblos Group. Supervision of the group and 
coordination among its elements shall be carried out by a 
group chairman elected by the Board of Directors, further 
to consultations with the Boards of Directors of the group 
VXEVLGLDULHV��DPRQJVW�LWV�%RDUG�PHPEHUV�DV�SHU�TXDOLŵFDWLRQ�
terms it shall determine.

The Group Chairman shall have the following powers:

Ř� Follow up on the activities of the Group subsidiaries.
Ř� Notify the Board of Directors periodically of his assessment, 

feedback and suggestions regarding the activities of the  
Group subsidiaries.

Ř� Advise the Board of Directors about the resolutions to be 
taken in the main matters that the Bank should vote on within 
the Group subsidiaries.

Ř� Represent the Group towards third parties without prejudice 
to the powers of the Group subsidiaries.

 
SECOND RESOLUTION

The Extraordinary General Assembly acknowledges that the 
above-mentioned amendments shall become effective only 
upon the approval of the Banque du Liban (the Central Bank of 
Lebanon), in accordance with Government Decree No. 77 dated 
27 June  1977.

HELD ON 15 MAY 2015
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CORRESPONDENT BANKS

Country City Bank Name
Australia Sydney Westpac Banking Corporation

Belgium Brussels Byblos Bank Europe S.A.

Denmark Copenhagen Danske Bank A/S

France Paris Société Générale

Germany Frankfurt Commerzbank AG, Deutsche Bank AG

Italy Milan UniCredit SpA, Intesa Sanpaolo SpA

Japan Tokyo Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, The Bank of New York Mellon

KSA Jeddah The National Commercial Bank

Kuwait Kuwait National Bank of Kuwait SAK

Netherlands Amsterdam ABN AMRO Bank NV

Norway Oslo DnB NOR BANK ASA

Qatar Doha Qatar National Bank SAQ

Sweden Stockholm Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB

Switzerland =XULFK� Crédit Suisse

Turkey Istanbul Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi AS 

UAE Dubai Emirates NBD PJSC, MashreqBank PSC

UK London Barclays Bank PLC

USA New York The Bank of New York Mellon, Citibank NA
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GROUP ADDRESSES

(EAD�/FlCE��
BYBLOS BANK HEADQUARTERS 

Elias Sarkis Avenue 
$VKUDŵHK��%HLUXW
Lebanon

P.O. Box:   11-5605 Riad El Solh

����������������������������%HLUXW�Ŏ�/HEDQRQ

Phone:      (+961) 1 335200

Fax:            (+961) 1 334554

Telex:         BYBANK 41601 LE

Cable:        BYBLOBANK

SWIFT:       BYBALBBX

Forex:         (+961) 1 335255

Website:    http://www.byblosbank.com

E-mail:       secretariat@byblosbank.com.lb

BYBLOS BANK S.A.L. BRANCHES IN LEBANON

 To contact any of our branches in Lebanon, please call Customer Service at (+961) 1 205050.
You can locate our branches by visiting the Contact Us section on our website 

or by logging on to Byblos Bank’s Mobile Banking Application.  

Beirut 1 Regional Management
Chiyah Branch

Choueifat Branch

Ghobeiry Branch

Haret Hreik Branch

Jnah Branch

Verdun Branch

Verdun Moussaitbeh Branch

Beirut 2 Regional Management
$VKUDŵHK�*HLWDZL�%UDQFK

$VKUDŵHK�*HPPD\]HK�%UDQFK

$VKUDŵHK�6DVVLQH�%UDQFK�

$VKUDŵHK�6W��1LFRODV�%UDQFK

$VKUDŵHK�7DEDULV�%UDQFK

Badaro Branch

Place de l’Etoile Branch

Baabda Regional Management 
Ain El Remmaneh Branch

Baabda Branch

Furn El Chebbak Branch

Hazmieh Branch

Bekaa Regional Management
Aley Branch

Bar Elias Branch

Deir El Kamar Branch

Jdita Branch

Jeb Jannine Branch

Kabrchmoun Branch

Ras El Metn Branch

=DKOHK���%UDQFK

=DKOHK���%UDQFK
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Jbeil Regional Management
Amchit Branch

Jbeil 1 Branch

Jbeil 2 Branch

Mastita/Blat Branch

Okaybe Branch

Keserwan Regional Management
Adma Branch

Haret Sakhr Branch

Jounieh Branch

Kaslik Branch

Kfarhbab Branch

Reyfoun Branch

Tabarja/Kfaryassine Branch

=RXN�%UDQFK

Koura Regional Management
Batroun Branch

Bechmezzine Branch

Kousba Branch

Dora Regional Management
Bourj Hammoud Branch

Dekwaneh Branch

Dora Branch

Jdeideh 2 Branch

South Regional Management
Bint Jbeil Branch

Ghazieh Branch

Hlaliyeh Branch

Jezzine Branch

Marjeyoun Branch

Nabatieh Branch

Saida Branch

Tyre Branch

North Regional Management
Halba Branch

Kobayat Branch

Tripoli Boulevard Branch

Tripoli Mina Branch

Tripoli Tall Branch

=JKRUWD�%UDQFK

Metn Regional Management
Antelias 1 Branch

Antelias 2 Branch

Aya/Dora Branch

Baabdat Branch

Dbayeh Branch

Elyssar/Mazraat Yachouh Branch

Jal El Dib Branch

Jdeideh 1 Branch

Mansourieh Branch

Rabieh Branch

Sin El Fil Branch

Ras Beirut Regional Management
Bechara Al Khoury Branch

Bliss Branch

Hamra Branch

Hamra Sadat Branch

Istiklal Branch

Mar Elias Branch

Mazraa Branch
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Addresses of all entities overseas are well detailed 
on the Contact Us page of our website: www.byblosbank.com

"RANCHES�!BROAD
Baghdad Branch, Iraq

Basra Branch, Iraq

Erbil Branch, Iraq

Limassol Branch, Cyprus

Subsidiary Bank in Lebanon
Byblos Invest Bank S.A.L.

3UBSIDIARY�"ANKS�!BROAD
Byblos Bank Africa with branches in Khartoum and Bahri 

Byblos Bank Armenia C.J.S.C. with branches in Amiryan, Komitas, 
Malatia and Vanadzor 

Byblos Bank Europe S.A. with branches in Belgium, France, 
and the United Kingdom

Byblos Bank RDC S.A. with a branch in Kinshasa-Gombe 

Byblos Bank Syria P.J.S.C. with branches in Abou Roummaneh, 
Mazzeh, Abbasiyeen Square, Aleppo, Tartous, Lattakia, Hama, 
and Swaidaa

2EPRESENTATIVE�/FlCES�!BROAD
$EX�'KDEL�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH�2IŵFH��8QLWHG�$UDE�(PLUDWHV

1LJHULD�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH�2IŵFH��1LJHULD

)NSURANCE�#OMPANIES
ADIR Insurance and Reinsurance Co. S.A.L., Lebanon

ADIR Insurance and Reinsurance Co. Syria S.A., Syria

Adonis Brokerage House S.A.L., Lebanon
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CONCEPT
%\EORV�%DQN�Ŏ�*URXS�&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW

 
DESIGN AND LAYOUT

www.circle.agency
 

PRINTING
Anis Commercial Printing Press
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